A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY

AT
1720 W. CAMERON AVENUE, SUITE 100
WEST COVINA, CALIFORNIA
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 19, 2020 AT 12:00 P.M.

VI.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS

Jorge Marquez (alt)
Bob Kuhn (alt)
Lynda Noriega

Valerie Munoz (alt)
Mike Whitehead (alt)
Mark Paulson (alt)
Ed Chavez (alt)

PUBLIC COMMENTS (Agendized Matters Only):

As provided under Government Code Section 54954.3, this time has been set

aside for persons in the audience to provide comment or make inquiries on

matters appearing on this Special Meeting agenda only. Please complete the
appropriate request card and submit it to the Secretary, prior to the item being heard.
A five-minute time limit on remarks is requested.

ITEMS TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Recommended Action:

Approve motion determining need to take action on item(s) which
arose subsequent to posting of the Agenda (ROLL CALL VOTE:
Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of the
Board or, if less than two-thirds of Board members are present,

a unanimous vote)

CONSENT CALENDAR
(Consent items may all be approved by single motion) [enc]

@ Minutes for 1/15/20 Regular Board Meeting

MARQUEZ

MORENO

MARQUEZ

MARQUEZ

MARQUEZ

(b) Minutes for 2/4/20 Administrative/Finance Committee — Special Joint Meeting
(c) Minutes for 2/4/20 Legislative/Public Information Committee — Special Joint Meeting



VII.

VIII.

IX.

(d)
(e)

Demands on Administrative Fund
Demands on Project Fund

COMMITTEE REPORTS
(These items may require action)

(a)

(b)

Administrative/Finance Committee Report [enc]

1.

Discussion/Action Regarding San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership
Membership Renewal [enc]

Legislative/Public Information Committee Report [enc]

OTHER ACTION/INFORMATION ITEMS
(These items may require action)

(a)

(b)

(©)

Draft San Gabriel Basin Groundwater Quality Management and

Remediation Plan “§406 Plan” for 2020 [enc]

1.

Open of 25-day Public Comment Period

MARQUEZ

Discussion/Action Regarding Operation and Maintenance Task Order
for Avocet, Inc. [enc]

Discussion/Action Regarding Stetson Engineers Amended Task Order to Provide
Support for Prop 68 Application [enc]

ENGINEER'S REPORT

(@)

Project Updates:

1.

Baldwin Park Operable Unit

e 6 o o T & o o o o o

Arrow/Lante Well (Subarea 1)
Monrovia Wells

SGVWC B6 Plant

SGVWC B5 Plant

CDWC Well No. 14

La Puente Valley County Water District

| Monte Operable Unit

Eastern Shallow Zone
Eastern Deep Zone

GSWC Encinita Plant
Western Shallow Zone

South EI Monte Operable Unit

Whitmore Street. Ground Water Remediation
Treatment Facility

City of M.P. Well No. 5 VOC Treatment
Facility

City of M.P. Well No. 12 VOC Treatment
Facility

City of M.P. Well No. 15

SCHOELLERMAN

Status

Operational
Operational
Operational
Operational
Operational
Operational

Operational
Operational
Operational
Operational
Operational
Operational

Operational

Operational



o City of M.P. Well Nos. 1, 3, 10 VOC Treatment ~ Operational

Facility
o GSWC Wells SG-1 & SG-2 Operational
o SGVWC Plant No. 8 Operational
4. Puente Valley Operable Unit
o Shallow Zone Design
. Deep Zone Construction
5. Area 3 Operable Unit
J City of Alhambra Phase 1 Operational
J City of Alhambra Phase 2 Operational
o City of South Pasadena Wilson Treatment Operational
X. ATTORNEY'S REPORT PADILLA
XI.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT MANNING
XIl. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS MARQUEZ
XIIl. INFORMATION ITEMS [enc] MARQUEZ

@ San Gabriel Basin Water Calendar
(b) San Gabriel Valley Water Forum Invitation

XIV. FUTURE BOARD/COMMITTEE MEETINGS MARQUEZ

@ The next Administrative/Finance Committee meeting will be
held on Tuesday, March 10, 2020 at 10:00 A.M. at WQA

(b) The next Engineering Committee meeting will be held on Tuesday,
March 10, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. at WQA

(© The next Legislative/Public Information Committee meeting
will be held on Wednesday, March 11, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. at WQA

(d) The next WQA Board meeting will be held on Wednesday,
March 18, 2020 at 12:00 P.M. at WQA

XV. BOARD MEMBERS' COMMENTS/REPORTS MARQUEZ
XVI. CLOSED SESSION MARQUEZ
@ Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1) — Public Employment
Title: Executive Director

XVII. ADJOURNMENT MARQUEZ

Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items and are distributed to a
majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the Authority’s
business office located at 1720 W. Cameron Ave., Suite 100, West Covina, CA 91790, during regular business hours. When practical, these
public records will also be made available on the Authority’s internet web site, accessible at www.wgqa.com .


http://www.wqa.com/

DRAFT

A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE
SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY
JANUARY 15, 2020 AT 12:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER The Chairman called the regular meeting of the San Gabriel
Basin Water Quality Authority to order and reviewed the
actions anticipated on the agenda for the meeting.

ROLL CALL OF BOARD Jorge Marquez, Bob Kuhn, Lynda Noriega (alternate), Valerie
MEMBERS Munoz, Michael Whitehead, Mark Paulson, and Ed Chavez

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT None.

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT Ken Manning, Executive Director; Randy Schoellerman,
Assistant Executive Director/Sr. Engineer; Mary Saenz,
Director of Finance; Stephanie Moreno, Executive
Assistant/Outreach Coordinator; Michelle Sanchez,
Admin/Accounting Assistant; Dan Colby; Project Resource
Manager; Richard Padilla, Legal Counsel

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC Dan Arrighi, San Gabriel Valley Water Company; Lenet

PRESENT Pacheco, Valley County Water District; Jennifer Santone,
Upper District; Al Contreras, Upper District; David Muse,
Valley County Water District

PUBLIC COMMENT None.

ITEMS TOO LATE TO BE None.

AGENDIZED

ELECTION OF OFFICERS Ms. Munoz moved to elect Mr. Jorge as Chairman. Mr. Kuhn

seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

Ms. Munoz moved to elect Mr. Kuhn as Vice-Chairman. Ms.
Noriega seconded the motion and it was unanimously
approved.

Mr. Marquez moved to elect Mr. Paulson as Treasurer. Ms.
Munoz seconded the motion and it was unanimously approved.

Ms. Noriega moved to elect Ms. Munoz as Secretary. Mr.
Whitehead seconded the motion and it was unanimously

approved.
APPOINTMENT OF The Chairman kept the committee assignments the same as the
COMMITTEE MEMBERS previous year.

Administrative/Finance: Whitehead, Kuhn, Paulson



CONSENT CALENDAR

COMMITTEE REPORTS

OTHER
ACTION/INFORMATION
ITEMS

Discussion/Action Regarding
Authorization to Contract Services

with the Bank of the West

Adopt Resolution No. 20-001

Report on Cash Investments for
4™ Quarter 2019

Discussion/Action Regarding

Engineering: Kuhn, Munoz, Paulson
Legislative/Public Information: Marquez, Munoz, Kuhn

Mr. Kuhn moved to approve the consent calendar. Ms. Munoz
seconded the motion and it was approved. Mr. Whitehead
abstained from Project Demand E90739 and Ms. Noriega
abstained from Project Demand E90738.

None.

Mr. Manning reported that WQA currently has its banking
relationship with Bank of the West (“Bank”). The Bank
requires that WQA adopt a resolution each time Board Officers
are elected, authorizing the Board Officers to contract for
service and establish accounts with the Bank, including
checking signing authorization. He indicated that last year at
the January 22, 2019 board meeting Resolution 19-001 was
passed and adopted, authorizing the newly elected Board
Officers to contract for service with the Bank.

Mr. Manning indicated that since new officers were elected at
today’s regular board meeting, WQA needed to rescind
Resolution 19-001 and adopt Resolution 20-001 authorizing
the newly elected Board Officers to contract for service with
the Bank.

After brief discussion, Ms. Noriega moved to adopt Resolution
No. 20-001. Ms. Munoz seconded the motion and it was
unanimously approved by the following roll call vote:

AYES: MARQUEZ, KUHN, NORIEGA, MUNOZ,
WHITEHEAD, PAULSON, CHAZE

NO: NONE.

Mr. Manning reported that enclosed for review was the
quarterly report on cash and investments as of December 31,
20109.

He noted that the average monthly effective yields for the
Pooled Money Investment Account for October, November and
December 2019 are 2.190%, 2.103% and 2.043%, respectively.
The Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) quarterly rate for
October to December has not yet been issued.

Mr. Padilla gave an update on the discussions regarding the



Monitoring Well MW5-13 License
Agreement with Azusa Land
Reclamation, Inc. (ALR)

ENGINEER’S REPORT

ATTORNEY’S REPORT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S
REPORT

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

FUTURE BOARD AND
COMMITTEE MEETINGS

amended language in the agreement. He indicated that ALR
still had some reservations regarding the agreement and he was
working to with them to come to a resolution.

Mr. Kuhn questioned how this delay was affecting the project.

Mr. Schoellerman responded that one scheduled sampling
event had been already missed and the next deadline was
several weeks away.

After some discussion, Mr. Manning reported that staff would
bring the agreement back to the next Administrative/Finance
Committee for review in February.

Mr. Schoellerman gave an update on the Prop 68 applications
that would provide treatment and remediation funding for
many basin projects. He noted that based on conversations
with State Water Board Division of Financial Assistance staff,
WQA was preparing one application to cover City of El Monte
projects, which may quality as serving Disadvantaged
Communities, and a separate application for all other eligible
basin projects. He indicated that the deadline to submit the
applications was extended to January 29, 2020.

Mr. Padilla indicated that there was a need for a closed session.

Mr. Manning reported that the WQA trip to Washington, D.C.
was scheduled for February 10"-12". He indicated that staff
has spoken to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation regarding a
possible process for allocating WQA'’s funding request. He
explained that the first year $10M would be requested and then
$5M every year after that. He also noted that staff received a
phone call from Congresswoman Napolitano’s office notifying
him that $6.1M in EPA cooperative agreement funds for
projects in the South EI Monte Operable Unit had been
allocated to WQA. The funds came from prior settlements with
PRPs. He also noted that he gave a presentation for Senator
Archuleta at the Water Replenishment District. Lastly, he
reported that he would be leaving the following Monday for
vacation.

None.

The Board decided to make the following changes to the
meeting schedule:

The Administrative/Finance Committee meeting was moved to
Tuesday, February 4, 2020 at 10am.

The Legislative/Public Information Committee meeting was
moved to Tuesday, February 4, 2020 at 11am.

The Engineering Committee meeting scheduled for Tuesday,



BOARD MEMBERS’
COMMENTS/
REPORTS

CLOSED SESSION
Pursuant to Government Code
Section 54957(b)(1) — Public
Employment

Title: Executive Director

ADJOURNMENT

Jorge Marquez
Chairman

February 11, 2020 was cancelled.
Ms. Munoz thanked the WQA staff for their hard work.

Mr. Whitehead commended staff on their continued work to
get some funding from the continuing resolution and was
encouraged to hear the update regarding the Bureau of
Reclamation.

Mr. Padilla reported that a closed session was held. He
indicated that an update was given and there was no final
action taken.

The Chairman asked if there were any other items of business
to come before the Board. There being none, the meeting was
adjourned to February 19, 2020.

Valerie Munoz
Secretary



DRAFT

SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY
ADMINISTRATIVE/FINANCE COMMITTEE AND
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FEBRUARY 4, 2019 AT 10:00 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
PRESENT

WATERMASTER LIASON

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
ABSENT

OTHER BOARD MEMBERS
PRESENT

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
PRESENT

PUBLIC COMMENT
Discussion Regarding San Gabriel

Valley Economic Partnership
Membership Renewal

Discussion Regarding WQOA
Meetings in Washington, DC

Mr. Whitehead called the regular meeting of the San Gabriel
Basin Water Quality Authority to order and reviewed the
actions anticipated on the agenda for the meeting.

Mike Whitehead, Bob Kuhn, and Mark Paulson,

Dave Michalko

None.

Lynda Noriega.

Ken Manning, Executive Director; Randy Schoellerman,
Assistant Executive/Senior Engineer; Stephanie Moreno,
Executive Assistant/Public Outreach Coordinator; Mary Saenz,
Director of Finance; Michelle Sanchez, Accounting Assistant;
Dan Colby, Project Resource Manager

Lenet Pacheco, Valley County Water District

None.

Mr. Manning reported that the WQA holds a Leader Level
Membership with the annual renewal amount of $20,000 which
is discounted from the regular price of $25,000. He noted that
WQA’s membership has been beneficial in putting the WQA’s
issues out in front of the community by allowing the WQA to
participate in local events with local and state legislators. He
also indicated that it also gives the WQA a seat on the Board of
the Directors.

After brief discussion, the committee recommended that the
annual renewal go to the full Board for approval.

Mr. Manning reported that today was the deadline for the
Bureau of Reclamation to allocate the $10M from the
continuing resolution to the WQA. He noted that once staff
was made aware of the allocation it would then determine the
focus and talking points of the meetings that would be held
with the legislators in Washington, D.C. the following week.



Discussion Regarding Monitoring
Well MW5-13 License Agreement
with Azusa Land Reclamation
(ALR)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S
REPORT

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman

Mr. Whitehead recommended that staff contact Kevin
McCarthy’s office for possible assistance.

Mr. Schoellerman reported that JPIA has reviewed the
language in the license agreement and were ready to issue
certificates to ALR. He noted that the agreement adheres to
long-standing data management requirements in the BPOU
Agreement. However, ALR continued to have concerns about
the timing and review of data obtained from the monitoring
well and had not signed off on the language yet.

Mr. Manning noted that this item would come back as soon as
there is an agreement from both sides.

Mr. Manning reported that WQA’s 406 Plan would go to the
Board this month for authorization to open a public comment
period. He reported that he had a very nice vacation in Hawaii.
He noted that he had a meeting at the Claremont Colleges
regarding a Graduate certificate program they are working on
for water policy and leadership. He lastly reported that he
would be at the West Covina City Council meeting tonight to
give them a 5-minute presentation on the WQA.

Mr. Whitehead asked if there were any other items of business
to come before the Board. There being none, the Board
meeting was adjourned.

Secretary



DRAFT

SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY
LEGISLATIVE/PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE AND
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FEBRUARY 4, 2020 AT 11:00 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
PRESENT

WATERMASTER LIASON

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
ABSENT

OTHER BOARD MEMBERS
PRESENT

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
PRESENT

Discussion Regarding Next
Advertorial

Discussion Regarding the WQA
Meetings in Washington, D.C.

The Chairman called the regular meeting of the San Gabriel
Basin Water Quality Authority to order and reviewed the
actions anticipated on the agenda for the meeting.

Jorge Marquez and Bob Kuhn

Absent.

Valerie Munoz

None.

Ken Manning, Executive Director; Stephanie Moreno,
Executive Assistant/Public Outreach Coordinator; Michelle
Sanchez, Accounting Assistant; Dan Colby, Project Resource
Manager; Randy Schoellerman, Assistant Executive
Director/Sr. Engineer

Lenet Pacheco, Valley County Water District; Gabriel
Monares, The Monares Group

Ms. Moreno reported that the next ad would be published in
Community Profiles and would be out later this month. She
indicated that this ad is a summarized explanation of the
WQA and its accomplishments over the past 25 years.

Mr. Manning reported that today was the deadline for the
U.S. Bureau of Reclamation to allocate the $10M from the
continuing resolution to the WQA. He noted that once staff
was made aware of the allocation it would then determine the
focus and talking points of the meetings that would be held
with the legislators in Washington, D.C., the following week.
He noted that he would send out an email to the Board as
soon as he heard something.



Legislative Activities/Reports

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S
REPORT

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman

State

Mr. Manning reported that staff has been in discussions with
the State Water Board Division of Drinking Water to increase
in staffing levels that would allow water purveyors to get
drinking water permit amendments processed more
efficiently.

Federal
Mr. Manning noted that federal efforts are focused on
pursuing the $10M funding request as noted above.

Mr. Manning reported that WQA’s 406 Plan would go to the
Board this month to review and open a public comment
period. He reported that he had a very nice vacation in
Hawaii. He noted that he had a meeting at the Claremont
Colleges regarding a Graduate certificate program they are
working on for water policy and leadership. He lastly
reported that he would be at the West Covina City Council
meeting tonight to give them a 5 min presentation on the
WOQA.

The Chairman asked if there were any other items of business
to come before the Board. There being none, the Board
meeting was adjourned.

Secretary



San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority February 19, 2020

DRAFT

The following demands on the Administration Fund Account at Bank of the West are hereby submitted for payment.
Check No. Pavable to Descriotion Amount

D01649 Bob Kuhn Board Member Compensation for January 2020
3 Days WQA Business
Meeting/Travel Expenses/Other
Less Deferred Compensation
Less Taxes Withheld 28.75

D01650 Michael Whitehead Board Member Compensation for January 2020
1 Day WQA Business
Meeting/Travel Expenses/Other
Less Deferred Compensation

Less Taxes Withheld 138.00
D01651 Ed Chavez Board Member Compensation for January 2020

6 Days WQA Business 896 58

Meeting/Travel Expenses/Other 000

Less Deferred Compensation 000

Less Taxes Withheld (68.59) 827 99
D01652 Jorge Marquez Board Member Compensation for January 2020

4 Days WQA Business

Meeting/Travel Expenses/Other

Less Deferred Compensation

Less Taxes Withheld 326.30

D01653 Valerie Munoz Board Member Compensation for January 2020
2 Days WQA Business
Meeting/Travel Expenses/Other
Less Deferred Compensation
Less Taxes Withheld 282.90

D01654 Mark Paulson Board Member Compensation for January 2020
1 Days WQA Business
Meeting/Travel Expenses/Other
Less Deferred Compensation
Less Taxes Withheld 152.32

D01655 Lynda Noriega Board Member Compensation for December 2019 and January
2020
2 Days WQA Business
Meeting/Travel Expenses/Other
Less Deferred Compensation

Less Taxes Withheld 276.00
EFT/ACH  SGBWQA - Payroll Fund Replenish payroll fund for January 2020
Staff Payroll 79,583.70
Board Deferred Compensation-Lincoln Life 414.00
Board Payroll Taxes - Federal & State 683.65 80,681.35
Total replenishment to payroll fund 82,713.61
EFT/ACH  SGBWQA - Revolving Fund Replenish revolving fund for 12/01/19 to 12/31/19 disbursements
Group Insurance 8,147.26
Dues and Subscriptions 150.00
Office Supplies 133.17
Telephone Service 519.00
Plant & Water Service 197.10
Misc. Office Expense 90.00
Equipment Lease (postage machine) 188.39
Security Systme 285.00
Copier Machine 41172
Computer Systems O&M 651 69
Copier Machine Q&M 473.04
Outside Services: Computer Consultant 540.00
Public Relations 550.00
Meeting & Conferences 131 01
Project Costs 2,548 09 15,015.47

Page 1 of 2



San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority

DRAFT

The following demands on the Administration Fund Account at Bank of the West are hereby submitted for payment.

Check No

7202

7203

7204

7205

7206

7207

7208

7209

7210

7211

7212

7213

7214

Pavable to

ACWA/JPIA

Accent Computer Solutions, Inc.

ACI Consulting

Bank of America

Bank of America

Bank of America

The Gualco Group

Kadesh & Associates, LLC

The Monares Group, LLC

Olivarez Madruga Lemieux
O'Neill, LLP

Ruffle Properties, LLC

Stetson Engineers, Inc.

Vasquez & Company LLP

Descrintion

Invoice No. 641304, Medical and life insurance premiums for
March 1, 2020 to April 1, 2020

Invoice No. 133064, Professional IT services for February 2020

Invoice No. '2020', Accounting software subscription renewal -
silver plan

Invoice No. '20-01Jan-KM', Credit card expenses incurred for 01/01/20 to
01/31/20
Travel & Mileage
Travel & Mileage (refund)
Project Costs

553 96
(553.96)

Invoice No '20-01Jan-RS', Credit Card Expenses incurred for 01/01/20 to
01/31/20

Dues and Subscriptions 110.00
Computer Systems O&M 501.71
Internet Service 29.95
Accounting/Auditing 3300
Travel & Mileage 194,96
Project Costs 104 52

Invoice No '19-12Dec-SM', Credit card expenses incurred for 12/01/19 to
12/31/19

Meetings & Conferences 167.00
Meetings & Conferences (refund) (3.12)

Invoice No '20-01Jan’, Professional consulting services for

January 2020

Invoice No. 02-20, Professional consulting services for January

2020

Invoice No. '20-03Mar', Professional consulting services for

March 2020

Invoice No. 9516, Professional legal services for December

2019

Office lease, CAM, and Storage for March 2020
Invoice No. '20-03Mar', Office lease 6,845.79
Invoice No. '20-03Mar-CAM', Electricity charges 643.20
Invoice No. '20-03Mar-Storage', Storage Room 150 00

Invoice No. 1609-004-001, Professional services for December
2019

Invoice No. 2200071, Annual audit of Financial Statements for

FY 6/30/19 - Progress Billing

TOTAL

Page 2 of 2

February 19, 2020

Amount

8.535.96

1,311.21

3,167.89

1,235 40

974.14

153.88

5,140.70

15,000.00

16,000.00

1,250.00

7,638.99

29,756 00

6,000.00



NAME

DA
9
170:20

TS0

DATE

I hereby certify thai | have

GABRIEL BA

{

Please attach any

Board Momber e Do
$149.43 per mieeting, B meeting maximum per month
Mileage Rate: $0.678 pet mile Casnes

SESH T

Bab Kuhn MONTH/YEAR: Ja

# of Days $14u.45
20, wace et §) PER DIEM

Commtiee 25
Chambar cominittes 1 3
Board 1%
Total 3
Totai $0.575 50 $28.
Expense mb t Description {receipts required) Amount
TOTAL 00
TOTAL EXPENSES $477
Deferrad a

ER AUTHORITY

TOTAL

paid all of the above expenses on behalf of the SAN

rs or back-up informa n regarding meetings Jisted above to be in

compliance with AB 1234. If there are no attachments, a verbal report is required.

San Baawn WQA

Board k]

© Sheat

edned 167 AB 1254 Janunry 2017



Watie Qualsty Authority

NAME:

1/15/20

DATE

I he
beh

Board Member Por Diem
$149.43 per meeting, 6 meeting maximum per month

Mileage Rate: $0.575 per mite SN Y e iy 0T

S

Michael Whitehead MONTH/YEAR: Jan-20
# of Days $148.43
Roundtrip Mileage (notto emcced 6) PER DIEM
Board Meeting 1
$0.
$0
Total 1
Total $0.575 per mile) 0
Expense Reimbursement Description Amount
.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
TOTAL $0.00
EXPENSES $149.43
Deferred Amount a num
TOTAL
ein on
{EL

San Gabriel Basin WQA
Board Member's Exponae Sheet
edited for AB 1234 May 2009

Attaohed



Water Quality Authouiry

NAME: Edward L. Chavez

DATE MEETING DESCRIPTION
1/3/20 Meeting with Joe Baca Jr, Councilman - City of Rialto
177120  West Covina City Council Meeling

1/8/20 Irwindale City Council Meeting

1/14/20  Conservation & Local Resources Commitiee Meeting - Metropolitan Water District of Southemn California

1/15/20 Meeting - San Gabriel Basin Waler Quality Authority

1/22/20  Hacienda Heights Improvement Association Annual Meeting
Total
Total $0.58 mile)

DATE Expense Reimbursement Description
TOTAL
TOTAL MILEAGE, EXPENSES
457 Deferred Amount a

I hereby certify that | have incurred and paid all of the above expenses on behalf of the
SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY

Sighature

Board Member Per Diem
$149.43 per meeting, 6 meeting maximum per month
Mileage Rate: $0.58 per mile (updaled January 2019)

MONTH/YEAR: Jan-20
# of Days $149.43
RoundtripMi e {(noltoexceed§) PER DIEM
1 $149 43
1 $149 43
1 $149.43
1 $149 43
1 $149 42
1 $149 42
$0 0C
$0 00
$0.00
$0 00
6 $896.58
0 $0.00
Amount
$0.00
$896.58

TOTAL

Please attach any fliers or back-up information regarding meetings listed above to be in
compliance with AB 1234. If there are no attachments, a verbal report is required.

San Gabriel Basin WQA
Board Member's Expense Sheet
edlted for AB 1234 January 2017



Board Member Per Diem
$149.43 per meeting, 6 meeting maximum per month
Mileage Rate: $0.575 per mile (updated January 2020)

Waier Quality Authariry

SE S T

NAME JORGE A MARQUEZ MONTH/YEAR: Jan-20

# of Days $149.43

DATE MEETING DESCRIPTION Roundtrip Mileage  (not to exceed 6) PER DIEM
1/13/20  Government Commitiee - Regional Chamber of Commerce - WALNUT 26 1 $149 43
1/15/20 WQA: Board Meeting - WEST COVINA 4} 1 $149.43
1/16/20  Regional Chamber of Commerce - Board Meeting - INDUSTRY 15 1 $14943
1/31/20  Meeting with Staff - Congresswoman Napolitano - Update for WQA 1 $149 43
$0 00
$0 00
$0.00
$0.0C
$0 0C
Total Meetings 4 $597.72

Total $0.575 41 Vv

DATE Expense Reimbursement (recelpts reguired) Amount
TOTAL $0.00
TOTAL EXPENSES $621.30

457 Deferred Compensation Amount (enter a positive number)
TOTAL

I hereby certify that | have incurred and paid all of the above expenses on behalf of the
SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY

Please attach any fliers or back-up information regarding meetings listed above to be in
compliance with AB 1234. If there are no attachments, a verbal report is required.

Board Member's Expense Sheet
edited for AB 1234 January 2017



Water Quality Authority

NAME: Valerie Munoz

1/15/20  WQA Board Meeting

1/23/20  Meeling with West Covina Council Member Lloyd Johnson

Total ngs :
Total $0.575

DATE Expense Reim  ement
TOTAL

SES

required)

MEETINGS, MILEAGE, EXPENSES

457 Deferred Compensation Amount (enter a positive number)

| hereby certify that | have incurred and paid all of the above expenses on behalf of the

SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY

signature

Board Member Per Diem
$149.43 per meeting, 6 meeting maximum per month
Mileage Rate: $0.575 per mile (updated January 2020)

MONTH/YEAR: Jan-20

#of g
Roundtrip Mileage {not to exceed 8)

6 1 $149 43
6 1 $149 43
$0 00
$0 0C
$00C
$0 00
$0 00
$0 00
$0 00

$0 00

2 $298.86
12 $6.90

Amount

$0.00

76

TOTAL $305.76

Please attach any fliers or back-up information regarding meetings listed above to be in
compliance with AB 1234. If there are no attachments, a verbal report is required.

San Gabriel Basin WQA
Board Member's Expense Sheet
edited for AB 1234 January 2017



Board Membe: Per Diem
$148.43 per meeling. § meeling maximunt per month

Wtz uakiy Mty

SES T

NAME: Mark Paulsan MONTH/YEAR:

# of Days $149.43
Mileage inia i exceec &3 PER DIEM

Total 1
T | 24.9 $1
DATE Expense Reimbu Amount
TOTAL
TOTAL
Deferred a
TOTAL
[ hereby certify that | have incurred end paid al) of the above expenses on behalf of the SAN
GABRIEL B INWATERQ ITY
Please ch any or back-up information mee listed above to be in compliance
with AB 1234, If there are no ments, a lreportisreq d.
S Baxin WQA
Board Members Exponss Shee!

adited for AB 1234 January 2017



Board Member Per Diem
$149.43 per meeting, 6 meeting maximum per month
Mileage Rate: $0.58 per mile (updaled January 2019)

Waler Quality Authority

SE S T

NAME MONTH/YEAR:

# of Days $149.43
Roundtrip Mileage (not to exceed PER DIEM

12019 - a.uz

| 4. 4%

0
DATE * Amount
|
457 Deferred Compensation Amount (enter a positive number)
TOTAL 1 U3
I hereby ¢ atl id all of the above expenses on behalf of the
SAN GAB ASI AUTHORITY

N’

Please attach any fliers or back-up information regarding meetings listed above to be in
compliance with AB 1234. If there are no attachments, a verbal report is required.

San Gabriel Basin WQA
Beard Member's Expense Sheet
edited for AB 1234 January 2017



Waler Quality Authority

NAME:

Dl! 15 WOA ¥YaavAd nt

DATE

TOTAL
TOTAL

457 Deferred Compensation Amount (enter a positive number)

I hereby certify that | have incurred and paid all of the above expenses on behalf of the
SAN GABRJEE-BASIN WATER-QUALITY AUTHORITY

Board Member Per Diem
$149.43 per meeting, 6 meeting maximum per month
Mileage Rate: $0.58 per mile (updaled January 2018)

MONTH/YEAR:

# of Days $149.43
Roundtrip Mileage (not to exceed 8 PER DIEM

P yq.4-
.\ P 4.4
0
Amount
TOTAL Ht Y3z

Please attach any fliers or back-up information regarding meetings listed above to be in
compliance with AB 1234. If there are no attachments, a verbal report is required.

San Gabriel Basin WQA
Board Member's Expense Sheel
edited for AB 1234 January 2017



San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority February 19, 2020

AF

The following demands on the Project Fund Account and Trustee Account at Bank of the West are hereby submitted for payment.

Check Funding
No. Payable to Description Amount Sources
E90749 RC Foster Corporation Project costs for Spare Parts
Invoice No 02-20-006, Spare parts costs for February 2020 72571
Invoice No 02-20-003, Spare parts program insurance coverage for
January thru December 2020 784.00 2,509 71 CR's
E90750 Avocet Environmental Inc Project costs for Whitmore Groundwater Treatment System/Hydropunch activities
Invoice No 5988 -Whitmore GW Treatment System 6,083 99
Invoice No 5989 - Round 1 Prop 1-Whitmore Hydropunch 6,244 00 12,327 99 WQA/Prop 1
4703  Trojan UV Invoice No 201/8295, Peroxide for Whitmore Street Groundwater 3,396 00 WQA

Remediation Facility Project

E90751 City of Monterey Park Project O&M Costs for Wells 5, 12, and 15 for January to March 2019

Invoice No 24423, Well #5 VOC O&M Costs 50,678.60

Invoice No 24424, Well #12 VOC O&M Costs 74,011 21

Invoice No 24426, Well #12 DB O&M Costs 55,586 78

Invoice No 24427, Well #15 VOC O&M Costs 26,858 72 207,135 31 EPA
E90752 City of Monterey Park Project O&M Costs for Wells 5, 12, and 15 for April to June 2019

Invoice No 24443, Well #5 VOC O&M Costs 56,484.15

Invoice No 24444, Well #12 VOC O&M Costs 210,097.64

Invoice No. 24446, Well #12 DB O&M Costs 54,695 63

Invoice No 24447, Well #15 VOC O&M Costs 27,785 93 349,063 35 EPA
E90753 City of Monterey Park Project O&M Costs for Wells 5, 12, and 15 for July to September 2019

Invoice No 24458, Well #5 VOC O&M Costs 33,396 82

Invoice No 24459, Well #12 VOC O8M Costs 75,886 19

Invoice No. 24461, Well #12 DB O&M Costs 30,222 39

Invoice No 24462, Well #15 VOC O&M Costs 25,834.71 165,340.11 EPA

E90754 San Gabriel Valley Water Co. Project T&R Costs for Plant 8 LGAC and Air Stripper for July thru September 2019

Invoice No 19-09281, Plant 8 A.S. for July 8,472 10
Invoice No 19-09282, Plant 8 LGAC for July 8,755.41
Invoice No 19-11330, Plant 8 A' S for August 21,117 27
Invoice No 19-11331, Plant 8 LGAC for August 11,788 77
Invoice No 19-11335, Plant 8 A S for September 14,309 83
Invoice No. 19-11336, Plant 8 LGAC for September 11 168 86 75612 24 EPA

Total Project Costs 815,384.71

E90755 City of Monterey Park Project O&M Costs for Well #1,3, 10 & Fern VOC January to September 2019
Invoice No. 24425, January to March 2019 165,703.65
Invoice No 24445, April to June 2019 155,212 44
Invoice No 24460, July to September 2019 34,129 72 355,045 81 RP's

E90756 San Gabriel Valley Water Co Project T&R Costs for Plant G4 LGAC for July to September 2019

Invoice No 19-09283, Plant G4 LGAC - July 6,057 78
Invoice No 19-11332, Plant G4 LGAC - August 6,502 66
Invoice No 19-11337, Plant G4 LGAC - September 7,246 07 19,806.51 RP's

Total Trustee Costs 374,852.32

Total Project and Trustee Costs  1,190,237.03

Page 1 of 1



San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority Fabruary 19, 2020

The following demands on the Project Fund Account at Bank of the West are hereby submitted for payment. Subsequent release of the
demands is expected to be on March 5, 2020, subject to approval and availability of funds pursuant to the BPOU Project Agreement Section
4.7 Payment of Invoices.

Check Funding
No. Payable to Description Amount Sources
E90757 La Puente Valley County WD Invoice No. 4-2020-01, Project T&R costs for January 2020 153,079.27 CR's
E90758 Main San Gabriel Basin Invoice No. 02-216, Administrative Project Costs for January 2020
Watermaster
Administrative costs 31,578.05
T&R costs 14,302.36 45,880 41 CR's
4704 Suburban Water Systems invoice No. 59880120, for project T&R costs for January 2020 40,646.24 CR's
4705 Valley County Water District Project costs for January 2020
Invoice No. 409, T&R costs 215,089.47
Invoice No. 410, T&R costs 53.518.73 268,608.20 CR's

E90759 California Domestic Water Co.  Project costs for January 2020

Invoice No 3346, T&R costs for Perchlorate 17,203.73

Invoice No. 3347, T&R costs for NDMA & VOC's 108,677.08 125,880.81 CR's
EQ0760 San Gabriel Valley Water Co.  Project costs for December 2019

Invoice No. 20-01023, B5 T&R costs 626,952.27

Invoice No. 20-01025, B6 T&R costs 380,498 88

tnvoice No. 20-02042, B6 Capital costs-UV Flex Treatment Plant 27,914.78 1,035,365 93 CRs

Total BPOU Project Costs  1,669,460.86

Page 1 of 1



San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority February 19, 2020

DRAFT

The following item on the Administration Fund Account at Bank of the West are submitted for payment as part of agenda
item Vil(a)1.

Check
No. Payable to Description Amount
7215 San Gabriel Valley Invoice No. 7112, Annual renewal of Leadership 20,000.00

Economic Partnership package and membership dues

TOTAL 20,000.00




AGENDA SUBMITTAL

To: WQA Board Members

From: Kenneth R. Manning, Executive Director
Date: February 19, 2020

Subject: Draft 2020 §406 Plan for Public Review

Background and Discussion

Section 406 of WQA's enabling act requires the WQA to develop and adopt a basinwide
groundwater quality management and remediation plan. The plan includes a characterization of
the contamination, a comprehensive cleanup plan, a summary of financing available, a description
of public outreach efforts and a discussion about the authorities of other agencies the WQA
interacts with to facilitate the basin cleanup effort.

In 2019, SB413 rescinded Section 711 (known as the 404 semi-annual update) of the enabling act
and added its reporting requirements to §406. While most of the requirements were already
included in the §406 Plan some new sections were added, including Project Prioritization,
Evaluating Project Effectiveness, Disadvantaged Communities and Human Right To Water.

Each year staff updates the §406 Plan and releases it for public comment prior to the Board
adopting it. A proposed public review and board adoption scheduled is attached.

Recommendation / Proposed Action

Staff recommends releasing the Draft 2020 §406 Plan for 25-day public comment period.

Attachments
Draft Public Comment Schedule
Draft 2020 §406 Plan



San Gabriel Basin Groundwater Quality

Management and Remediation Plan

“§406 Plan”

Draft: February 14, 2020

Jorge Marquez, Chairman - Bob Kuhn, Vice-Chairman - Mark Paulson, Treasurer - Valerie Munoz, Secretary

Mike Whitehead, Board Member - Lynda Noriega, Board Member - Ed Chavez, Board Member



TABLE OF CONTENTS

VOLUME |

LIST OF TERMS AND ACRONYMS ........coooeeieeeieiemecememnmnnnnnmememsnnnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsnsssssssnsssssssssssssssssssnsnnnen 6
SUMMARY ...t s s s s s s s s s s s s e e e aea e e e a e e e e e e n s 9
I LEGAL AUTHORITY Loiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesssssesssssssssssssssssesssssssesssssssssssssssssesssssesssesssssessssssssssnenes 1142
ll. POLICY STATEMENT FOR YEAR 2019 .....ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiieiesseessesssssesssssesesssssssesssssssssssssenene 1344
lll. BACKGROUND INFORMATION .....ccoooiiiiiiiiieeereeereresssssesesesssesssssssssssssesesssesessnssssssesssenene 1617
A.  OVERVIEW OF THE GROUNDWATER CONTAMINATION .....ooteuieieee et et eeee e 1612

B. OVERVIEW OF WQA AUTHORITY ...ooiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeteeeee e eeeeetee et e eteeeaseaeeneeeneeeaeeeseeseensesnsessnesseas 1718

C.  HISTORY OF WQA PLANNING ......oooviiitieiieieeeeeettecte ettt et ettt ettt evseeaeeeaeere e ens 1849
IV. GOALS OF THE WQA §406 PLAN.........cccccerremrrrrresmrerssssnnessssssnessssssnensssssmsssssssnsnsssssmsens 1920
A.  ACCELERATE REMOVAL OF CONTAMINANT MASS IN THE BASIN ......ccooooviiiiciiiiceeeeeeeeeeeeens 2021
B. PREVENT MIGRATION OF CONTAMINATION INTO CRITICAL GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES............ 2122
C. INTEGRATE CLEANUP WITH WATER SUPPLY. Ao .oovioeeeeeeeeeeees et ene e enennes 2122
D. MINIMIZE ECONOMIC IMPACT TO THE PUBLIC iu.ctiu ettt 2324
R 7 1L o I e 2425
AL DEFINITIONS .....ooueieieeeeeeeeee ettt e et e eteeteete et e s e eseeseeseeneese et enseeseeseeseeneersensennenens 2425
B.  REMEDIAL STANDARDS..{ i ieu.veifeeitiimmmenssenreeseeeseeeseeeseesseeseesseesseeseeesseeseeseesseeseeesessseessesssesseessees 2526

1. MSGBW SECHOMIZE. .. ctu. oo et 2526

2. LARWQCB Discharge ReqUIrEMENTS..........ccoouiriiiiieiieiiiieieieieie e 2627

3. DDW Treatment StandardsS.............coooovoiiioiiee e 2829

C. OVERARCHING REMEDIAL PRINCIPLES ......cvioviitiitieteeeeeeeeeeeeee et eveete et s s eaeeneeneensensenannes 303+
D.  OPERABLE UNIT SPECIFIC PLANS .....uuiiiiiiieie ettt ettt et e e e eaneeeane e 3132

E. EVALUATING PROJECT EFFECTIVENESS ......ccviivioveeeietieeeeeeeeee ettt aeeseeae v s eneensensensenaeas 3233
VI. PROJECT FUNDING......cccctiiiiiiiririsssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsnsssnsssnsnsn 3233
A.  POTENTIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARITIES......coiiitiitietieteeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eveeae e eneensenneaeas 3334
B.  FEDERAL GOVERNMENT ....oiitiiiititiitie ettt eeete e eete e e e e e eateeeaaeeeatessaseesaaeseasessesesessessaseesaseesnseanns 3435
C. RESTORATION FUND (DREIER).......c.ccititiiiiiitiieetiete et eeteeeete sttt eveeeeesaessesessesseeveessessassessensas 3435
D. TITLE XVttt ettt ettt ettt e eae et e eneentenseneenseieeas 3637

E.  STATE GOVERNMENT ....ooviitiitiecteeete et eee et e et e et eete et e eaaeenaeeteeeteeeteeesseneeeneseaeeeseeereenseenseerseeseenseas 3637

F.  WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY ..ooouieotiioteeeeeeeeeteeeteeeteeeteeeeeneeeteeeteeeseesssenseeneseneeeseeeseeseenseensesseesseas 3839



VIl. PROJECT PRIORITIZATION ...t s s 3940
A. PROCEDURE INO. 38......iiiieiiieieieietee ettt ettt b et ebeneenes 404+
B. HUMAN RIGHT TO WATER ......cetitetiiteetieteettestetesessesseessessessessessessessessesssassessessessessessesssassessessenns 4142
C. DISADVANTAGED COMMUNITIES.....cuietietieeieireiestesteeseeseessessessessessesseesesssessessessessessessesssassessessenss 4142
VIIl. CONTRACTOR SELECTION ... 4142
IX. PUBLIC INFORMATION...... .ot s e e s 4243
X. COORDINATION WITH OTHER AGENCIES .........ocoirimimninnnisnssncsnssss s sssnssseens 4445
XI.  LITIGATION PLAN ...ttt s s sn e sme s s s s sn e sane s 4546
Xll. FUTURE ACTIVITIES ......o ot s s sas s sssn s 4546
VOLUME I

APPENDIX A — OPERABLE UNIT SPECIFIC PLANS

APPENDIX B — NON-SPECIFIC OPERABLE UNIT PLANS

(NOTE: APPENDICES C, D, E ARE LOCATED IN VOLUME lil)

APPENDIX F - FEDERAL FUNDING PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

APPENDIX G — MEMBER WATER DISTRICT PROJECTS

TABLE 1 - MAJOR WQA ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES

TABLE 2 - ESTIMATED COST OF WQA-ASSISTED PROJECTS WITHIN OPERABLE UNIT
AREAS

TABLE 3 - ESHMATED-FUNDING-GAPSCHEDULE OF FUNDING FROM POTENTIALLY
RESPONSIBLE PARTIES AND OTHER SOURCES

TABLE 4 — ADDITIONAL EXISTING AND POTENTIAL PROJECTS BASINWIDE (WITH AND
WITHOUT WQA FUNDING)

TABLE 5 — PROJECT SCORING

TABLE 6 — PRIORITY RANKING

FIGURE 1 — SAN GABRIEL BASIN SUPERFUND SITE



FIGURE 2 - PRESCRIBED REMEDY (BALDWIN PARK OPERABLE UNIT)

FIGURE 3 - PRESCRIBED REMEDY (SOUTH EL MONTE OPERABLE UNIT)

FIGURE 4 - PRESCRIBED REMEDY (EL MONTE OPERABLE UNIT — SHALLOW ZONE)
FIGURE 5 - PRESCRIBED REMEDY (EL MONTE OPERABLE UNIT — INTERMEDIATE ZONE)
FIGURE 6 - PRESCRIBED REMEDY (WHITTIER NARROWS OPERABLE UNIT)

FIGURE 7 - PRESCRIBED REMEDY (PUENTE VALLEY OPERABLE UNIT — SHALLOW
ZONE)

FIGURE 8 - PRESCRIBED REMEDY (PUENTE VALLEY OPERABLE UNIT — INTERMEDIATE
ZONE)

FIGURE 9 — EARLY INVESTIGATION (AREA 3)
FIGURE 10 — SUPERFUND VS. NON-SUPERFUND CONTAMINATION

FIGURE 11 — DISADVANTAGED COMMUNITIES AN THE SAN GABRIEL BASIN

FIGURE 12 - NUMBER OF TREATMENT PLANTSOPERATING IN THE SAN GABRIEL
BASIN

FIGURE 13 — TOTAL AMOUNT OF WATER TREATED AND CONTAMINANTS REMOVED IN
THE SAN GABRIEL BASIN

VOLUME il

APPENDIX C-1 — MEMO FROM MK&B REGARDING REMEDIAL STANDARDS

APPENDIX C-2 - MEMO FROM LATHAM & WATKINS REGARDING ARARS

APPENDIX C-3 — MEMO FROM TCZB REGARDING LITIGATION STRATEGIES

APPENDIX C-4 — MEMO FROM OLIVAREZ MADRUGA REGARDING PRIOR LEGAL MEMOS

APPENDIX D-1 — AUTHORITY OF MAIN SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATERMASTER

APPENDIX D-2 — AUTHORITY OF STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD AND
LOS ANGELES REGIONAL WATER QUALITY CONTROL BOARD



APPENDIX D-3 — AUTHORITY OF STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

DEPARTMENT OF DRINKING WATER (FORMERLY CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF
PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES)

APPENDIX E — USEPA PLAN UPDATES FOR EACH OPERABLE UNIT



VOLUME |



§406

ACT

ARARs
ARMWC
Basin
Basin Plan
BATT
BPOU

CD

cbwcC
CEM
CERCLA

CrVi
CMP
CPUC
DAC
DDW

DTSC
DWR
EC
EMOU
ESD
ESPSD

General Permit

LIST OF TERMS AND ACRONYMS

San Gabriel Basin Groundwater Quality Management
and Remediation Plan

The California Safe Drinking Water Act (Health & Safety
Code §§ 116275 et seq.)

Applicable or Relevant and Appropriate Requirements

Adams Ranch Mutual Water Company

Main San Gabriel Basin

LARWQCB Los Angeles Basin Plan

Best Available Treatment Technology

Baldwin Park Operable Unit

Consent Decree

California Domestic Water Company

City of EI Monte

Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980

Chromium VI

City of Monterey Park

California Public Utilities Commission

Disadvantaged Community

State Water Resources Control Board - Division of
Drinking Water (prior 2014 known as California
Department of Public Health)

Department of Toxic Substances Control

Department of Water Resources

Emergent Chemicals

El Monte Operable Unit

Explanation of Significant Differences

East Side Performing Settling Defendants

LARWQCB Issued General NPDES Permit No.



GSWC
IROD
IRWMP
LACFCD
LARWQCB
LPVCWD
MCL

MHI
MSGBW
NCP

NDMA

NL

Northrop

NPDES

OAL

NPL

OEHHA

Oou

Process Memo 97-005

PRPs

PVOU

PVOUSC

QSA

Restoration Fund
RI/FS

ROD

SA1

SEMOU

CAG914001
Golden State Water Company
Interim Record of Decision
Integrated Regional Water Management Plan
Los Angeles County Flood Control District
Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board
La Puente Valley County Water District
Maximum Contaminant Level

Statewide Median Household Income

Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster

National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution
Contingency Plan (aka: National Contingency Plan)

N-Nitrosodimethylamine

Notification Level

Northrop Grumman Systems Corporation

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

Office of Administrative Law

National Priorities List

Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment

Operable Unit

State Water Resources Control Board — Division of
Drinking Water Process Memo 97-005

Potentially Responsible Parties

Puente Valley Operable Unit

Puente Valley Operable Unit Steering Committee

Quantification Settlement Agreement

San Gabriel Basin Restoration Fund

Remedial Investigation Feasibility Study

Record of Decision

Baldwin Park Operable Unit Subarea 1

South EI Monte Operable Unit




SGVMWD
SGVWC

SEMOU Barrier

SWP
SWRCB
SWS
TCP
DS
TVMWD
Title XVI
USBR
USEPA
USGVMWD
uTC
UWMP
VCWD
VOC
WSGRF
WQA
WQA Act

WSPSD

San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
San Gabriel Valley Water Company

South El Monte Shallow Extraction Barrier
State Water Project

State Water Resources Control Board
Suburban Water Systems
1,2,3-Trichloropropane

Total Disolved Solids

Three Valleys Municipal Water District

San Gabriel Basin Demonstration Project

United States Bureau of Reclamation

The United States Environmental Protection Agency
Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
United Technologies Corporation

Urban Water Management Plan

Valley County Water District

Volatile Organic Compound

Whitmore Street Groundwater Remediation Facility

Water Quality Authority

San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority's Enabling Act
SB1679 (Statutes of 1992, Chapter 776), as amended

West Side Performing Settling Defendants




Summary:

As in previous years, the San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority (“WQA”) is
revising its San Gabriel Basin Groundwater Quality Management and Remediation Plan
(“§406 Plan®). The §406 Plan, which is required by this agency’s enabling act (“WQA
Act”), Statutes 1992, Chapter 776 (West’s California Water Code Appendix, §134-101 et

seq.), as amended by Chapter 370 of the Statutes of 2019, promotes improvement of

groundwater quality in the San Gabriel Basin (“Basin”) by setting forth: (1) a general
process under which this plan shall be developed and implemented; (2) remedial goals;
and (3) a restatement of existing regulatory authority governing cleanup within the Basin
in addition to requirements of the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(“USEPA”). Additionally, elements of the §406 Plan fit into a framework of overarching
remedial principals and sets forth specific projects proposed to be facilitated by the
WQA or by others within the Basin.

Date:

This §406 Plan is effective March XX, 2020.

Address:

Supporting materials are available for viewing at WQA offices, located at 1720
W. Cameron Avenue, Suite 100, West Covina, CA 91790. WQA offices are open from
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding recognized holidays. It is
recommended that an appointment be made to review these materials by calling (626)
338-5555.

General Information:

For general information, WQA may be contacted at (626) 338-5555 between the
hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, excluding recognized holidays.

Various materials may also be viewed on-the-lnternet-at www.wga.com.

10



. Legal Authority

This §406 Plan is developed and adopted under the authority of the WQA Act.
§406 of the WQA Act requires the WQA “to “develop and adopt a basinwide
groundwater quality management and remediation plan” that is required-to-be-consistent
with the United—States—EnvironmentalProtection—Ageney's—(“USEPA’s”™} National
Contingency Plan (“NCP”) and applicable Records of Decision (“ROD”), and all
requirements of the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (“LARWQCB?”).
According to the WQA Act, the §406 Plan must include:

1) Characterization of Basin contamination;
2) A comprehensive cleanup plan;
3) Strategies for financing the design, construction, operation and maintenance of

groundwater cleanup facilities;

4) Provision for a public information and involvement program; and

5) Coordination of activities with federal, state, and local entities.

Furthermore, 8406 requires WQA to update“the §406 Plan on an annual basis and

incorporate a status report on activities. undertaken by the WQA pursuant to the §406

Plan. The status report must also include:

1) An overview of groundwater contamination in the San Gabriel Basin;

2) Goals for the basin groundwater:;

3) Coordination with other agencies;

4) Public outreach and information;

5) Funding from potentially responsible parties and other sources;

6) Status of non-operable unit specific plans;

7) For each operable unit:

a. Treatment and remediation plans;

b. Description of contamination plan:

c. Costs incurred ;

11



d. Beneficial uses of recovered water; and

e. Projected activities for the next reporting period.

8) A description of the manner in which projects are prioritized and selected for

funding and the manner in which contractors are selected, including

identification of projects in disadvantaged communities and those which

further human right to water; and

9) Criteria used to quantitatively evaluate projects for effectiveness.

In support of the §406 Plan, the WQA shall alse—adopt an annual fiscal year
budget (July 1 through June 30) which shall include all projects (actual or planned) that
WQA is facilitating through its participation during that time period. The budget shall
identify various funding sources and combinations. thereof to ensure that full funding for

each project (capital and/or O&M) can be achieved.

G). Note: [Relocated to Section X — Coordiniation with Other Agencies]

12



ll. Policy Statement for Year 2019

The WQA general policy statement is the foundation of the §406 Plan.
Therefore, the first steps in revising the §406 Plan are to review the past year’s activities
and to identify successes as well as challenges and obstacles that may have delayed or
hindered cleanup progress. Using that information as a basis, WQA can apply current
conditions and determine WQA's direction for the coming year.

WQA continues to engage and participate with regulatory agencies USEPA,
State Water Resources Control Board — Division of Drinking Water (“DDW”), Los
Angeles County Flood Control District (“LACFCD”), LARWQCB and the Department of
Toxic Substances Control (“DTSC”) to facilitate solutions in many areas of the Basin.
For example, a long-standing impediment to groundwater cleanup was removed
recently as WQA was successful in its efforts to secure a general temporary discharge
permit to facilitate the construction and testing of new extraction wells and treatment
facilities in the Basin. The approval of the permit was the culmination of years of
cooperative discussions with these agencies and served as a demonstration of an
effective policy that should continue.

Additionally the LARWQCB approved a new MS4 permit that provides greater
flexibility for city permittees to meet their obligations. The new permit could also benefit
water purveyors with treatment facilities that require temporary discharges and WQA
will continue to facilitate long-term solutions in this area.

Recent court cases and severe drought have contributed to a significant
reduction of replenishment water available from MWD. Due to the fragility of the Delta
water system, the WQA should continue to promote the Basin as a strategic regional
groundwater storage solution for supply reliability and the vital role it could play if all
imported supplies were suspended to the region by either a natural disaster or
institutional decisions. When viewed from this perspective, the Basin’s viability as part
of the region-wide strategic water supply plan rests on the ability to move cleanup

forward and assure its completion.

13



POLICY STATEMENT 2019

The WQA was created and authorized by the State Legislature to address the
critical need for coordinated and accelerated groundwater cleanup programs in the
Basin.

The WQA is committed: 1) to protecting public health and safety; 2) to
prioritizing, facilitating, and coordinating groundwater cleanup/supply programs
with local water providers, DDW, LARWQCB, LACFCD, DTSC and USEPA; and 3) to
minimizing local financial and economic impacts, including impacts on local
groundwater consumers.

The WQA recognizes that groundwater contamination issues in the Basin are
complex and that the USEPA Superfund response alone may not adequately
address the environmental, regulatory and financial issues that affect the one
million residents and the many thousands of businesses who rely primarily on the
Basin for potable water.

In addition, the WQA recognizes the critical nature of developing strategies
that ensure the Basin’s long-term reliability while reducing our reliance on imported
water and enhancing the Basin’s potential to meet regional strategic groundwater
storage demands.

In order to effectively coordinate the local water supply needs with cleanup,

containment, reliability and storage goals, the WQA will promote and participate in

technical, financial and regional partnerships, including partnerships with
responsible parties, wherever possible. Where partnerships with responsible
parties cannot be voluntarily formed, WQA will seek ways to move forward and
implement the necessary groundwater cleanup projects and will consider all
options to require financial participation from those responsible for the

contamination.

The WQA will continue to pro-actively address the growing problems of emerging
chemicals (“EC”), such as 1,4-Dioxane, 1,2,3-Trichloropropane (“TCP”) and Chromium
VI (“CrVI”) and the impact they have on the overall cleanup goals of the WQA.

In 2015, the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (“OEHHA”)
lowered the Public Health Goal for perchlorate to 1 ppb, and in 2017 DDW began the
process of re-evaluating the current 6 ppb MCL for perchlorate by studying the
feasibility of lowering the laboratory reporting limit for perchlorate to 1 ppb. Should
DDW ultimately decide to lower the MCL as well additional perchlorate treatment will be

required in the Basin. While the USEPA has announced that they will establish a

14



federal MCL their process is not expected to be completed prior to DDW’s process.
USEPA would most likely target an MCL close to the 1 ppb that was suggested by their
draft risk assessment released in 2002.

On July 1, 2014 an MCL of 10 ppb for CrVI became effective as the only CrVI
drinking water standard in the country. In 2015, SB385 was passed by the legislature to
establish compliance timeframes and assist water purveyors to come into compliance
with the new regulation. However, in May 2017 the Superior Court of Sacramento
County invalided the MCL noting that the “state failed to properly consider the economic
feasibility of complying with the MCL.” As a result, DDW has embarked on creating a
new CrVI regulation that is expected to take between 18 and 24 months to complete.

On December 14, 2017 an MCL of 5 ppt for 1,2,3-TCP became effective. A
Notification Level of 5 ppt existed previously and several wells in the Basin already have
treatment in place for this contaminant.

WQA will continue to coordinate activities while reviewing the potential impact of
these regulatory standards on current and planned treatment projects throughout the
Basin.

The WQA will continue to address orphan sites such as the shallow 1,4-Dioxane
plume in the SEMOU. WQA operates and maintains the Whitmore Street Groundwater
Remediation Facility to contain the 1,4-Dioxane contamination that threatens to further
degrade downgradient water supply wells and increase the cost of cleanup to residents.
The WQA will continue to coordinate with regulatory agencies to implement long-term
funding solutions.

While cleanup costs have grown, so have requests and competition for federal
and state funding (primarily due to nationwide perchlorate problems). At the same time,
local groundwater providers continue to face growing ambiguity and sometimes
conflicting federal and state requirements. WQA will continue to assist water entities
access state and federal funding.

The Policy Statement will become effective with the adoption of this document
and will remain in effect until institutional, environmental or other changes necessitate a

revision of the Policy Statement.

15



lll. Background Information

A. OVERVIEW OF THE GROUNDWATER CONTAMINATION

The San Gabriel Valley’s groundwater Basin has the dubious distinction of being
one of the most contaminated in the nation. The Basin’s groundwater is contaminated
from the ground disposal—dating back to World War Il— of volatile organic compounds
used primarily as solvents in industrial and commercial activities.

The seriousness of the groundwater contamination problem became evident
when high concentrations of volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”) were discovered in
Azusa in 1979 near a major industrial complex. Over the next four years, further
investigation revealed widespread VOC contamination significantly impacting the Basin.
This discovery led USEPA to place four portions of the Basin on the National Priorities
List (“NPL”) under authority of Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (“CERCLA”), also known as the Superfund
program. These areas are referred to as Operable Units (“OUs”) under CERCLA.
Currently, there are six active OUs: Baldwin Park, EI'Monte, South El Monte, Puente
Valley, Area 3 and Whittier Narrows.

Unfortunately, in 1997, newly detected contaminants, perchlorate and N-
Nitrosodimethylamine (“NDMA?”) liquid/solid rocket fuel, complicated and delayed
progress of cleanup activities. Most notably affected was the Baldwin Park Operable
Unit (“BPOU”) which has the largest geographical area in the San Gabriel Valley. This
led USEPA, state and local agencies to conduct further investigation of the sources and
treatment technologies available for remediating groundwater for potable use.

In prior years, several VOC treatment/supply projects were expanded at
significant costs to treat perchlorate and other emerging compounds. More recently,
many of these multiple treatment train projects were further burdened with increased
levels of VOCs. As a result, additional VOC treatment, also known as a secondary
barrier, was needed to meet DDW permitting requirements under their Technical
Memorandum 97-005. While the additional treatment is necessary, each step has

incrementally increased the costs of capital construction and operations and

16



maintenance resulting in an overall project cost 4 to 5 times the original VOC
treatment/supply project.

Beginning in the mid-2000’s Basin cleanup became impacted in terms of delayed
construction and increased costs by the growing concern for the surface water quality in
southern California. As environment groups filed subsequent lawsuits against the
LACFCD, the County in turn withdrew treatment facility access to many of its flood
control channels by the water purveyors. The channels are used temporarily during
start-up and testing procedures of treatment facilities.

While some significant projects remain, the overall cleanup focus in the Basin is
shifting from one of capital construction to one of treatment and remediation. However,
even in the Treatment & Remediation phase projects may still require capital
improvements dictated by new technology and new regulations. With cleanup projects
spanning multiple decades it makes sense in a lot of situations to install newer
technology when cost estimates can demonstrate a significant cost-savings over the life
of the project. A similar capital expense may be necessary when new regulations, such
as the establishment of a new MCL for an existing contaminant or the discovery and
regulation of a new contaminant, make it necessary to add treatment equipment to the

existing facilities.
B. OVERVIEW OF WQA AUTHORITY

The WQA was formed by special act of the California Legislature (Senate Bill
1679, Russell). The WQA Act gives WQA authority, inter alia, to plan for and to
coordinate among several agencies with authority affecting cleanup of the Basin. §406
of the WQA Act requires WQA to develop and adopt a basinwide groundwater quality
management and remediation plan. §406 further requires the plan to provide for: (1) a
characterization of the Basin’s contamination; (2) the development and implementation
of a comprehensive Basin cleanup plan; (3) the financing of the design, construction,
operation, and maintenance of groundwater cleanup facilities; (4) provisions for a public
information and participation program; (5) the coordination with federal, state and local
entities, including WQA member agencies; and (6) the maintaining of consistency with
the NCP, any applicable USEPA RODs, all LARWQCB requirements, and all applicable

17



cleanup agreements with federal, state and local agencies. The §406 Plan has to be
developed with an eye toward the statutory requirement that “the basinwide plan shall
consider the benefits to be achieved by the plan or any proposed project in relation to its

economic impact on persons or entities within the boundaries of the authority.”
C. HisTORY OF WQA PLANNING

As required by §406, WQA first adopted the §406 Plan in June of 1993. This
plan identified a mission and eight goals and served as the guiding principles over the
next six years of early action projects to remove and contain contamination (well ahead
of the Superfund-mandated process) and to characterize the extent and movement of
contamination.

Once the data, necessary to design and construct projects on a regional basis,
was available, including information on the extent and movement of groundwater
contamination, the WQA officially adopted the first amended §406 Plan on March 6,
2000. Since that time, the WQA, using the §406 Plan as its implementation guide,
facilitated the design and/or construction of several treatment facilities described within
the §406 Plan. A listing of WQA'’s major activities:and milestones can be found in Table
1.

As in previous years, the WQA will continue to assist USEPA with its response
efforts by engaging the authority of other-agencies. Section 102(b) of the WQA Act
declares legislative intent directing the WQA to coordinate among state and federal
government agencies to plan.and implement groundwater cleanup. The Remedial
Standards (Section V.B{b}) established by the §406 Plan (as required by Section 466

406 of the WQA Act) incorporate rules, regulations and standards previously adopted by

other agencies of the State of California. The Remedial Standards harmonize and
coordinate the requirements of the Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster (“MSGBW”),
the SWRCB, the LARWQCB, and the DDW. One purpose of the Remedial Standards is
to help integrate groundwater cleanup objectives with water supply objectives,
according to the legislative intent directive set forth in Section 102(a) of the WQA Act.
The USEPA has recognized some of these Remedial Standards as applicable or

relevant and appropriate requirements (“ARARs”). Federal Superfund Law requires

18



parties responsible for pollution to comply with ARARs in the process of carrying out
federal cleanup orders. ARARs include any State standard that is (1) more stringent
than any Federal requirement, (2) validly promulgated, (3) either "applicable" or
"relevant and appropriate" and has been identified by the State to the USEPA. Due in
part to the efforts of the WQA, the USEPA’s Unilateral Administrative Order (No. 2003-
17) for remedial design and remedial action in the SEMOU of the San Gabriel Valley
Superfund Sites, issued on August 28, 2003, (1) encourages the parties identified as
responsible for the pollution to integrate their cleanup obligations with water supply
projects that exist or are under development and (2) directs compliance with ARARSs,
such as meeting water quality standards for potable water service established by DDW
and/or for discharge of the product water established by the LARWQCB.

IV. Goals of the WQA §406 Plan

Originally, WQA's goals were developed as a result of discussions with federal,
state and local agencies, various stakeholders, and comments heard at public
workshops and hearings. Each year, the goals are re-evaluated to determine
applicability and whether any additional goals should be added. While these goals have
remained unchanged, WQA has expanded the descriptions under the four goals to

further validate WQA'’s focus. The four goals are:

Accelerate Removal of Contaminant Mass in the Basin;

Prevent Migration of Contamination into Critical Groundwater

Supplies;
Integrate Cleanup with Water Supply; and

Minimize Economic Impact to the Public.

In the following sections, each of the four goals are described in more detail.

19



A. ACCELERATE REMOVAL OF CONTAMINANT MASS IN THE BASIN

In recent years, it has become increasingly apparent that cleanup actions,
implemented earlier than CERCLA provides, are needed to address the immediate
threats to the local water supplies. The goal of accelerating the removal of contaminant
mass is fulfilled primarily by engaging the regulatory processes of other agencies of the
State, and, wherever possible, prompting the implementation of activities ahead of the
time required under the applicable regulatory process.

In the past, the WQA identified and focused its accelerated removal activities on
projects that could immediately be implemented to remove contaminant mass. In more
recent years, the focus has changed due to the ever-growing list of impacted water
supply wells. This widespread impact has necessitated the early implementation of
several treatment facilities by water purveyors, individually and jointly with the WQA
and/or other agencies well ahead of the mandate from regulatory agencies.

With the rapid migration of contamination towards critical water supplies, the
WQA now primarily focuses on projects that will accelerate and advance cleanup
activities while providing a clean water supply or protecting a nearby water source.
More of these types of early actions are necessary to either (1) remove contaminant
mass to immediately prevent further degradation of downgradient aquifers, (2) contain
the spread of contamination to protect critical water supplies, (3) restore critical water
supplies, or (4) combine the aferementioned.

Although early actions are implemented before a regulatory mandate, there has
and will continue to be extensive coordination with USEPA, DTSC, DDW and the
LARWQCSB to link the early action to the eventual mandate. By working closely with
USEPA, the WQA and other local stakeholders can affect USEPA’s decision-making
and identify certain high priority cleanup projects that are consistent with USEPA’s
objectives. Although USEPA cannot formally endorse and mandate cleanup until a
rigorous process is completed, WQA can facilitate and assist in the implementation of
the required action well before the mandate. Several crisis situations exist within the
Basin that demand this type of immediate action as described in Appendix A. Waiting

on mandated actions have already had severe impacts in many parts of the Basin.

20



B. PREVENT MIGRATION OF CONTAMINATION INTO CRITICAL GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES

In many parts of the Basin, the contamination continues to spread towards, and
threaten groundwater supply wells. Given that so many supply wells have already been
shut down, the current situation continues to represent a significant threat to the Basin’s
water supply. Therefore, priority must be given to implementing cleanup projects that
will prevent the loss of water supplies. In order to meet this goal, contaminant migration
controls must be implemented quickly so that constituents will be prevented from
entering clean supplies. Further, this action must also prevent constituents from
entering supplies with existing treatment not built or suited to treat the threatening
contaminant(s). The goal to contain the contamination is supported with actions that
specifically address threats to groundwater pumping centers. Loss of major production
centers will continue to impair the water supply unless these types of threats are
immediately addressed in a cleanup plan. In furtherance of this goal WQA has
allocated funding to assist purveyors in discrete well destruction activities to ensure that
non-producing wells do not act as a conduit for contaminant migration

The MSGBW has existing rules and regulations which govern the location and
production of water wells for water quality purposes.. The WQA under this §406 Plan
will work with the MSGBW and its existing rules and regulations to help contain and

control the migration of contaminants within the Basin.
C. INTEGRATE CLEANUP WITH WATER SUPPLY

With so much of the state and local water supply impaired, it is essential that
water treated from the cleanup projects be put to its highest and best use. Putting the
treated water back into the supply system will serve to enhance the overall water supply
situation in the Basin and help many water purveyors mitigate the threat to their water
supply. The desired objectives can be achieved by maximizing the use of existing
facilities that have either been shut down or have been impaired. When new facilities
are needed, these should be integrated into the supply of the appropriate water
purveyor.

If cleanup facilities are built without the consideration of the local supply, then

many water purveyors will be forced to build redundant treatment facilities on impaired

21



wells or import increasingly scarce surface supplies from other areas. Currently, water
purveyors only use treated surface water sources when they are readily available or
when groundwater sources become impaired or unavailable; otherwise the predominant
source of supply is from the local groundwater.

Although cleanup projects that put treated water to beneficial use will provide
localized benefits, there are, of course, broad benefits that impact the regional water
supply situation in California. The necessity to develop new sources and to fully utilize
existing sources is very evident in court decisions within the State and the Colorado
River Watershed. For example, the 2003 Quantification Settlement Agreement (“QSA”)
between the United States Department of the Interior and Southern California Colorado
River users restricts the State’s withdrawal of Colorado River water to its original
allotment of 4.4 million acre-ft per year in non-surplus years. In addition, the
dependability of the State Water Project (“SWP”) is decreasing as a result of a lack of
storage facilities. Furthermore, in 2007, United States District Court Judge Oliver
Wanger ordered that the California Department of Water Resources and the United
States Bureau of Reclamation (“USBR”) must reduce pumping from the Sacramento
Delta in order enhance the Delta Smelt population. This decision and his subsequent
decisions have the effect of significantly reducing:SWP availability. Now more than
ever, it is critical to protect and develop the groundwater resources so that both
groundwater and surface waters of the State can be managed more effectively. Critical
to this statewide need is the full utilization and restoration of the Basin groundwater.

The Los Angeles County Superior Court has Constitutional authority, through its
continuing jurisdiction under the Judgment in the case of Upper San Gabriel Valley
Municipal Water District v. City of Alhambra, LACSC 924128, to promote the beneficial
use of water and to prevent the waste of water in the Basin. Through the Court’s
continuing jurisdiction under the Judgment, the MSGBW has adopted rules and
regulations governing the location and production of water wells for water quality
purposes. The LARWQCB has Constitutional, statutory and regulatory authority to
regulate discharges to waters of the State, to promote the beneficial use of water, and
to prevent the waste of water. DDW has statutory and regulatory authority to set and

enforce standards for public drinking water systems, including acceptable water

22



treatment processes. The WQA intends to engage the existing rules, regulations and
standards of these agencies of the State to coordinate and promote the reasonable and
beneficial use of water produced and treated under mandate from the USEPA. The
WQA recognizes that a number of voluntary or consensual arrangements ultimately will
be required to implement the objective to integrate water cleanup operations and water
supply operations in the Basin. In addition to engaging existing regulatory authority held
by other agencies, WQA intends to encourage the needed voluntary or consensual
arrangements through the exercise of authority under the WQA Act, including its
authority to seek recovery of WQA's costs to respond to and cleanup groundwater

contamination in the Basin.
D. MiNnimize EcoNoMmic IMPACT TO THE PUBLIC

The issue of who pays for the cleanup is often the biggest obstacle in initiating
the necessary cleanup programs. Although PRPs may-be held completely liable for the
costs of a response action under the CERCLA mandate, actions normally do not occur
until a lengthy process is completed. Equally detrimental to the water supply crisis is
the fact that there is no assurance that the immediate water supply concerns will be
addressed under CERCLA. Therefore, many water purveyors may still need to
construct and bear the expense of operating their own treatment facilities or look for
alternative supplies at their own expenseeven after the PRPs fulfill their obligation
under CERCLA.

Adding to the economic complexity of the situation is the fact that USEPA
conducts its own detailed financial evaluation of PRPs and may settle for a reduced
amount. And even then, many businesses cannot fully absorb the financial liability
without detrimentally impacting their businesses. In the meantime, the spread of
contamination continues to impact more water supply sources and, by extension, the
basic reliability of plentiful water to support the economic basis and vitality of the Basin.
To address this goal, WQA has pursued and continues to aggressively pursue sources
of funding from responsible parties and the federal/state government. Despite these
efforts, organizations like WQA and some of the local water purveyors have had to pool

their own resources to immediately initiate many of the required response actions. This

23



has required a financial commitment on behalf of the local public (at least initially).

Early actions financed outside of the CERCLA process have been necessary to assure
that many of the critical projects are implemented quickly. In addition, cleanup projects
such as those prescribed by WQA are designed from a local perspective to address
groundwater cleanup in conjunction with the water supply. However, costs borne by the
public for this effort would have to be absorbed or recovered through litigation.

To accommodate potentially conflicting goals between accelerating cleanup and
minimizing impact to water rate payers, WQA has identified high priority response
actions that can be implemented ahead of USEPA’s mandate using available financial
resources, including federal reimbursement funding, and in some cases, financial
participation from PRPs. If a required project lacks sufficient funding, a commitment by
the affected water purveyors and/or WQA through its assessment, along with other
potential local sources, will be required. Where WQA is required to use its own
assessment to quickly assist in the development of a project, WQA will always consider
cost recovery actions to minimize costs borne by the public. To that end, WQA has filed
two cost recovery actions and may be considering other cost recovery actions against
those responsible entities that chose not to participate in the sponsored early remedial

actions.
V. §406 Plan

A. DEFINITIONS

1. This §406 Plan incorporates by reference the definitions of “facility,”

“hazardous substance,” “national contingency plan,” and “person”. The terms “remedial

action,” or “remedy,” or “cleanup,” or “remediation,” are used interchangeably herein.

Additionally, such terms are intended to be encompassed by the definitions of “remove”,

‘removal, remedial action,
those terms are defined in Title 42 (CERCLA) of the United States Code, § 9601, as

amended.

remedy, respond,” or “response,” as appropriate and as

24



2. This §406 Plan incorporates by reference Title 42 of the United States Code,
§9607 (a), as amended, the class of persons who are PRPs for the cleanup of

hazardous substances.
B. REMEDIAL STANDARDS

The WQA has identified certain appropriate rules, regulations and standards for
the management of Basin remedial actions from among the rules, regulations and
standards promulgated by the MSGBW, LARWQCB and DDW. The rules, regulations
and standards specified below are incorporated by reference in this §406 Plan and
adopted as the Remedial Standards of the WQA.

These Remedial Standards, and the underlying existing rules, regulations and
standards of the MSGBW, LARWQCB and DDW are additional requirements of the
State which are ARARs to remedial actions ordered by the USEPA in the Basin. (See
Appendix C-2).

The WQA will engage the existing procedures of the MSGBW, LARWQCB and
DDW to implement the following Remedial Standards.so that all remedial actions

affecting Basin groundwater shall be conducted accordingly.

1. MSGBW SECTION 28
In furtherance of two objectives of this §406 Plan to prevent migration of

contamination into critical groundwater supplies and to integrate cleanup activities with
water supply operations, production of Basin water for remedial action purposes shall
be carried out in conformance with Section 28 of the Rules and Regulations adopted by
the MSGBW under authority of the Amended Judgment in Upper San Gabriel Valley
Municipal Water District vs. City of Alhambra, Los Angeles County Superior Court Case
No. 924128. (See Appendix D-1). Under this Remedial Standard water wells used for
remedial action purposes shall be located, with the approval of the MSGBW, both to
prevent migration of contaminated groundwater and to best integrate the water
produced for remedial action with water supply operations in the Basin. If necessary,
WQA will engage the existing implementation and enforcement procedures of the
MSGBW to carry out this Remedial Standard. Section 28 of the MSGBW Rules and
Regulations is attached as Appendix D-1 and incorporated herein.

25



2. LARWQCB DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
In furtherance of an objective of this §406 Plan to integrate cleanup activities with

water supply operations, disposal of Basin water produced for remedial action purposes
shall be carried out in conformance with discharge requirements issued by the
LARWQCB and, if necessary, approved by the SWRCB. (See Appendix D-2). Under
this Remedial Standard, Basin water produced and treated for remedial action purposes
shall not be wasted and such water shall be put to the greatest reasonable and
beneficial use of which it is capable. Conversely, the waste and unreasonable use or
unreasonable method of use of such waters shall be prohibited. Additionally, under this
Remedial Standard, Basin water produced and treated for remedial action purposes
shall not be discharged to the environment except in conformance with discharge
requirements issued by the LARWQCB.

The SWRCB and the LARWQCB are both subject to the requirements of the
California State Constitution and California Water Code § 100 et seq. to promote the
greatest reasonable and beneficial uses of the waters of the State and to prevent the
waste and unreasonable use and unreasonable‘'method of use of those waters.
SWRCB’s express statutory authority to prevent the waste and unreasonable use of

water is set forth in Water Code § 275 which provides as follows:

“The department and board shall take all appropriate
proceedings or..actions before executive, legislative, or
judicial agencies to prevent waste, unreasonable use,
unreasonable method of use, or unreasonable method of

diversion of water in this state”

The LARWQCB exists, pursuant to Water Code §§ 13200-13201, as a branch of
the SWRCB. The LARWQCB exercises its authority to regulate discharges to promote
the beneficial use of water and prevent waste through the issuance of waste discharge
requirements. Waste discharge requirements are predicated upon the water quality
control plan (“Basin Plan”) that each regional board is required to promulgate according
to Water Code § 13241. Water Code § 13263(a) requires each regional board to issue

discharge permits in conformity with its adopted Basin Plan.

26



Discharge requirements issued by the LARWQCB must be conditioned, taking
into consideration the beneficial use of water, pursuant to Water Code § 13263(a), as

follows:

“The regional board, after any necessary hearing, shall
prescribe requirements as to the nature of any proposed
discharge, existing discharge, or material change in an
existing discharge, except discharges into a community
sewer system, with relation to the conditions existing in the
disposal area or receiving waters upon, or into which, the
discharge is made or proposed. The requirements shall
implement any relevant water quality control plans that have
been adopted, and shall take into consideration the
beneficial uses to be protected, the water.quality objectives
reasonably required for that purpose, other waste
discharges, the need to prevent nuisance, and the provisions
of Section 13241.”

Thus, in enacting Water Code §§ 13241 and 13263, the State has expressly
stated its intent that the regional boards exercise their authority to regulate discharges
to promote the beneficial use of water and prevent waste through the issuance of waste
discharge requirements. Pursuant to the express terms of these statutes, this authority
includes the prohibition on any discharge that is wasteful and does not promote the
beneficial use of water.

The State has been approved to issue National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System (“NPDES”) Program permits under the Federal Clean Water Act. Under that
authority, the LARWQCB issued General NPDES Permit No. CAG914001 (the “General
Permit”), adopted by Order No. R4-2018-0087 on June 14, 2018. The General Permit
establishes Waste Discharge Requirements for discharges of Treated Groundwater
from Investigation and/or Cleanup of Volatile Organic Compounds Contaminated-Sites
to Surface Waters in Coastal Watersheds of Los Angeles and Ventura Counties. The

General Permit prohibits, for example, the daily discharge of an effluent containing more

27



than 6 ppb perchlorate (See General Permit, Attachment F, Table 6 (Effluent
Limitations)).

The standards contained in the General Permit are ARARs. They were properly
promulgated because they were adopted pursuant to the authority granted to the State
under 40 CFR parts 122 and 123 and Section 402 of the Clean Water Act and other
State authorities, including Water Code § 13263. The General Permit is generally
applicable — it serves as a general NPDES permit and covers discharges to all surface
waters in the Los Angeles Region (See General Permit, §[23.). It is enforceable both
administratively and through the Superior Court (See Water Code §§ 13300 et seq.).
Finally, the General Permit standards are legally applicable or relevant and appropriate
as state standards stricter than current federal standards. Thus, the standards set forth
in the General Permit are ARARSs.

If necessary, WQA will engage the implementation and enforcement procedures
of SWRCB and LARWQCB to carry out this Remedial Standard. The applicable rules,
regulations and standards of SWRCB and LARWQCB are attached as Appendix D-2

and incorporated herein.

3. DDW TREATMENT STANDARDS
In furtherance of an objective of this §406 Plan to integrate cleanup activities with

water supply operations, water treatment for remedial action purposes shall be carried
out in conformance with treatment standards for public drinking water systems adopted
by the DDW. (See Appendix D-3).. Under this Remedial Standard, Basin water
produced and treated for remedial action purposes shall not be wasted and such water
shall be put to the greatest reasonable and beneficial use of which it is capable.
Conversely, the waste and unreasonable use or unreasonable method of use of such
waters shall be prohibited. Under authority of §106 of the California Water Code,
domestic use is the highest beneficial use of water. Unless discharge or other use of
the Basin water produced and treated for remedial action purposes is approved by the
LARWQCSB, all such water shall be made available for domestic use through public
drinking water systems or recycled water systems. Under this Remedial Standard,
Basin water produced for remedial action, with the approval of the DDW, shall be

integrated into water supply operations in the Basin.

28



The California Safe Drinking Water Act (Health & Safety Code §§ 116275 et
seq.) (the “Act”), contains public water supply permitting provisions which authorize
DDW to set permit conditions for water delivered by public water systems. In Section
116270(e) of the Act, the Legislature declared its intent to “ensure that the water
delivered by public water systems of this state shall at all times be pure, wholesome,
and potable.” In addition, in Section 116270(g) of the Act, the Legislature declared its
intent “to establish a drinking water regulatory program within the DDW in order to
provide for the orderly and efficient delivery of safe drinking water within the state and to
give the establishment of drinking water standards and public health goals greater
emphasis and visibility within the state department.”

In 1997, the then Chief of the Division of Drinking Water and Environmental
Management of the California Department of Public Health drafted a “Guidance for
Direct Use of Extremely Impaired Sources” memorandum known as Policy Memo 97-
005. This memorandum provides guidance to DDW staff on the evaluation of extremely
impaired sources of water for use as a supply of drinking water. In 2015, DDW staff
produced a draft update version of the memo entitling it “Addressing the Direct
Domestic Use of Extremely Impaired Sources Process Memo 97-005 Initially
Established November 5, 2015” (“Process Memo:97-005).

Pursuant to Process Memo 97-005, the following findings are required of DDW

for approval to use an extremely impaired source:

(1) Drinking water MCLs, action levels for lead and copper,
and Notification Levels? (formerly Action Levels) will not be

exceeded if the permit is complied with; and

' An extremely impaired source, according to Process Memo 97-005, is one that meets two or more of the
following criteria: 1) exceeds 10 times an MCL or action level (AL) based on chronic health effects, 2 )
exceeds 3 times an MCL or AL based on acute health effects, 3) contains one or more contaminants
meeting criteria (1) or (2) above and the source has not been adequately characterized by responsible
parties, 4) is a surface water that requires more than 4 log Giardia/5 log virus reduction, 5) is a surface
water source that contains more than 5% treated waste water, unless associated with approved drinking
water-related surface water augmentation project, 6) is extremely threatened with contamination due to
proximity to known contaminating activities, 7) contains a mixture of contaminants of health concern or 8)
is designed to intercept known contaminants of health concern.

2 As a result of an amendment in 2005 to Health & Safety Code § 116455, Action Levels have now been
replaced by Notification Levels. As defined in Section 116455, a “Notification Levels” are “nonregulatory,

29



(2) The potential for human health risk is minimized by
treatment, and the risk from treatment failure is minimized
through good engineering practices that may involve
redundancies in treatment, and efficiencies in maintenance,

inspections, monitoring, and alarms.

As set forth in Appendix C-2, the permit conditions in Process Memo 97-005 will
be considered state ARARs if (1) they are more stringent than federal standards (2)
they are properly promulgated standards, requirements, criteria or limitations, and (3)
they are legally applicable or relevant and appropriate. The Process Memo 97-005
permit requirements are more stringent than federal standards. The requirements were
“properly promulgated” because they are based on laws adopted by the California
Legislature and administrative standards developed by the DDW. Finally, they are of
general applicability to anyone who introduces water from extremely impaired sources
into the drinking water system. Thus, the permit conditions in Process Memo 97-005
are ARARs.

If necessary, WQA will engage the implementation and enforcement procedures
of the DDW to carry out this Remedial Standard. A copy of Process Memo 97-005 and
the applicable rules, regulations and standards of DDW are attached as Appendix D-3

and incorporated herein.
C. OVERARCHING REMEDIAL PRINCIPLES

These principles represent the general guidelines that will steer the
implementation of the strategies and tactics contained in this §406 Plan.

1. Consensual participation in remedial activities shall be maximized.

2. Consistency with USEPA actions and MSGBW Section 28 shall be

maintained.

health-based advisory levels established by the department for contaminants in drinking water for which
maximum contaminant levels have not been established. Notification levels are established as
precautionary measures for contaminants that may be considered candidates for establishment of
maximum contaminant levels, but have not yet undergone or completed the regulatory standard setting
process prescribed for the development of maximum contaminant levels and are not drinking water
standards.”

30



3. Control of decisions by the local public (i.e., producers and the water
consumers/rate payers they represent) affecting groundwater quality and water supplies
shall be maintained.

4. Expedite remedial activities, as appropriate, by providing incentives, such
as (a) avoiding litigation costs and risks (e.g. adverse judgment, exposure to other
PRPs/agencies, etc.), (b) providing funds from federal, state, the WQA or other sources,
and (c) utilizing existing water producing/treatment equipment, where appropriate.

5. The overall economic impact to water consumers shall be minimized for all
response actions by requiring financial participation from any party responsible for the
contamination. Within the discretion of the WQA, a cost recovery action, including, but
not limited to, a request for joint and several liability, will be initiated against any
responsible party not participating at a financial level acceptable to WQA.

6. WQA shall facilitate the acceleration of the removal of contaminant mass
in the Basin by working with the USEPA, DTSC, LARWQCB, DDW, water purveyors
and PRPs to (a) identify high priority cleanup projects that are consistent with USEPA

objectives, and (b) begin implementation of the required remedy as soon as possible.
Cleanup projects that prevent or otherwise restrict the lateral or vertical migration of
contamination shall be given higher ranking overthose cleanup projects that do not
prevent such migration.

7. Treated water shall be used for its highest and best use.
D. OPERABLE UNIT‘SPECIFIC PLANS

After more than 20 years of studies and investigations, USEPA's CERCLA
activities have progressed to a point where the configuration of the required remedies,
in conjunction with local needs, can be determined in most areas. In general, these
remedies include multiple groundwater extraction and treatment facilities designed to
remove and contain the spread of contamination. Appendix A summarizes WQA'’s
specific plans for the individual OUs including key components and OU specific issues.
Table 2 identifies the annual estimated costs of each project within the Basin OU
boundaries through FY21/22.

31



E. EVALUATING PROJECT EFFECTIVENESS

During the initial stages of a potential treatment project extensive studies are

conducted to ensure the project is located in the appropriate area to achieve:

e an effective contaminant capture and containment zone

e the halting of contamination migration into adjacent clean

water supplies

e meeting the water supply objectives of the affected water

purveyor

WQA plays a key role during this evaluation process to ensure that each project

provides the greatest protection to the water supply of the residents of the Basin while

minimizing any economic impact. WQA has developed the following criteria to evaluate

projects for effectiveness:

e How much contaminant mass.is removed from the

Basin?
e How much of the treated wateris.used for beneficial

purposes?
e How many downgradient wells are being protected?

e Does the projectintegrate cleanup with water supply?

WQA also considers that'overall impact of the combined cleanup projects.

Figure 12 demonstrates the number of treatment plants coming online has grown

steadily since WQA's inception in 1993. The total pounds of contaminants removed and

acre-feet of water treated are shown in Figure 13.

VI. Project Funding

The WQA has and continues to be committed to accelerating cleanup, integrating

cleanup with water supply, preventing migration, and minimizing the financial impact to

32



the public through its annual assessment. In order to meet these goals, adequate
funds, primarily from PRPs, state and/or federal programs, are necessary for
implementation. And as can be discerned in the project section of this Plan, much of
the Basin’s needs are now focused on long-term remediation costs which make up most
of the $547-6$500.2 million funding gap in Table 3. While the WQA recognizes that
PRPs must fulfill their CERCLA liabilities, it is often a very slow process - a process that
jeopardizes the time and cost of implementing projects. In addition, even though
USEPA has urged PRPs to consider affected water supplies, the CERCLA process
does not allow USEPA to require it. It is for these reasons that WQA is determined to
aggressively seek funds from PRPs before, during and after project implementation,
either voluntarily, through mandated CERCLA actions or through litigation measures. If
funds cannot be generated from PRPs to begin an identified early action project, WQA
will work with individual purveyors, MSGBW and/or other local agencies to develop
funding for the project using federal and/or state funds; WQA member agency funds,
including individual purveyors, and only if necessary, its own assessment. This section
prioritizes each potential source of funding in the order of which it will be sought for a

particular early response action.
A. POTENTIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARITIES

As stated previously, WQA will. seek:voluntary funds from those responsible for
the contamination. If the process of acquiring those funds is unilaterally stalemating or
delaying the project, the WQA will move forward without this source of funds to ensure
necessary cleanup/water supply projects are implemented.

The WQA is committed to securing PRP funding for any given project by
providing incentives for PRPs to participate financially. In the absence of sufficient PRP
funds, WQA and others may be required to combine its resources to fund a project. In
this event, WQA may choose to initiate cost recovery actions. This was the case in the
BPOU, in which WQA brought two separate legal actions against PRPs in the year 2000
to recover costs incurred from the La Puente Valley County Water District (‘LPVCWD”)

Treatment Plant and the Big Dalton Well Treatment Facility.

33



In 2002, WQA along with three affected purveyors (“water entities”) jointly settled
with 13 of the more that 60 PRPs in the SEMOU. Thereafter, the WQA and water
entities initiated litigation against the remaining PRPs in order to maximize the
recoverable dollars in an operable unit with very high estimated costs and very little
potential funding from PRPs. As part of the overall financial and technical process, the
USEPA and the DTSC were engaged due to their respective roles in the SEMOU. A
portion of the PRP settlements cover ROD costs and are provided to the water entities
via a cooperative agreement between WQA and the USEPA. The settlements also
include some direct funding for non-ROD costs. Nevertheless, these early settlements
did not fully cover the project costs. In recognition of the funding shortfall, the USEPA
obtained $2.65 million in gap funding from their Superfund program to help offset a
portion of the water entity ROD costs. In total, $35.3 million in settlements have been
negotiated and obtained from the PRPs. DTSC is expected to take on the longer term
regulatory responsibility once it is declared a fund-leadoperable unit by the USEPA and

the State of California.
B. FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

The WQA, with the support and assistance of other local agencies, has sought
and continues to seek all funding that may be available for projects in the Basin. As a
result of those efforts, two federal programs-have been authorized by Congress
specifically for the Basin. Both of these reimbursement programs are administered
through the USBR directly to.the WQA. In February of 2002, WQA adopted a set of
procedures called the Federal Funding Program Administration (Appendix F) to guide
the allocation process for both programs.

Both sources of federal funding will be used to the maximum extent possible to
accelerate cleanup and to provide incentives for PRPs to address affected water

suppliers while implementing cleanup actions in the Basin under CERCLA.
C. RESTORATION FUND (DREIER)

In December of 2000, through the leadership of former Congressman David

Dreier, Congress authorized the San Gabriel Basin Restoration Fund (“Restoration

34



Fund”). The original authorization of the Restoration Fund provided $85 million for
groundwater cleanup of which $10 million was for use by the Central Basin Municipal
Water District (“CBMWD”) to cleanup the Central Basin and $75 million was for use by
the WQA to cleanup the Basin. In March 2009, Dreier successfully led an effort to
increase the total authorization to $142.6 million. That increased the respective
Restoration Fund authorizations to $125 million for WQA and $17.2 million for CBMWD.
To date, the CBMWD has received $10 million and WQA has received $70,567,509".
The WQA Board has already allocated the $70,567,509 for cleanup projects throughout
the Basin based on criteria found in its Federal Funding Program Administration
guidelines.

This program requires a 35% non-federal match deposited into the Restoration
Fund to reimburse the WQA up to a maximum of 65% from federal sources. Non-
federal funds are classified as funds that are not from the Department of the Interior, but
rather PRP funds, state funds, local municipality funds; purveyor funds, WQA
assessment funds or non-profit funds. Funds from this program may be used for
design, construction and operation & maintenance for-.up to 10 years following
construction. The Restoration Fund is administered via the USBR in conjunction with
the WQA for use within the Basin.

Congress acknowledged that millions of dollars had already been spent to
protect the Basin by remediating the groundwater and preventing further contamination.
Due to the emergency nature of the contamination and the threat it posed to the local
groundwater supply, Congress allowed the use of those past expenditures as a credit
towards the 35% non-federal matching requirement under this program. The USBR is
responsible for approving all qualifying prior expenditures. However, the WQA, at its
discretion, will use this credit to meet the 35% matching requirement and eliminate the
need to deposit additional funds into the Restoration Fund.

As of 2008, WQA had accumulated past cleanup cost information totaling more

than $47 million. This amount was sufficient to meet the 35% non-federal matching

1 The first year appropriation was $25 million but $2 million was retained by the Army Corp for costs
related to an independent study and $10 thousand was retained for administrative costs which resulted in
a reduced FY 2001 appropriation of $22.99 million.

35



requirement for the original $75 million authorization. Based on more recent
information, it is clear that additional funding will be required to continue the progress of

ensuring that remedial activities will be combined with local water supply needs.
D. TiTLE XVI

In 1992, Congress authorized the San Gabriel Basin Demonstration Project to
implement conjunctive use projects in the Basin. By implementing cleanup projects that
provide a reliable source of water and reduce the need for outside sources of water,
many of the Basin’s cleanup projects are eligible for this program.

This program requires a 75% match from non-federal sources to reimburse the
project up to a maximum of 25% from federal sources. Funds from this program may
be used for design and construction only. The Title XVI fund is administered via the
USBR directly to the WQA for use within the Basin.

In 2004, Congresswoman Grace Napolitano authored H.R. 1284 which was
passed and signed into law. The legislation raised the cap on the Title XVI program by
$6.5 million. The total authorization for the Title’XVI program is now $44.5 million.

Based on the Basin’s enormous need for funds, the WQA will (1) continue to
work to secure full appropriation of the remaining.funds in the Title XVI authorization,
and (2) work with Congress to seek legislation authorizing the transfer of any

unobligated funds in the Title XVI program:to the Restoration Fund.
E. STATE GOVERNMENT

California voters have passed several Propositions over the past two decades
that contain funding for various water-type projects. WQA has aggressively sought and
been successful in securing funding from these Propositions for Basin projects. The list
includes: Proposition 13 — the Safe Drinking Water, Clean Water, Watershed Protection,
Flood Protection Bond Act of 2000; Proposition 50 — the Water Security, Clean Drinking
Water, Coastal and Beach Protection Act of 2002; and Proposition 84 — the Safe
Drinking Water, Water Quality and Supply, Flood Control, River and Coastal Protection
Bond Act of 2006.

36



In 2014, voters passed Proposition 1 — the Safe, Clean, and Reliable Drinking
Water Supply Act of 2014. The Proposition requires a 50% match and includes
language that would allow funding to be used for both Capital and Treatment &
Remediation components of cleanup projects. The groundwater section also contains
language that is favorable to the WQA's efforts by giving preference to NPL- listed sites
such as the San Gabriel Basin.

In 2018, voters passed Proposition 68 — the Parks, Environment and Water
Bond. This bond requires a 50% match and contains language to effectively clarify and
authorize the use of $80M in Prop 1 funding for Treatment and Remediation activities.
Similar to previous years, WQA will closely monitor the implementation process and
provide input as appropriate. Additionally, WQA will assist water purveyors with
application preparation and support to maximize the funding opportunities.

Furthermore, the WQA will seek to place similar language in any future water
bond ballot measures. Working with other water entities in the Basin, the WQA will
continue to lead efforts to formulate a comprehensive approach to water infrastructure
in the Basin. The WQA will look to any future proposed bond packages for much
needed funding for cleanup projects in the Basin.

The WQA will work to educate State agencies on the merits of financial
participation in the near-term and the very real impacts which could result from
inadequate State financial assistance: The WQA will emphasize that stemming the flow
and mitigating the spread of contamination will be more cost effective and have less of
an impact on both the State and local ratepayers.

One example of a beneficial impact is WQA’s Whitmore Street Groundwater
Remediation Facility (“WSGRF”). In 2007, the SWRCB awarded WQA a $1.42 million
grant from their Cleanup and Abatement Account (“CAA”) to the orphan project. The
grant included construction costs and up to five years of operation. The treatment
facility was completed in 2007 and is currently operational. In 2012, WQA secured an
additional $950,646 in CAA funding through September 2018. WQA has continued
funding the project temporarily until an alternative funding source can be obtained. The

project is located within the SEMOU and removes significant concentrations of 1,4-

37



dioxane and VOCs (see Appendix A). WQA will actively continue to identify projects
that could qualify for similar funding streams from the SWRCB.

The WQA is also actively involved in hosting, representing and financially
supporting the Upper San Gabriel River and Rio Hondo River (‘USGRHR”) sub-regional
area of the Greater Los Angeles County (“GLAC”) Region IRWMP. The state IRWMP
program is overseen by the California Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) in
accordance with the IRMWP Act of 2002. As the Vice-Chair of the USGRHR steering
committee, the WQA provides and solicits input and opportunities for local stakeholders
to network and develop multi-benefit projects. This in turn increases the likelihood of
funding from IRWMP bond funds. For example, what may have been a single-purpose
project to increase water supply, could become a project that enhances nearby open
space, cleans-up water supply and/or provides more water storage.

In addition, WQA is also a member of the GLAC IRWMP Leadership Committee
which acts as a Regional Water Management Group under the IRWMP program. This
committee includes two members from each of the five sub-regions in the GLAC Region
plus representatives from several resource management areas. The duties of this
committee includes the development, administration and updating of the IRWMP. The
committee also selects priority projects for funding.applications that represent and
benefit the needs of the entire GLAC Region.

F. WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY

The WQA may impose an annual assessment for capital and operational costs
not to exceed $10 per acre-foot. In the past, it has been WQA'’s policy to utilize
assessment dollars to provide incentives for PRPs to move forward on a given project.
With the availability of significant federal funds, these funds will only be utilized if
sufficient federal and/or state dollars are or will not be available in addition to PRP
funds. If PRPs do not voluntarily provide funds to a project, then the WQA will, on a
project-by-project basis, consider the use of assessment funds to underwrite the project
costs with or without other local dollars. However, the WQA is committed to recovering
its costs from non-participating PRPs at a later date, so that the cost to the local

consumer will ultimately be minimized.

38



The WQA Act provides that WQA may issue bonds for a term not to exceed 20
years for any purpose authorized by it. Additionally, the WQA Act authorizes the State
Treasurer to continue to collect assessments to payoff bond obligations in the event that
WQA sunsets prior to the bonds’ maturity dates. WQA has begun exploring this option
in addition to the other funding mechanisms available as a means to augment treatment

and remediation costs over the next several decades.
G. WATER PURVEYORS/CITIES/IMEMBER AGENCIES/OTHER LOCAL WATER AGENCIES

As of January 2001, all potential projects requesting WQA participation must go
through WQA's Procedure No. 38, “WQA Project Participation”. As part of that
procedure, the WQA requires the impacted water purveyor to fund or secure funds other
than WQA'’s assessment representing a minimum of 25% of capital costs. In the event
projects cannot be otherwise fully funded using any or all of the above funding sources,
WQA will work with an affected city, member water agency and/or other local water
agencies to develop potential funding sources. The'WQA will pursue the recovery of

these funds on behalf of the participating agency, if necessary.

VIl. Project Prioritization

WQA utilizes a number of tools to prioritize projects for funding. To be eligible for

funding consideration, proposed projects must meet all of the following conditions:

e Project must be located within the jurisdictional boundaries of the WQA

e Applicant(s) must demonstrate, through WOQA's Procedure No. 38
process, (described in the following section) that the project in the area
of the proposed groundwater remediation project removes
contamination, and protects and/or prevents groundwater
contamination from spreading into clean areas

e Applicant(s) must demonstrate that the project water will be put to
beneficial use, with priority given to those projects which include an
affected water purveyor and provides potable water, if applicable

e Project must conform and further the objectives of the WOA 8406 Plan
or the intent thereof

39



e Project must be consistent with the legislative intent of the statute(s)
authorizing or appropriating the public funds used for project funding
reimbursement

e Project cannot have been used in calculating the 35% credit provision
in the Restoration Funds

e Project cannot have bequn operating prior to July 1, 1999 (this
provision may be waived by the WQA Board)

e Start of project construction for a new project must be anticipated
within 18 months of executed agreement between WQA and

applicant(s)

e Applicant(s) must provide a plan that commits 100% of the required
funds in WQA's account in advance of each payment owed on the
project and prior to each reimbursement request.

Criteria to which a proposed project shall be measured, but not required, are as

follows:

e Project conforms and furthers the objectives of WQA'’s §406 Plan or the intent
thereof

e Ranking on priority list if multiple requests.are competing for available funds

e Projectis “necessary” and “consistent” with the NCP

e Requesting party to pay no less than 25% of capital costs

e Funding for operation and maintenance secured from funds other than WQA
assessment

e Implementation of'‘construction anticipated within one year of executed
agreement

Projects are scored according to the questions and corresponding scores listed

in Table 2 — Project Scoring. Once scored, the projects are then ranked according to

the criteria in Table 3 — Project Ranking. The higher scores represent a higher ranked

priority position within each cateqgory for available funding.

A. PROCEDURE No. 38

San Gabriel Basin WQA Policy and Procedures Manual - Administrative

Procedure 38 - WQA evaluates projects submitted to determine whether the projects

are “necessary” and “consistent” with the National Oil and Hazardous Substances

40



Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP). For cost recovery purposes, remediation projects

are considered “necessary’ if there is evidence of a release of hazardous substances,

the project is designed to mitigate the impact of such releases and the project is needed

to meet requlatory requirements for remediation and/or water supply. The

determination of necessity shall be based on data of sufficient quality and quantity to

satisfy the WQA. Remediation projects are considered “consistent” with the NCP if the

remediation project is in substantial compliance with the applicable requirements of the

NCP and results in a CERCLA-quality clean-up. Specific potentially applicable NCP

requirements are addressed below.

B. HUMAN RIGHT TO WATER

In recognition of AB685 (Chapter 524, Statutes of 2015), which declares that it is

the “established policy of the state of California that every human being has the right to

safe clean, affordable, and accessible water adequate for human consumption”, the

WQA, consistent with its mission and goals, will identify projects to further this policy.

There are no publc water systems in the San Gabriel \VValley operating in violation of

their operating permits.

C. DISADVANTAGED COMMUNITIES

Disadvantaged communities (DACs).are defined by the state as a community

with an annual median householdiincome (MHI) less than 80% of the Statewide annual

MHI. Figure 11 contains a map of the San Gabriel Basin overlayed with census block

groups matching that definition.»Together the block groups represent approximately
410,000 residents living in DACs. WQA will identify projects located in DACs and

provide recommendations for the appropriate state funding.

VIll. Contractor Selection

Competitive bids are typically used for contractor selection for capital projects

when funding sources include WQA assessments, local water funds, or funding from the

state or federal government. Projects with federal and state dollars follow their

respective contracting quidelines regarding competitive bids. Sole source awards may

41



occur, consistent with either federal and state quidelines, or the criteria established by

the individual water purveyor.

MHLIX. Public Information

The WQA has succeeded over a number of years in building public support for
cleaning up contaminated groundwater in the Basin. The public information program
will continue to build on that effort to foster understanding of the WQA'’s mission,
projects and accomplishments and plans, and to encourage public participation in the
cleanup process. The WQA will undertake efforts to ensure that all stakeholders,
including the general public, understand projects that involve the WQA and have ample
opportunity to contribute ideas and opinions.

The program will employ a variety of methods to reach everyone from specialized
audiences, such as the local water community and legislators in Sacramento and
Washington, to the general public in the Basin and beyond. The WQA will constantly
update its web site and social media outlets including Facebook
(facebook.com/SGBWQA), Twitter (@SGBWQA) and YouTube
(youtube.com/SGBWQA) to provide instant:access to public information, including news
releases, publications, agendas, minutes of meetings, and reports on projects. In
addition to WQA-specific issues, the WQA web site links to local, state and federal
water agencies and organizations, giving the public immediate access to information on
many local water issues, including groundwater contamination and cleanup activities. It
also gives access to the names of officials who can be contacted for further information.

The WQA will work to keep the local offices of federal and state legislators
informed of any developments and the progress of water cleanup issues in the Basin.
These efforts will include office visits, tours of treatment facilities and an invitation to
participate in the WQA legislative committee. The WQA has continued to host the
Legislative Water Forum Luncheon in which local legislators are invited to provide
updates on state legislation as it pertains to the Basin water community. Speakers in
the series to date have included United States Senator Dianne Feinstein, former
Senator Barbara Boxer , former Congressman David Dreier, former Congresswoman

and U.S. Secretary of Labor Hilda Solis (now Los Angeles County Supervisor, District

42



1), Congresswoman Lucille Roybal-Allard, former Attorney General and State Treasurer
Bill Lockyer, former Secretary of State Bruce McPherson and former Board of
Equalization Member Judy Chu (now Congresswoman).

In 2006, the WQA developed a DVD presentation that features Senator Dianne
Feinstein and former Congressman David Dreier. The DVD is being used in
Sacramento and Washington, D.C to educate legislators, bureaucrats and other
stakeholders to the strategic importance of the Basin. Senator Feinstein and
Congressman Dreier implore the state and the state legislators to become full
participants in the cleanup of the Basin.

In 2007, KCET'’s Life & Times program produced a segment on the Basin. The
segment focused on the status of the cleanup, the impact of the contamination on the
City of Monterey Park’s water supply, the potential impact on ratepayers, and the need
for more state involvement. A DVD of the segment is also used to educate local
stakeholders on the cleanup of the Basin.

In 2012, WQA published its first annual report. The full color annual publication
also serves as an executive summary of the 8406 Plan.

The public information program uses a variety of written publications to carry its
message. These may include annual reports, brochures, bulletins for specific projects
and periodic news inserts in the Los Angeles Times, San Gabriel Valley Tribune,
Pasadena Star News and the Whittier' Daily'News. The inserts are distributed
throughout the Basin, through home and business delivery and general sales. The
WQA will continue to provide the public with the latest information on its projects and
programs

The WQA will continue to work closely with the news media and other
organizations to reach the public. It will distribute press releases, contact and meet with
reporters and editors to inform them of activities respond to press inquiries and take
other steps to encourage media interest. The WQA will continue to work with major
news outlets, such as the Los Angeles News Group, Los Angeles Times, and foreign
language publications, such as La Opinion and the Chinese Daily News. It also will

continue to provide information to other local newspapers, city and chambers of

43



commerce newsletters and publications directed at water and environmental interests,
the business press and the electronic media.

The WQA Board, through a variety of means, including public meetings and
workshops, also interacts with the public to provide information and to solicit input. In
addition, the WQA will continue to work with other agencies on information projects and
participate with other water agencies on public outreach efforts.

All projects involving WQA will follow an established process, including all
applicable federal, state and local regulations. Because the Basin is a Superfund site,
the process will always include meeting requirements under the NCP, including its
public participation component, in order to ensure maximum cost recovery potential. In
addition, whenever needed or requested, WQA will work closely with water purveyors to
help them meet the extensive public outreach requirements set forth in the DDW
Technical Memorandum 97-005. However, absent regulatory requirements, the WQA

continues to be committed to informing the public of all-of its activities.
VIHEX. Coordination with Other Agencies

The WQA was created to fulfill a need.to coordinate response actions to the
contamination in the Basin. The WQA continues to call for the involved federal, state,
and local agencies to unite with all'stakeholders to work more effectively and efficiently.
Stakeholders include but are not limited to the USEPA, the USBR, the DTSC, the
SWRCB, the LARWQCB, the DDW, the WQA and each of its member water districts,
the MSGBW, cities affected by the Basin groundwater contamination, San Gabriel
Valley Water Association, water purveyors in the Basin, and PRPs.

Response actions alone cannot fulfill the long-term need of creating a
sustainable and reliable source of water supply in the Basin. The State of California
requires water districts to develop and adopt an Urban Water Management Plan
(“UWMP”). WQA, in coordination with its three member water districts, the Upper San
Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District (“Upper District”), the Three Valleys Municipal
Water District (“TVMWD”), and the San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
(“SGVMWD?”), shall incorporate water reliability projects identified in each of their Urban

Water-Management-Plans-UWMPs into the 8406 Plan. Their respective sponsorship

44



and administration of these projects is a vital part of enhancing the long-term reliability

of the Basin’s water supply. These projects, listed in Appendix G, directly benefit the

Basin and help augment WQA'’s groundwater cleanup activities.
bCXI. Litigation Plan

The WQA Act authorizes the WQA to bring legal action, including against
responsible parties to recover from them the response costs incurred in connection with
removal and remedial actions in the Basin.

Among other claims the WQA can assert for cost recovery, the WQA may bring
suit under CERCLA, which provides that any person or entity who owns or operates a
facility from which there has been an actual or threatened release of a hazardous
substance which has caused the WQA to incur response costs, is liable for the costs of
response. Liability similarly is imposed on persons and entities, among others, who
previously owned or operated a facility at the time such hazardous substance(s) were
released.

CERCLA further allows the WQA to seek to hold all PRPs jointly and severally
liable for these response costs, recover prejudgment interest, and obtain a declaration
from the court that the responsible parties are liable for future response costs. In
addition, the WQA may seek to recover its attorneys’ fees incurred in bringing legal
action. A more detailed discussion of the WQA'’s legal options is included in Appendix
C- 3.

XzXIl. Future Activities

Over the next year WQA will continue to play an integral role in protecting the
groundwater supplies of the Basin by actively participating in all operable unit remedies
to ensure that the necessary facilities are constructed and treatment and remediation
continues to occur in a manner that provides the greatest benefit to the residents of the

Basin.

45



BPOU - Additional modifications necessary to operate the BPOU remedy project
in the most cost effective way possible will continue. Once all modifications are
complete the BPOU projects combine to provide up to 25,900 gpm of potable supply.
WQA will continue to pariticpate in decisions that affect project treatment and

remediation activies as a member of the project committee.

SEMOU - The WQA received a Proposition 1 planning grant from the SWRCB to
conduct additional site investigation activities upgradient of the WSGRF. The activities
include several hydropunch locations along with cone penetration testing to further
delineate plume boundaries while providing invaluable aquifer lithology. It is anticipated
that the additional site investigation work will lead to an implementation grant that will
ensure the optimization of the WSGRF. In addition, WQA will be applying for additional
Prop 1 funds to assist the LARWQCB with contaminant source investigation activities at

various locations within the SEMOU.

EMOU - WQA will continue to participate in the remedial activities including but
not limited to remedial design, project oversight and federal reimbursement activities
associated with the EMOU. In 2012, the westside.workparty finished construction of the
shallow zone remedy and will continue operation as required by the USEPA. In late
2015, the eastside workparty’s shallow zone remedy became operational. In 2019, the
city of El Monte received its'97-005 amended water supply permit for the operation of
eastside deep zone remedy. In addition, WQA will encourage that the end use of the

treated water be put for beneficial use whenever possible.

PVOU - WQA will continue to participate in the remedial activities, including but
not limited to, remedial design and project oversight associated with the PVOU remedy.
In early 2019, the PVOU |Z Remedy will began construction of the centralized treatment
facility. Construction activities will continue throughout the next reporting period. In
addition, it is anticipated that the shallow zone north remedy will ramp up its remedial

design activities. WQA will continue to assist the workparties in developing an

46



enhanced alternative end use discharge plan that will have a regional benefit to the San

Gabriel Valley water supply.

Area 3 - It is anticipated that the City of Alhambra will continue to operate its
Phase | and Phase Il treatment facilities, and the the City of South Pasadena will
continue to operate its 1,2,3-TCP treatment facility at their Wilson wellsite. In addition,
WQA will assist USEPA and LARWQCB whenever possible to further characterize

contamination within the Area 3 boundaries.

WNOU — WQA will continue to assist the DTSC in its oversight of the WNOU
remedy to guarantee the continued operation and to ensure that the remedy is
performing as required by the WNOU IROD.

Non-Operable Unit Projects — All non-operable unit projects mentioned above

are anticipated to remain in service and continue to'mitigate contaminate migration.

47



Volume |l

48



AAAAAAAAA



Appendix A - Operable Unit Area plans

1. BALDWIN PARK OPERABLE UNIT
Of the five-six areas of contamination in the Basin, the BPOU is considered the

most significant because of the geographic size and degree of contamination. For this
reason USEPA prioritized this area for investigation back in the late 1980's. Located in

eastern Los Angeles County and covering 10 square miles, the BPOU includes portions

of the cities of Azusa, Irwindale, Baldwin Park and West Covina. The area of

groundwater contamination is more than 8 miles long and 1 mile wide, reflecting

multiple, commingled groundwater contaminant plumes. By 1994, there was a general

consensus on the technical approach including a financial arrangement whereby sales
from the water produced by the treatment plant would be used to offset the costs of the
project. However, just as designs were being prepared, the discovery of new
contaminants prompted a complete reevaluation of cleanup plans.

In 1997, perchlorate, a contaminant derived from solid rocket fuel, was
discovered in many of the active production wells.within the OU. This discovery had
widespread impacts, primarily because traditional treatment methods were ineffective in
removing perchlorate from the groundwater.- The new discovery not only disrupted the
design of the CERCLA remedy, but also shut down many of the existing treatment
plants that had been operating for water supply purposes. In one case, a water
purveyor's (LPVCWD) complete water supply was shut down due to excessive
concentrations of perchlorate that could not be removed by treatment facilities currently
in place. This forced the water purveyor to buy alternative groundwater supply from
neighboring water purveyors and supplemental imported water costing five times the
cost of groundwater before the discovery of perchlorate.

Based on the discovery of perchlorate, USEPA chose to update its ROD and
issue a plan update (Appendix E). This update was similar to the original ROD except
that the containment requirement in the southern portion of the OU unit was shifted

further downgradient to address the new contaminants and the larger VOC plume



resulting from several years of movement since the original ROD was issued. USEPA'’s
plan required that about 22,000 gpm of contaminated groundwater be extracted and
treated. The update did not, however, specify how the water was to be used.

In 1998, although USEPA had recently accepted a “good faith offer” from a
portion of the BPOU PRPs to conduct the required cleanup, the specifics of the offer
suggested that the PRPs intended to construct cleanup facilities without addressing the
local water supply needs. The promise of the good faith offer was to extract water from
the specified locations, treat the water at centralized facilities using emerging
(unapproved) treatment technology and then discharge the water into nearby surface
water channels. This approach was met with strong resistance that could have resulted
in further delays and continuance of the existing water supply crisis. In addition,
USEPA’s approach focused on overall containment of the plume and did not include
projects that were outside of USEPA's primary objectives that would have beneficial
effects on both cleanup and water supply.

In response to this situation, WQA prescribed a cleanup plan developed by the
MSGBW (Figure 2) that integrates cleanup and 'water:supply objectives. The first phase
of this plan focused on the southern portion of the plume where the priority is highest to
contain the plume, protect critical water supplies and restore critical water supplies.

In 1999, due to the critical need for immediate action, WQA, MSGBW and
USGVMWD-Upper District joined resources and began implementation of the plan by

constructing the first facility-to treat both perchlorate and NDMA for drinking water at the
LPVCWD well site. Following the success of the LPVCWD project, WQA prescribed
additional early actions that build on the LPVCWD project development model.

In 2002, eight of the 20 BPOU PRPs entered into a comprehensive project
agreement with WQA, MSGBW and local purveyors to fund the prescribed remedy
described in this section.

To achieve rapid implementation in the BPOU, only treatment processes that are
approved as Best Available Treatment Technologies (“BATT”) by DDW shall be used to
meet drinking water requirements. This requirement is necessary to assure that lengthy
approval processes normally associated with emerging technologies are eliminated.

Use of BATTs will be necessary to accelerate removal of contaminant mass from the



Basin and to restore impacted potable water supplies. However, wherever practical,
other technologies may be considered if significant and exceptional benefits are shown
to outweigh the need for urgency.

In addition, as new technologies become available, the WQA prescribes that cost
effective studies and pilot programs are pursued in order to maximize the potential
savings in cleanup costs over the life of the projects. For example, multiple projects are
using an ion exchange technology that may be outdated and costly. New resin
technology has been introduced that could provide alternatives to the existing
technology, and studies have been undertaken to assess the benefits of switching over
if the lifetime benefits appear to be substantial.

In the cases where existing technology remains in place, careful optimization will
be performed regularly on the equipment in order to achieve the best effective operation

and the lowest operating cost possible.

»  Southern Remedy

In conjunction with the LPVCWD treatment project constructed in 2000, a new
treatment facility located at the San Gabriel Valley Water Company (“SGVWC”) Plant
B6 treatment facility near the southern extension of the plume was prescribed for
immediate implementation. The project also included the construction of four new
extraction wells (B25A, B25B, B26A and B26B) and transmission pipelines connecting
the extraction wells to the Plant B6 treatment facility.

The project finished construction in 2004 and received its 97-005 amended water
supply permit from the DDW in June 2005. The water extracted from this facility is
needed by SGVWC to replace production capacity lost when contamination forced the
closure of the then operating water treatment facilities that lacked the ability to remove
the newly discovered contaminants, perchlorate and NDMA. The project has the
ancillary benefit of protecting downgradient water supply wells by halting the
southeastern migration of contaminant mass.

In 2009, efficiency studies have led to changing out the existing ion exchange
treatment technologies at LPVCWD's treatment facility and SGVWC's Plant B6

treatment facility from a regenerable resin technology to a more efficient single-pass



resin technology. As a result of changing from a regenerable resin ion exchange
technology to a single-pass technology SGVWC lost the ancillary benefit of some
nominal nitrate treatment. Therefore, DDW required SGVWC to construct additional
nitrate treatment at its Plant B6 to ensure continued operation of the treatment facility.
The new nitrate treatment utilizes a regenerable ion exchange treatment system but will
be designed specifically for nitrate removal.

In 26492020, SGVWC plans to replace its existing UV treatment equipment with
new more efficient UV treatment technology.

The next component of the remedy prescribed for the southern area is a new
treatment facility that is located at the SGVWC Plant BS. The project finished
construction and began testing in 2007. In April 2008, the Plant B5 treatment facility
received its amended water supply permit from DDW. The Plant B5 treatment facility
treats water from an existing well (B5B), from a new extraction well drilled on site (B5E)
and from an existing City of Industry well located in the'San Fidel Well Field. The Plant
B5 facility is necessary to meet water supply demand and to serve as a final
containment point to prevent the further degradation of clean aquifers resulting from the
migrating BPOU contamination plume.

This plan prescribes immediate implementation and long term operation of the
southern remedies for the BPOU including all of the necessary facilities to achieve full
containment of the BPOU plume at the downgradient edge. In June 2008, the last
component of the BPOU remedy became operational. These facilities will accelerate
removal of contaminant mass.in the Basin, prevent migration of contamination into
critical groundwater water supplies, and through the integration of cleanup with water
supply objectives, mitigate the existing water supply crisis in the area.

As of September 30, 201482019, the southern remedy projects have treated
approximately 293;6569-69317,562.71 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and have
removed approximately 39;464.9042,324.90 Ibs. of VOCs, perchlorate, NDMA and 1,4-

Dioxane.

> Northern Remedy




In 2005 construction was completed on a new treatment facility at the VCWD
Arrow/Lante wellfield. The new treatment facility known as the Subarea 1(“SA1”)
treatment facility will consist of all necessary treatment technology and two new
extraction wells (SA1-1 and SA1-2) that were constructed east of the treatment facility
which will deliver raw water to the facility via new transmission pipelines. The plan also
includes a treated water pipeline to deliver all of the treated water to SWS. In 2007,
VCWD discovered TCP in its SA1 extraction wells and was forced to construct
additional Liquid Phase Granular Activated Carbon (“LPGAC”) treatment at SA1 to
combat the new found contamination.

Similarly to LPVCWD and SGVWC in 2008, VCWD initiated the process to
replace the ion-exchange regenerable treatment system with single pass ion-exchange
treatment equipment. Design and construction of the single pass ion-exchange system
was completed in 2009.

In 2014, VCWD approved the nitrate management plan which will provide
ancillary nitrate blend capabilities to ensure compliance with drinking water standards.

In 2015, VCWD will begin construction of a new extraction well that will replace
existing offsite extraction wells SA1-1 and SA1-2. The new extraction well along with
existing SA1-3 will provide enough capacity to achieve the revised extraction rate of
6,000 gpm.

As of September 30, 20482019, the northern remedy project has treated
approximately 76,398-4377,414.27 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has
removed approximately 42;598.6042,820.10 Ibs. of VOCs, perchlorate, NDMA and 1,4-

Dioxane.

»  Other Remedies

California Domestic Water Company’s (“CDWC”) Well No. 14 was affected by
contamination emanating from the BPOU, including perchlorate and NDMA. CDWC
expanded their existing VOC and NDMA treatment systems by including a perchlorate
treatment system. The project is also designed to protect CDWC’s downgradient wells.

Construction was completed in June of 2002.



Recently DDW informed CDWC that blending for VOCs would no longer be
allowed and treatment for VOC removal will be mandatory. In addition, DDW stated that
Well No. 10 will not be allowed to operate as a blending source for perchlorate if
upstream perchlorate levels are shown to be increasing. Therefore, CDWC intends to
construct dedicated VOC and perchlorate treatment systems for its Well No. 10.

As of September 30, 26482019, the CDWC project has treated approximately
359,664-40373,162.93 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has removed
approximately 47,734-7018,837.70 Ibs. of VOCs, perchlorate and NDMA.

After losing their Plant 139 and Plant 140 wellfields to the BPOU contamination,
SWS constructed new production wells at their Plant 121, Plant 142 and Plant 151

properties. The interim project also included the construction of pipelines that will allow

for better operational flexibility and provide additional supply to their affected service
area.

In addition to operating the SA1 treatment facility as part of the BPOU remedy,
VCWD also has two additional treatment facilities that they own and operate for their
immediate water supply. In 1990, VCWD constructed the Maine East and West
treatment facility and in 2004 the Nixon East and West treatment facility.

As of September 30, 20482019, the VCWD’s Maine and Nixon treatment facilities
have treated approximately 467,264-04113,761.39 acre-ft of contaminated groundwater

and have removed approximately 2,;156-162,163.80 Ibs. of contamination.

Finally, WQA endorses the construction of the Covina Irrigation Company’s
(“CICs”) Baldwin Pumping Plant. In 2014, WQA assisted CIC in receiving a DDW grant
for the construction of the treatment facility. In 20492020, it is anticipated that CIC will

finish construction and begin start-up testing.

2. SOUTH EL MONTE OPERABLE UNIT
The SEMOU covers approximately 8 square miles. It encompasses all of the city

of South El Monte and portions of El Monte and Rosemead. The SEMOU is generally
bounded by Interstate 10 to the north, Highway 60 to the south, Interstate 605 to the




supplies—Contamination in the SEMOU is predominantly VOCs 1,4-dioxane, and

perchlorate. In general, VOC concentrations are highest in shallow groundwater near

industrial facility source areas where releases have occurred. VOCs have also

migrated downward into the intermediate aquifer zone. The VOCs have migrated

westward toward drinking water production wells as well as southward toward the

WNOU. Some drinking water production wells have been impacted by groundwater

contaminants and either shut down or equipped with wellhead treatment to reduce

contaminant levels to drinking water standards. with-perchlorate-concentrationsin

The threat to the northwest has already impacted several critical water supply
wells, primarily those owned by the City of Monterey Park (“*CMP”), SGVWC and
Golden State Water Company (“GSWC?). These water purveyors have had to

implement treatment facilities in order to resolve their water supply crises. The other
predominant threat is from contamination in the shallow aquifers nearthe-source-areas
that provide a continuous source of contamination that has traveled as far south as the
Whittier Narrows Dam. Continued migration of the contamination past the Whittier
Narrows Dam threatens many production wells and the sensitive recharge areas within
the Central Basin. Immediate action is clearly needed to address these imminent
threats.

To address the VOC groundwater contamination in the SEMOU, USEPA
released its Interim ROD (“IROD”) (Appendix E) in September 2000. The IROD
specifies extraction from the intermediate zone at or near CMP’s existing well No. 5,
CMP’s existing well No. 12, SGVWC'’s existing Plant No. 8 wellfield, and GSWC'’s
existing San Gabriel (SG1 & SG2) wellfield. USEPA'’s plan also includes a new



extraction well (CMP No. 15) northeast of CMP No. 12. USEPA’s goal is to contain the
flow of contaminants and prevent exposure to downgradient pumping centers operated
by CMP, SGVWC, and other purveyors. Although USEPA recommends the use of

existing water supply facilities, the PRPs are not mandated to use these facilities in their

response, nor are they obligated to integrate water supply with the required remedy.

In 2005 USEPA issued an ESD (Appendix E) for the SEMOU to include
treatment of perchlorate in the intermediate zone and reserved the right to include
treatment for 1,4-Dioxane and other ECs at a later date.

With the exception of perchlorate treatment, WQA'’s prescribed actions for the
SEMOU have, for the most part, been put into place and are consistent with USEPA’s
proposed plan. They address specific concerns that (1) action needed to take place
immediately to halt further migration into critical water supplies, (2) complications in the
negotiations with the PRPs would delay USEPA’s implementation schedule, and (3)
PRPs may choose to fulfill their CERCLA responsibility to USEPA without addressing
the need to restore water supplies. Specifically, the prescribed actions referenced
below have and will address both the.immediate threat and water supply crisis prevalent
in the northwest portion of the OU and the long-term threat to Central Basin to the
south.

To date, USEPA has lodged nine Consent Decrees (“CDs”) embodying
settlements with 72 PRPs for costs associated with implementation of the SEMOU
remedy. The funds recovered by USEPA will be used to reimburse affected water
purveyors for future treatment and remediation costs associated with the continued
operation of remedy wells and treatment facilities as described in the SEMOU remedy

through a cooperative agreement between USEPA and WQA.

> Intermediate Zone Remedy




To address the threat presented in the northwest portion of the OU, WQA'’s
prescribed action (Figure 3) includes the existing VOC and perchlorate blending
treatment facility at CMP No. 5 along with the existing VOC treatment facilities at CMP
No. 12, SGVWC Plant 8 and GSWC SG1 & SG2. Additionally, the plan specifies that
water from CMP remediation Well No. 15 be treated at the existing treatment facility at
CMP No. 12.

This plan promotes the beneficial use of the treated water by the appropriate
water purveyors. To that end, WQA entered into funding contracts in the year 2000 with
CMP, GSWC and SGVWC to construct VOC treatment projects ahead of enforcement
action by USEPA.

SGVWC's Plant No. 8 VOC treatment facility was completed in October 2000 and
is currently operating. Rising levels of VOCs in the wells at Plant 8 caused the DDW to
require SGVWOC to install a secondary barrier treatment system. Construction of a
LPGAC secondary barrier treatment system to polish the air stripper effluent was
completed in 2005. As part of the amended water supply permit issued to SGVWC by
DDW to operate the Plant No. 8 VOC treatment facility, a sentinel well, SEMWOQ09 had to
be installed upgradient and within two years travel time of the Plant No. 8 wells. The
primary purpose of the sentinel well is to provide an “early warning” of emerging
contaminants that might affect the operation of the Plant No. 8 VOC treatment facility. A
2005 sample of SEMWO09 detected 1,4-Dioxane below 1 ppb however, all subsequent
sampling events for 1,4-Dioxane have been non-detect.

SGVWC’s recent analyses of onsite production well 8D revealed and continued
to confirm the presence of perchlorate and 1,4-Dioxane at concentrations just below the
DDW MCL and Notification Level (“NL”), respectively. Because the current Plant No. 8
VOC treatment facility is not capable of removing perchlorate or 1,4-Dioxane, SGVWC
has designed and plans to construct a 5,000 gpm, single pass ion exchange treatment
facility for the removal of perchlorate when levels reach 50% of the MCL. In addition
SGVWC constructed an Besign-for advanced oxidation ultraviolet (“UV”) light treatment

facility for the removal of 1,4-Dioxane.-wil-takeplace-whenlevels-in\Well 8D-exceed-the

\J a ala aYa NN a A1 Min ara) alalal fa a¥a allaYalaWa alaWatia¥a am NNA

No—8-wells-- The addition of the ien-exchange-and-UV light treatment facility will ensure



continued operation of the Plant No. 8 VOC treatment facility and continued remediation

of the SEMOU groundwater._The UV system is undergoing testing for a 97-005

amended water supply permit.

Both CMP’s and GSWC’s VOC treatment facilities for Well No. 12 and SG1 &

SG2, respectively, were completed. However, the wells for both plants were

subsequently found to be contaminated with perchlorate and immediately shut down. In
2004, CMP completed construction of a perchlorate treatment plant for Well No. 12. In
addition to the VOC treatment, GSWC operated an interim perchlorate treatment facility

for Well SG1_only SG2 was removed from service. However, based on two years of

non-detects for perchlorate contamination, GSWC and CMP have deactivated their
perchlorate treatment systems.

In 2012, GSWC returned Well SG2 to service and restore plant capacity. CMP
has constructed additional piping to bypass their perchlorate treatment equipment while
maintaining it in a state of readiness if future perchlorate treatment is needed. Both
projects are endorsed as they are designed to.restore lost water supply and protect

existing downgradient production wells.

In 2018, CMP wilkfinished construction en-of its centralized UV treatment facility

at its Delta site. The centralized treatment facility will end the need for redundant VOC

wellhead treatment_and address 1,4 dioxane issues.. atGCMP-wells-by-the-construction
of a-centralized-advanced-oxidation-treatmentfacility—This-Additionally, this new facility

will streamline CMP’s production and distribution while providing an overall decrease in

CMP’s treatment and remediation costs.

10



As of September 30, 26482019, the intermediate zone remedy projects have
treated approximately 465,;300.69175,545.07 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater
and have removed approximately 22,;473.2023,890 Ibs. of VOCs and perchlorate.

> Other Intermediate Zone Remedies

In addition to the extraction and containment projects identified in the SEMOU
IROD, purveyors in the SEMOU had to construct treatment facilities at several of their
wells to ensure a safe and reliable water supply in the event that the IROD projects are
temporarily removed from service. Although these projects are not identified as
SEMOU remedy projects by USEPA they do contribute to the remedy by removing

mass contamination within the groundwater thus improving the regional groundwater

basin as a whole.
In 2004, CMP constructed a VOC treatment facility at its Delta Plant to treat VOC

contamination that was recently discovered in CMP Well Nos. 1, 3, 10 and Fern.

In 2005, SGVWC has constructed a VOC treatment facility at its Plant G4 located
within the SEMOU. Although-notincludedin USEPA's remedy.the project is-consistent

In 2016, GSWC finished construction of its Garvey Well No. 3 VOC treatment
facility.

These actions, as prescribed by this plan, will accelerate removal of contaminant
mass and help to prevent migration of contamination into critical water supplies. In
addition, integrating the cleanup action with the surrounding water supply will mitigate
the current water supply crisis caused by the presence of the contamination.

As of September 30, 26482019, other intermediate zone projects have treated
approximately 35,210-5636,854.34 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and have
removed approximately 4,794-801,826.50 Ibs. of VOCs.

>  Shallow Zone Extraction

11



Part of WQA'’s prescribed response to address the threat to Central Basin was
the South El Monte Shallow Extraction Barrier (“South EI Monte Barrier”). The South El
Monte Barrier was constructed under a voluntary partnership including WQA, several of
the local businesses and the City of South EI Monte. The objective of the response
action was to halt the flow of contaminants near the primary source areas within the
SEMOU.

The project consisted of two extraction wells, treatment facilities and discharge
pipes which allow the treated water to infiltrate back into the aquifer downgradient of the
extraction. The project was originally constructed to remove VOCs and later modified
with ozone/peroxide treatment to remove 1,4-Dioxane. Given that there are no water
supply wells directly affected in the immediate areas and that water from the shallow
aquifer is not normally used for potable use by the purveyors, low priority was given to
mandating beneficial use of the water.

In 2004, the WQA discontinued operation of the South El Monte Barrier after it
was determined that USEPA’s fund-led Whittier Narrows project (see the Whittier
Narrows Operable Unit (“WNOU?”) portion of this plan) would halt the contaminant
migration farther downgradient. While this situation was not the preferred alternative,
the WQA determined that no water supplies would.be affected by discontinuing the
project. Additionally, funds made available by discontinuing the South EI Monte Barrier
were redirected to contain an alternate source of contaminants that was threatening
water supplies.

In 2005, the WQA initiated design on a shallow groundwater barrier to be
constructed in and around the area of the former J.A. Bozung facility. The WSGRF
project will remove a hot spot plume of VOCs and 1,4-Dioxane that threatens
downgradient water supplies. The WSGRF started full-time operation in December of
2008 with treatment and remediation estimated to continue through 26482020.

In June of 2019, WQA completed field work of its Proposition 1 Expanded Site

Investigation Planning Project upgradient of the WSGRF. The project consisted of

seven Hydropunch and CPT locations along with some compound specific isotopic

analysis of selected contaminants. It is anticipated that the results of the project will

lead to a robust enhancement of the WSGREF.

12



As of September 30, 20482019, the treatment facility has treated approximately
316-16325.60 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has removed approximately
184-40187.10 Ibs. of VOCs and 1,4-Dioxane.

3. EL MONTE OPERABLE UNIT
The El Monte Operable Unit (“EMOU”) covers approximately 10 square miles in

the south central portion of the San Gabriel Basin in eastern Los Angeles County. The

OU is generally bounded by Interstate 10 to the south, Rosemead Blvd to the west, and

Santa Anita Ave and the Rio Hondo to the east. The El Monte OU includes portions of

OU is generally characterized by shallow groundwater VOC contamination that is mostly

contained in the upper 100 feet of the aquifer._—VOCshave also spread downward into

the deep zone. VOCs in the deep zone have migrated downgradient towards some

drinking water production wells which necessitated that some wells be shut down or

equipped with wellhead treatment to reduce contaminant levels.

The City of El Monte (“CEM”), in particular, lost several wells and experienced a

shortage of supply. New sources of supply, either from new cleanup facilities or
reactivation of existing supplies are greatly needed to enhance and secure the local
water supply situation. WQA has provided assistance by leasing the CEM four surplus
LPGAC vessels from past WQA projects.

13



To provide long-term protection of these supplies, immediate actions were
needed to cut off and contain the movement of contaminants in the shallow aquifer.
Elimination of the high concentrations of contaminants near the sources is necessary to
provide for rapid reduction of mass from the aquifer and establish long-term protection
of downgradient water supplies. To address this emergency need in 1997 WQA
prescribed the immediate implementation of two shallow extraction barriers to stop the
flow of contamination on the western and eastern portion of the OU. Anticipating that
this type of removal would be required, WQA and many of the PRPs for the EMOU
executed agreements to fund the construction of these projects. As part of this early
response, WQA sponsored three components (extraction and treatment at the Clayton
Manufacturing facility and individual extractions with centralized treatment for Hermetic
Seal, and Crown City Plating facilities) which operated for several years. Immediate
implementation of the shallow extraction barriers ahead of USEPA’s mandate will
complement these other early responses and help to accelerate the removal of mass
from the Basin and prevent the further migration of contamination into critical
groundwater supplies.

In June 1999, USEPA released its IROD (Appendix E) which requires
containment of the shallow contaminant plume on.the western and eastern sides of the
OU and containment of the deep contaminant plume on the northwestern and
southeastern edges of the OU. In 2002, USEPA released an ESD (Appendix E) that
requires the containment of emerging chemicals in addition to VOCs. In 2004, due to
unrest within the EMOU PRP group, USEPA entered into a CD effectively dividing the
PRPs into two distinct work parties, the West Side Performing Settling Defendants
(“WSPSD”) and the East Side Performing Settling Defendants (“ESPSD”).

As a result of the elevated levels of Nitrates and Total Dissolved Solids (“TDS”) in
both west and east shallow zone extraction projects, local water purveyors cannot
integrate the treated water into the local supply. Thus, WQA prescribes that, to the
extent possible, the water extracted from the shallow extraction projects be put to
beneficial use for one of the following alternatives: (1) potable source through blending,
(2) industrial reuse, (3) re-injection to the groundwater basin, or (4) used as a reclaimed

water source. If no beneficial end use is available and all alternatives have been

14



exhausted the treated water may be discharged to a nearby channel if permitted by
LARWQCB and MSGBW's rules and regulations.

For the shallow zone remediation, theFhe-WSPSD is discharging its treated
water to the adjacent Eaton Wash under an NPDES permit issued by the LARWQCB

and the ESPSD will be re-injecting all shallow zone treated water upgradient of the

extraction wells under an LARWQCB permit.

Together, all of these facilities will serve to contain the migration of the
contamination in the intermediate (potable) aquifers and prevent the further spread of
contamination into critical groundwater supplies. Requiring the beneficial use of shallow
zone treated water will enhance the local water supply and help to mitigate the current
water shortage caused by impairment of water supply wells.

In 2016, USEPA required both work parties to work together and develop a
comprehensive workplan to address regional CrVI contamination within the EMOU.
WQA is supportive of this joint effort and will provide any and all assistance necessary

to fully characterize CrVI contamination within the EMOU.

» West Side Remedy

The WSPSD is responsible for containment of the western shallow zone

contaminant plume (Figure 4) and the containment of the northwestern deep zone
plume (Figure 5). Containment of the western shallow plume will be accomplished via
six extraction wells and a centralized treatment facility. The treatment facility will be
designed to treat not only VOCs but all emergent chemicals (“ECs”) to below drinking
water standards. Construction of the western shallow zone treatment facility, extraction
wells and pipeline was completed in January 2012.
In 2018, due to the decline in the water table in the area the WSPSD’s plan to

enhance the shallow zone remedy by installing 8 new extraction wells.

As of September 30, 2648-2019 the WSPSD shallow zone treatment system has
treated approximately 368.39418.83 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has
removed approximately 34-0039.30 Ibs. of VOCs, perchlorate, nitrate and hexavalent

chromium.

15



The existing GSWC Encinita Plant treatment facilities, owned and operated by
GSWC and partially funded by the WSPSD, along with a VOC treatment facility,
previously owned and operated by Adams Ranch Mutual Water Company (“ARMWC”),
will help address the deep zone contaminant plume in the northwestern sector. Both
deep zone projects received federal reimbursement from WQA.

In 2016, ARMWC was acquired by the California American Water Company
which has ceased operation of the VOC treatment facility. That leaves GSWC’s
Encinita Plant as the singular operating deep zone remedy project on the west side of
the EMOU.

As of September 30, 20482019, the west side deep zone remedy project has
treated approximately 29;563.5931,314.09 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and
has removed 744-50750.40 Ibs. of VOCs.

> East Side Remedy

The ESPSD is responsible for containment of the eastern shallow zone

contaminant plume (Figure 4) and the containment of the southeastern deep zone
contaminant plume (Figure 5). Containment of the eastern shallow plume will be
accomplished via five extraction wells, a centralized treatment facility and three re-
injection wells. The treatment facility will be designed to treat not only VOCs but all
ECs. The east side shallow zone remedy became operational in March 2015.

As of September 30, 20482019, the east side shallow zone remedy project has
treated approximately +47-92132.94 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has
removed 23-7025.00 Ibs. of VOCs.

In addition;-the2013, ESPSD in conjunction with CEM will-be-installinginstalled
three extraction wells in the intermediate zone aquifer in the southeastern sector and
constructeding a centralized treatment facility to control migration of low levels of VOCs.
The treated water will be conveyed into CEM’s existing distribution system in the area.
WQA has provided the ESPSD federal reimbursements for their projects. The east side
deep zone remedy project finished construction and is in the process of the required 97-

005 amended water supply permit testing.

16



In 2019, CEM received its 97-005 amended water supply permit for the treatment

facility and is using the treated water in its domestic supply.

As of September 30, 201482019, the east side deep zone remedy project has
treated approximately 2;272.293,353.90 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has
removed 406-96172.80 Ibs. of VOCs.

» Other Intermediate Zone Remedies
Similar to the SEMOU, affected purveyors in the EMOU had to construct

additional treatment facilities. Specifically, the CEM constructed three VOC treatment

facilities at wells 2A, 10 and 12 to ensure safe and reliable supply to their customers.
Although these projects are not identified as EMOU remedy projects by USEPA they do
contribute to the remedy by removing mass contamination within the groundwater thus
improving the regional groundwater basin as a whole.

As of September 30, 20482019, CEM wells 2, 10-and 12 have treated
approximately 33,;265-2334,031.37 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and have
remove +:359-601,366.60 Ibs. of VOCs.

4. WHITTIER NARROWS OPERABLE UNIT
Whittier Narrows is a 1.5-milé gap in the bedrock hills that separates the San

Gabriel and Central Basins and represents the primary discharge point for groundwater

and surface water flow exiting the San Gabriel Basin. USEPA designated Whittier

Narrows as an OU specifically.to address groundwater contamination flowing out of the

San Gabriel Basin, through Whittier Narrows, into the Montebello Forebay portion of the
Central Basin. The WNOU is bounded to the north by the South El Monte OU (at
Highway 60) and to the south by the Montebello Forebay portion of the Central Basin

(near the Whittier Narrows Dam).

VOCs, 1,4-dioxane, and NDMA are the primary groundwater contaminants found
in the Whittier Narrows Operable Unit (WNQOU). USEPA has not identified any

significant sources of VOC and 1,4-dioxane contamination in the WNOU. Hence, the

VOC and 1,4-dioxane contamination is migrating into the WNQOU from upgradient

industrial sources within the San Gabriel Basin. The contamination being addressed by

17



the interim remedy largely appears to originate from the South El Monte OU, located
immediately north of the WNOU.
In 1999, USEPA issued an amendment to the ROD for the WNOU which

identifies the need for a groundwater extraction barrier approximately ¥4 mile north of

the Whittier Narrows Dam (Appendix E) to halt the flow of contamination traveling
towards Central Basin. To form an effective containment barrier, five or six extraction
sites were required to remove and treat a total of about 12,000 gpm extracting from both
the shallow and intermediate zone aquifers. Because USEPA was implementing this
remedy under its “fund lead” authority, the responsibility for administering the design,
construction and operation of the comprehensive cleanup facility was USEPA. In 2002,
USEPA finished construction of the comprehensive cleanup facility.

In recognition of the immediate threat to downgradient water supplies in Central
Basin and the potential for significant delays associated with a large-scale treatment
facility, WQA had prescribed a phased approach (Figure 6) that addressed the most
severe threats first with an immediate early action at well EW4-3. WQA prescribed that
well EW4-3 be integrated into the comprehensive potable treatment facility proposed by
USEPA. WQA implemented the first component of this early action with the
construction of a temporary treatment facility located at well EW4-3. Water from well
EW4-3 was treated and temporarily discharged into nearby surface drainages until the
full-scale remedy could be implemented. USEPA has completed construction of their
centralized treatment facility and integrated well EW4-3 into their extraction system.

In 20052002, the City of Whittier reached an agreement with USEPA to take
most of the water extracted from the intermediate zone aquifer and use it as a potable
supply for its customers. Water from the shallow zone is extracted at a reduced rate
and is being discharged into Legg Lake.

In 2006, USEPA conducted a five-year review of the WNOU remedy to ensure
that it remains protective of human health and the environment. USEPA concluded that
the remedy for the WNOU is protective of human health and the environment.

In 2011, USEPA conducted its second five-year review of the WNOU remedy.
USEPA concluded that in the shallow zone the extent of contamination has shrunk

dramatically since the remedy construction was completed in 2002 and that

18



contaminant concentrations have continued to decline consistently over the last five
years (2006 to 2010). There are currently no shallow zone MCL exceedances in the
WNOU, indicating that continued extraction is not needed to meet the goals of the
remedy and was ceased in 2013.

As of September 30, 26472019, the WNOU shallow zone remedy project has
treated approximately 30,066 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has removed
approximately 1,619 Ibs. of VOCs.

USEPA’s second five-year review also reports that in the intermediate zone the
extent of intermediate zone contamination downgradient of the WNOU extraction wells
has declined dramatically since remedy extraction began in 2002. These continued
concentration declines have occurred despite intermediate zone extraction averaging
less than 3,300 gpm over the last five years. This provides strong evidence that the
remedial objectives (hydraulic control of migrating contamination) can be met at a lower
extraction rate than the current intermediate zone target extraction rate of 6,000 gpm.

In May of 2013, DTSC assumed operation of the WNOU remedy from USEPA.
DTSC subsequently entered into a long term operational agreement with SGVWC in
which SGVWC will use the treated intermediate zone water supply in its service area.
Currently SGVWC is operating the treatment facility and discharging the water into Legg
Lake while additional infrastructureis being constructed to allow SGVWC to take the
treated water into its existing distribution system.

In 2018, DTSC received Proposition 1 funding that will be used to add additional
infrastructure to return the WNOU intermediate zone remedy back to a potable water
supply project.

As of September 30, 20482019, the WNOU intermediate zone remedy project
has treated approximately 52;872.7156,458.65 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater
and has removed approximately 4;:864-701,832.20 Ibs. of VOCs.

5. PUENTE VALLEY OPERABLE UNIT
The Puente Valley Operable Unit (“PVOU”) includes most of the City of Industry,

portions of the City of La Puente, and portions of unincorporated Los Angeles County.

Groundwater and soil are contaminated with various VOCs, 1.4-dioxane, perchlorate,

19



and hexavalent chromium. Groundwater contamination occurs primarily in the shallow

and intermediate groundwater zones of the aquifer, with most of the contaminant mass

found in the shallow groundwater zone. VOC concentrations exceed drinking water

standards in both the shallow and intermediate zones.
In 1998, the USEPA released the Interim ROD for the Puente Valley Operable
Unit (“PVOU”) that described, in part, USEPA’s selected remedy for both shallow and

intermediate zone contamination. It stated that the remedial action for the shallow zone

shall prevent contaminated groundwater from migrating beyond its current lateral and
vertical extent as described in the Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study (“RI/FS”).
The remedial action selected by USEPA for the intermediate zone shall prevent
contaminated groundwater from migrating beyond the SGVWC B7 Well Field Area (an
area defined by 14 wells in the immediate area of SGVWC’s B7 Well Field).
Furthermore, perchlorate was recently discovered in the B7 Well Field Area causing
USEPA to further evaluate remedy options.

In 2005 USEPA issued an ESD for the PVOU mandating treatment for all ECs in
both the shallow and intermediate zones (Appendix E).

In 2009, the PVOU remedial activity was stalled due to conflicting interpretations
by two separate divisions of the USEPA, namelythe Superfund Division and the Water
Division which enforces the Clean Water Act. As a result, USEPA required additional
feasibility studies to be conducted to re-evaluate alternatives for the disposition of the
treated water in both the shallow and intermediate zone remedies. USEPA-iscurrently

mna tha fo ihility dic AL A antintia to haln fH o a aYa N

» Shallow Zone North Remedy
In 2005 USEPA entered into a CD with United Technologies Corporation (“‘UTC”)

to perform the shallow zone remedy north of Puente Creek in the PVOU. The shallow

zone remedy will consist of the installation of nire-ten extraction wells, associated
pipelines and a centralized treatment facility at the mouth of the valley (Figure 7). In
2008, UTC completed the installation of all extraction wells and is currently securing

pipeline access agreements. Since water from the shallow zone is not suitable for

20



potable use due to high Nitrates and TDS, UTC originally planned to discharge the
treated water into a neighboring creek under a discharge waiver from the LARWQCB.
However, recent changes to regulations have eliminated that discharge option. .

In 2011, due to the continued migration of the contaminant plume USEPA
requested that the shallow zone remedy be completed in phases. Phase | consists of
migration control of the eastern plume via extraction from well S05, treatment for VOCs
and ECs and re-injection of the treated water into the shallow zone aquifer.

In 2019, UTC amended its Consent Decree with the USEPA to allow re-injection

as a potential end use. With this modification UTC has ramped up is remedial design of

the shallow zone north remedy.

» Shallow Zone South Remedy

The Northrop Grumman Systems Corporation (“Northrop”) is responsible for
cleanup of the shallow contamination south of Puente Creek emanating from the former
Benchmark Technology Facility. The Benchmark facility is understood to be the largest
single source of VOC and 1,4-Dioxane contamination in the eastern portion of the
shallow aquifer at the mouth of the Puente Valley... This portion of the shallow zone
remedial action was part of the remedy in the 1998 ROD. In 2003, the groundwater
contamination downgradient of the former Benchmark facility was to be addressed by a
facility-specific cleanup through a Cleanup and Abatement Order (“CAQ”) administered
by the LARWCQB. However; the cleanup was never implemented and in May 2010,
lead agency status was transferred to USEPA. Therefore, the groundwater
contamination downgradient of the Benchmark facility is again being addressed as part

of the shallow zone remedy.

> Intermediate Zone Remedy

In 2008, Northrop finished construction of the six extraction wells and a portion of
the pipeline that were approved by USEPA as part of the intermediate zone remedy at
the mouth of the valley (Figure 8). At that time the remedy called for contaminated
water to be treated at SGVWC'’s existing Plant B7 VOC facility. Treatment would

21



consist of an existing air-stripper, liquid phase granular activated carbon, ion-exchange
and advanced oxidation/ultraviolet technologies for the treatment of VOCs and all ECs.
In addition, Northrop has reached an agreement in principal for SGVWC to accept the
treated water and to provide a blending component with SGVWC'’s Plant B24 wells.
SGVWC has constructed a transmission main from its B6 service area to its Plant B24
to facilitate blending of the PVOU treated water.

In 2013, water quality samples indicated elevated levels of TDS and nitrates that
would require a much greater volume of blend water to be compatible with SGVWC’s
distribution system. As a result it was determined that additional treatment consisting of
reverse osmosis would be required. As a result SGVWC’s Plant B7 site is not likely to
accommodate the additional treatment because of its size. Northrop immediately began
working with the City of Industry to purchase an alternative site that would be large
enough for all treatment facilities.

In 2014, Northrop acquired a property from the City of Industry large enough to
site both Intermediate Zone and Shallow Zone South treatment facilities. The current
conceptual plan is to have LPVCWD operate the Intermediate Zone Remedy and utilize
the treated water in its distribution system.

Pursuant to USEPA'’s request and agreement with Northrop, SGVWC in October
2016, properly destroyed Well B7Cand decommissioned the accompanying treatment
system. SGVWC’s Well B11B and accompanying treatment system continues to
operate in the PVOU.

In 2018, Northrop will complete the construction of an additional extraction well
for a total of 7 wells to capture contamination at the toe of the plume. In addition it is
anticipated that Northrop will begin construction of the treatment facility.

As of September 30, 201482019, Plants B7 and B11 have treated approximately
95,644-3396,678.98 acre-feet and have removed approximately 5,079-965,159.40 Ibs.
of VOCs.

6. AREA 3 OPERABLE UNIT
The Area Three Operable Unit (“ATOU”) covers 19 square miles in the western

portion of the San Gabriel Valley, Area 3 is located west of Rosemead Blvd, north of |-

22



10, and south of the Raymond Fault (which separates the main San Gabriel Basin from

the Raymond Basin to the northwest). Area 3 includes all of the City of San Gabriel, as

well as portions of the Cities of Alhambra, Rosemead, Temple City, San Marino and

South Pasadena. VOCs have been detected in production wells and safequards are in

place to ensure acceptable drinking water quality.

ATOU groundwater is contaminated with VOCs, perchlorate, and nitrate at

concentrations exceeding state and federal water quality standards.
In 1999, USEPA began RI/FS investigations in the Area-3-Operable-Unit
FATOUS. The purpose of the RI/FS is to determine the nature and extent of soil and

groundwater contamination and to identify likely sources. USEPA has completed the
installation of additional monitoring wells in order to collect additional data to assess the
extent of the contamination and its relationship to suspected source areas. USEPA
released the Rl in 2010 and is currently evaluating the results to identify cleanup
options. Conclusions of the RI will form the basis of an'FS to evaluate cleanup
alternatives to prevent and eliminate the release or threat of release of contaminants at
the site. USEPA anticipates the release of the FS sometime mid-20442020. The focus
of the FS is to develop, screen and evaluate cleanup alternatives. During development
of the FS, USEPA continues investigations to address remaining uncertainties identified
in the RI

ATOU VOC contamination has‘impacted a number of the City of Alhambra’s
(“Alhambra”) wells. In 2001; Alhambra started operation of Phase | of its pump and
treat program. Phase | consists of a VOC treatment facility at Well No. 7. In 2008,
Alhambra finished most of the construction of Phase Il of its pump and treat program.
Phase Il consists of VOC and Nitrate treatment technologies at Well No. 8 and has the
ability to treat contaminated groundwater from Wells Nos. 8, 11 and 12. Alhambra
finished construction of Phase Il in 2008 and it is operational. All water treated from
both Phase | and Phase Il projects is used by Alhambra in its distribution system (Figure
9). Both phases of the Alhambra’s pump and treat program received reimbursement
from WQA'’s federal funding programs. In addition, California American Water
Company (CAWC) has informed USEPA of its rising contamination found at its

Rosemead and Grand wells located in the south eastern ATOU.

23



In 2019, the City of South Pasadena (“CSP”) responded to new regulations that
more strictly limit the MCL of 1,2,3-TCP. The CSP completed construction of its 1,2,3-
TCP treatment facility at the Wilson wellsite.
As of September 30, 20482019, Alhambra’s treatment facilities have treated
approximately 33,832-45635,286.25 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and have
removed approximately 4;040-861,162.30 Ibs. of VOCs and nitrates.

24



PPPPPPPPP



Appendix B

NON-OPERABLE UNIT SPECIFIC PLANS

The overwhelming amount of time spent planning remedial actions is
understandably focused on projects that are related to a specific OU, i.e., Baldwin Park,
El Monte, South EI Monte, Whittier Narrows, and Puente Valley. This is because
USEPA’s enforcement actions in these areas make headlines and demand public
attention. However, necessity for cleanup in the Basin is not limited to the specific
locations designated by USEPA. Because the USEPA mandate is limited to defining
only how a plume of contamination may be contained, their RODs fail to address the
remedial actions necessary to restore water supply wells that are not a part of their
official cleanup plan. Furthermore, many contaminated water supply wells are facing
imminent shutdown or have already been shut down‘and remain in this state largely due
to overburdened regulatory agencies. WQA prescribes the treatment of the water at
these wells to restore the water supplies and to remove contaminant mass from the
Basin thus enhancing future water supplies. Table 4 provides a list of contaminated
wells that are not part of any OU specific plan. Figure 10 shows the locations of these
wells relative to Basin contamination.

Over the past several years the City of Monrovia (“Monrovia”) has experienced
rising levels of VOCs at their Myrtle Well Field. In 2007, Monrovia finished construction
of a VOC treatment facility to help contain contamination and restore lost water supply.

As of September 30, 20482019, Monrovia’s treatment facility has treated
approximately 68,407.8872,553.73 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has
removed approximately +:465-601,216 Ibs. of VOCs.

In addition to Monrovia, the City of Arcadia had to construct a VOC treatment

facility at their Longden Well Field directly down gradient from the Monrovia Well Field.
In 2019, due to increasing levels of contamination, Arcadia finished construction of a

treatment facility at its -ane-s-eurrently-investigating-the-need-for-additional-treatment-at
their Live Oak Well.

26



As of September 30, 26482019, Arcadia’s Longden treatment facility has treated
approximately 76,385-3770,999.62 acre-feet of contaminated groundwater and has
removed approximately 740-50756.80 Ibs. of VOCs.

27



PPPPPPPPP



SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY
Policy and Procedures Manual

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDURES

No. 38

Date: 2/12/01 Revised: 11/21/05
WOA PROJECT PARTICIPATION

Purpose

WQA'’s focused role is primarily to facilitate projects and to seek and provide funds for
remediation projects in the San Gabriel Valley. As a public agency, WQA is accountable to the
general public. Therefore, the WQA shall apply a consistent process to provide opportunities for
input by the public and to qualify projects for WQA participation.

The WQA will also seek to recover costs from potentially responsible parties (PRPs), whenever
practicable and consistent with the policies and procedures of the WQA. To assist in the success
of such cost recoveries, the WQA will evaluate the projects submitted to determine whether the
projects are “necessary” and “consistent” with the National Oil and Hazardous Substances
Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP). For cost recovery purposes, remediation projects will be
considered “necessary” if there is evidence of a release of hazardous substances, the project is
designed to mitigate the impact of such releases and the project is needed to meet regulatory
requirements for remediation and/or water supply.” The determination of necessity shall be based
on data of sufficient quality and quantity to satisfy the WQA. Remediation projects will be
considered “consistent” with the NCP.if the remediation project is in substantial compliance with
the applicable requirements of the NCP and results in a CERCLA-quality clean-up. Specific
potentially applicable NCP requirements are addressed below.

Criteria to which a proposed project shall be measured, but not required, are as follows:

e Project conforms and furthers the objectives of WQA'’s Section 406 Plan or the

intent thereof

Ranking on priority list if multiple requests are competing for available funds

Project is “necessary” and “consistent” with the NCP

Requesting party to pay no less than 25% of capital costs

Funding for operation and maintenance secured from funds other than WQA

assessment

e Implementation of construction anticipated within one year of executed
agreement



Phase 1

A written request for WQA project participation by a Project Committee or any other entity
shall be considered by the full board on a preliminary basis. Staff shall identify potential
funding sources and shall identify all of the criteria the proposed project meets. If approved
by a simple majority of the full board, staff will then allocate resources to implement Phase
Il. Staff shall begin the process of determining whether the project is a California
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Project and, if so, whether it is exempt from CEQA
requirements.

Phase 11

e WQA'’s staff engineer shall prepare a technical report for review by the WQA

Engineering Committee.

e The report shall analyze and review all pertinent documentation, including, but not
limited to, WQA'’s Section 406 Plan, U.S. EPA’s documents, whether the project is
“necessary” and “consistent” with the NCP, Watermaster’s Section 28 Application
and documentation supporting project cost estimates provided by the project owner.

e The report shall present the alternatives considered and an analysis of the cost and
feasibility of such alternatives.

e The report shall also present the basis for the selection of the proposed alternative.

e Inthe event costs are recovered for project capital and/or O&M from PRPs, a separate
agreement may be developed, independent of or jointly with, the affected water
purveyor(s). Such agreement and the terms thereof shall supersede any of the terms
contained within this procedure. This may include allocation of direct and/or indirect
labor costs, overhead, etc. If such agreement.is silent, then terms contained within this
section (Phase 1) shall have primacy.

e WQA staff, in coordination‘with WQA legal counsel and the requesting party or project
committee, shall develop a funding agreement or FFPA letter agreement for review by the
WQA Administrative/Finance Committee.

e As part of the agreement, legal counsel shall identify project components which may
not be legally recoverable from responsible parties, under CERCLA or the WQA Act,
or reimbursable from proposed funding source(s), if any. Staff shall provide oral
communications to the committee regarding legal counsel’s review and provide
recommendations, if appropriate, for modifications to the project to address NCP
requirements. The agreement may include the following minimum components:

= A project description;
= A statement of project costs which shall include an estimate for the major
components of the project as well as estimates for internal costs such as
direct labor, fringe benefits, and overhead.
= Definition of capital and O&M costs (i.e., overhead, legal costs,
contingency, etc.)
e Allowable costs are those costs included in “WQA’s Allowable
Project Capital and Operations and Maintenance Costs”, included
as Attachment “A”.



¢ Internal overhead of all parties to the agreement may be included
in the capital and O&M costs but cannot exceed 5% (Five
percent) of the total costs of the project. Each party shall be
responsible for determining the legally acceptable rate of their
respective overhead and for the documentation and accounting
thereof.
e A maximum 10% contingency shall be considered a part of capital
cost
e WQA'’s costs for CEQA compliance will be considered capital
costs, unless expressly excluded.
= A process for payment of invoices;
= An agreement termination date;
= Change order provisions shall require approval by the project committee
or parties to the agreement;
» Funding apportionments;
= Project owner shall be responsible for compliance with all state and
federal regulatory requirements, contract bidding, and any other
regulations pertinent to the respective funding sources [i.e., CEQA,
USBR, competitive bidding, etc.]. WQA shall be responsible for the
coordination of federal environmental requirements, if applicable, and will
also assist the requesting party with-any project-related required process to
the extent needed, including serving as the lead agency for purposes of
CEQA.
= The project owner shall work with.the WQA to ensure that the project is
managed consistent with.the requirements of the NCP for remedial design,
construction and operation and.maintenance, if applicable.
= The project owner shall work with the WQA to assure that the remediation
project conforms with a health and safety program consistent with 29 CFR
1910.120, if applicable:
= Modification.to the agreement shall require approval by parties to the
agreement.

PHASE 111

In conjunction with the preparation of the staff engineer report and funding agreement, if
the project is not exempt from CEQA requirements, staff shall begin an initial study
required by CEQA. All required CEQA documentation shall be completed before the
implementation of Phase III.

A public notice of the proposed project will be mailed, by the WQA, to interested
individuals and published in a local newspaper. The notice will include a brief summary
of the proposed project and the proposed funding for the project and describe how
interested individuals can provide input to the WQA. A public meeting shall be held,
within the comment period, to describe the proposed project and the proposed funding by
the WQA. At least 30 days notice shall be provided to receive public comments. A
summary of the WQA staff engineer’s report, describing the proposed project, will be
made available to interested members of the community, and be available at the public
meeting and at the WQA offices.



e A record of the public meeting shall be kept and a written summary of the significant
public comments shall be prepared and presented to the WQA Board.

e Based on the original proposal and any modifications needed as a result of public input
the final proposed agreement will be presented to the WQA Board.

e |f the proposed project changes significantly, based on public comments, another public
comment period will be afforded to interested parties.

Phase IV

e Approval for execution of a proposed agreement by the Executive Director shall be
provided by a simple majority of the full board.

e A written agenda submittal providing background and project summary and the
comments received from the public shall be provided to the full board and shall
include a draft funding agreement and the staff engineer report. The submittal shall
certify that legal counsel has approved the draft agreement, unless a final review is
required. In this case, staff may recommend approval contingent upon legal counsel’s
final approval. Any material changes shall require a subsequent approval by a simple
majority of the board.

Phase V

e Project implementation shall require continuous WQA staff oversight.

e Project invoices, regardless of the presence of a project committee, shall be processed
through WQA's internal, multi-level review process to provide redundant oversight.

e Bid documents shall be reviewed by WQA staff to verify that the project
requirements are met by responsible bidders and that the chosen bidder is selected
considering technical and managerial-qualifications, experience, proposed costs and
other relevant factors:

e The remediation project will be designed, constructed and operated consistent with
the proposal approved by the WQA Board.

¢ If the remediation project that is constructed differs significantly from the proposed
remediation project submitted for public comment, an explanation of significant
differences shall be prepared and presented to the public for comment in a manner
consistent with the original proposal.

e The project owner shall work with the WQA to verify that the remediation project
continues to conform with a health and safety program consistent with 29 CFR
1910.120

e The project owner shall work with the WQA to establish a system for project
implementation that includes accurate accounting of costs, proof of payment of and
maintenance of invoices and other cost accounting documentation.

e Progress reports shall be provided by WQA'’s staff engineer at Engineering
Committee and full board meetings once per month minimum.



ATTACHMENT A

SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY
ALLOWABLE PROJECT CAPITAL AND OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS

ALLOWABLE PROJECT CAPITAL COSTS
(Copies of Invoices Required on Iltems 1-9)
Outside Engineering & Design
Equipment
Contractor/Sub-Contractor
Energy/Utilities
Permit Fees
Laboratory Costs
Additional Required Property & Liability Insurance
Outside Legal Fees
a. General preparation and review of project documents (RFPs, contracts, etc.)
9. Land/Property
10. Interest
11. Direct Labor & Fringe (Summary Breakdown Req'd.)
Directly tracked labor (timesheets req'd.)
Medical benefits
Worker's Compensation
Payroll taxes
Pension/Retirement
f. Other employee benefits
12. Overhead (Summary Breakdown Req'ds)
a. Property taxes
b. General Property & Liability Insurance
c. Administrative & Management Salaries & Benefits
d. Vehicle Expense (not mileage)
13. Other Tracked Direct Costs (Breakdown Documentation Reqg'd.)
a. Postage
b. Shipping
c. Copies/Facsimiles
d. Phone
e. Vehicle mileage
f. Other tracked direct costs
14. Unique cost items for a specific project (Requires approval by WQA)

©O NG AL

® o0 o

ALLOWABLE PROJECT OPERATION & MAINTENANCE COSTS
(Copies of Invoices Required on Iltems 1-9)

1. Laboratory Costs

Consumables

3.  Energy/Utilities

N



No oA

© ©

10.

11.

12.

Incremental energy/utilities costs (Treatment Plant)
Permit Fees

Contractor/Sub-Contractor

Outside Legal Fees

a. General preparation and review of project documents (RFPs, contracts, etc.)
Equipment

Additional Required Property & Liability Insurance
Direct Labor & Fringe (Summary Breakdown Reqg'd.)
a. Directly tracked labor (timesheets req'd.)

b. Medical benefits

c. Worker's Compensation

d

e

f.

. Payroll taxes
. Pension/Retirement
Other employee benefits

Overhead (Summary Breakdown Reqg'd.)
a. Property taxes
b. General Property & Liability Insurance
c. Administrative & Management Salaries & Benefits
d. Vehicle Expense (not mileage)
Other Tracked Direct Costs (Breakdown Documentation Reg'd.)
Postage
Shipping
Copies/Facsimiles
Phone
Vehicle mileage
. Other tracked direct costs

® 20 o

—h



PPPPPPPPP



Appendix G

MEMBER WATER DISTRICT PROJECTS

The WQA, in coordination with its three member water districts, USGMWD,
TVMWD and SGVMWD, incorporates the following projects by reference. The projects

are sponsored, administered and implemented by the water districts.

Itis WQA'’s

determination that these projects: 1) directly benefit the Basin; 2) help augment WQA'’s

groundwater cleanup activities; and therefore 3) help enhance the long-term reliability of

the Basin’s water supply.

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Description

Fulton Plant Water Resource Enhancements

Utilization of District's Fulton Property to develop
groundwater well, nitrate removal facility, 1.0 MG reservoir, and
appurtenant piping. (TVMWD)

Covina Irrigating Company Water Treatment & Supply Plan

Upgrade of surface water treatment processes at Temple
Plant and addition of a groundwater treatment facility and
transmission pipelines. (TVMWD)

Imported Water Spreading Connection at San Dimas Wash

Raw water service connection to MWD’s Foothill Feeder
to replenish groundwater in the Basin on behalf of Golden State
Water Company. (TVMWD)

Extension of PM-26 Replenishment Service Connection

Pipeline facilities and turnout from existing connection in
Little Dalton Wash to Big Dalton Wash for enhanced groundwater
replenishment opportunities in the Basin. (TVMWD)

TVMWD — SGVMWD Interconnection
Raw water connection between District's Miramar Plant
and nearby Azusa~Devil's Canyon Pipeline. (TVMWD)

30

Estimated Budget

$4,000,000

$7,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,750,000



6)

7)

8)

9)

Alosta Connection
Provide operational flexibility to Upper DistrictYMWD to
provide untreated imported water to Canyon Basin area.

(SGVMWD)

Extension of SGVMWD Pipeline
Provide groundwater recharge to Raymond Basin and to
Eaton S.B. (SGVMWD)

Wellfield Outside of Alhambra Pumping Hole

Provide alternative sources of supply to various purveyors
to reduce the drawdown in the pumping hole area. Consists of
new wells, pumps and transmission pipeline. (SGVMWD &
USGVMWD)

Suburban Water Systems Improvements

Infrastructure  improvements including well(s) and
transmission pipelines to convey groundwater. (USGVMWD)

10) New Spreading Ground Development

Infrastructure  improvements including well(s) and
transmission pipeline to convey groundwater. (USGVMWD)

31

$2,000,000

$10,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$10,000,000



SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY
SAN GABRIEL BASIN GROUNDWATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT AND REMEDIATION PLAN

Table 1 - Major WQA Activities and Milestones

Month Year | Area Activity/Milestone
Sept. | 2018 WQA Participates as a founding partner of the 5th San Gabriel Valley Water Forum
Sept.| 2018 | PVOU |WQA held a groundbreaking ceremony for the Intermediate Zone Remedy**
Mar. | 2018 | SEMOU |SWRCB awards $118,264 in Proposition 1 funding for the Whitmore Street Groundwater Remediation Facility Expanded Site Investigation**
Mar. | 2018 WQA celebrates its 25th aniversary
Feb. | 2018 | EMOU |Eastside Intermediate Zone Remedy facilities completed
May | 2018 | BPOU |BPOU Project Agreement Extension Completed
Sept.| 2016 WQA Participates as a founding partner of the 4th San Gabriel Valley Water Forum
Jan. | 2016 | EMOU |Eastside Shallow Zone Remedy facilities completed
Nov. | 2015 All Initiated comprehensive basinwide database cooperation between WQA, USEPA and Watermaster
Jul. | 2015 All_ |Final Award for IRWMP funding from Prop 84
Apr. | 2015 | BPOU |Initiated BPOU Project Agreement Extension Negotiations
Nov | 2014 ALL |WQA re-allocates $5.9M in federal funding to qualified projects
Nov | 2014 ALL |Proposition 1 approved by voters
Oct | 2014 WQA Participates as a founding partner of the 3rd annual San Gabriel Valley Water Forum
July | 2014 ALL |Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board adopts WQA's basinwide NPDES Discharge Permit
April | 2014 | BPOU |WQA partners with Covina Irrigating Company in hosting a groundbreaking ceremony for CIC Baldwin Pumping Plant
Oct. | 2013 WAQA participates as a founding partner of the 2nd annual San Gabriel Valley Water Forum
Sept.| 2013 Governor signs SB 429 extending WQA's sunset date to July 1, 2030
Jan. | 2013 | SEMOU |WQA concluded settlement agreements with 72 responsible parties encompassing 9 Consent Decrees
Dec. | 2012 |SEMOU |SWRCB awards $950,646 to WQA for Whitmore Street Groundwater Remediation Facility**
Oct. | 2012 | EMOU |Dedication of the El Monte Operable Unit Westside Shallow Zone Remedy Project
Aug. | 2012 WQA participates as a founding partner of the 1st annual San Gabriel Valley Water Forum
Apr. | 2012 ALL |Secured $10M in Proposition 84 funding for four projects
Jan. | 2012 | EMOU |Westside Shallow Zone Remedy facilities completed
Aug. | 2011 ALL |WQA submitted applications on behalf of 5 projects for the second round of Proposition 84 funding
Jun. | 2011 ALL  |WQA launched its social media campaign on Facebook, Twitter and YouTube
Sept.| 2010 ALL |AB153 passes to allow future WQA bond funding to be used for treatment and remediation
Mar. | 2010 | SEMOU |Initiated reimbursements from Consent Decree settlements
Mar. | 2009 ALL |Congress passed H.R. 146 which included an additional $50 million for the Restoration Fund
Oct. | 2008 | ATOU |City of Alhambra's Phase Il treatment facility completed
Oct. | 2008 | SEMOU |Dedication of WQA's Whitmore Street groundwater remediation treatment facility
Nov. | 2007 |SEMOU |1-4 Dioxane & VOC Treatment Project completed at Bozung site**
Nov. | 2007 |SEMOU |Two Consent Decrees filed by U.S. EPA as a result of settlements between WQA, affected purveyors, several PRPs, U.S. EPA & DTSC.
Oct. | 2007 Governor signs AB 1010 extending WQA's sunset date to July 1, 2017
Sept. | 2007 | SEMOU |SWRCB awards $1.4M to WQA for project at Bozung site (capital & O&M)**
Jan. | 2007 | BPOU [San Gabriel Valley Water Company B5 treatment facility completed
Jan. | 2007 Congressman Dreier Introduced HR 123 to raise authorization cap of the Restoration Fund by $50M
Oct. | 2007 City of Monrovia's Myrtle Wellfield treatment facility completed
Jun. | 2006 | SEMOU |Monterey Park Well No. 5 perchlorate blending facility completed
Aug. | 2005 | BPOU |Valley County Water District SA-1 treatment facility completed
Nov. | 2004 |SEMOU |San Gabriel Valley Water Company Plant No. 8 secondary barrier completed
Apr. | 2004 | SEMOU |Plant No. 8 sentinel well completed
Feb. | 2004 | SEMOU |Monterey Park Well No. 12 secondary barrier completed
Jan. | 2004 | SEMOU |Monterey Park Well No. 15 completed
Jul 2004 | BPOU |San Gabriel Valley Water Company B6 treatment facility completed
Jun 2004 Proposition 50 p and includes $7M loan for WQA

Note: Groundwater remediation projects in BOLD were completed with funding participation from WQA. **Projects solely funded and operated by WQA.

Page 1 0f 2

December 05, 2018



SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY
SAN GABRIEL BASIN GROUNDWATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT AND REMEDIATION PLAN

Table 1 (cont.) - Major WQA Activities and Milestones

Month Year Area Activity/Milestone
Nov. | 2003 | SEMOU |Monterey Park Well Nos. 1,3,10 treatment facility completed
Oct. | 2003 | SEMOU |Monterey Park Well No. 12 Delta Plant perchlorate treatment facility completed
May | 203 Governor signs AB 334 extending WQA's sunset date to July 1, 2010
Apr. | 2003 | SEMOU [San Gabriel Valley Water Company G4 treatment facility completed
Mar. | 2003 | BPOU |BPOU Project Agreement completed
Feb. | 2003 | EMOU |Golden State Water Company Encinita Phase Ill treatment facility completed
Apr. | 2002 | SEMOU |Led negotiations with settling parties (G10 & G13) and administered settlement funds
Mar. | 2001 | SEMOU |Golden State Water Company SG1 & SG2 treatment facility completed
Apr. | 2000 | SEMOU |San Gabriel Valley Water Company Plant No. 8 treatment facility completed
Mar. | 2000 WQA Board adopts the Amended San Gabriel Basin Groundwater Quality Management & Remediation Plan and updates it annually thereafter
Feb. | 2000 | BPOU |LPVCWD treatment plant construction completed
Jan. | 2000 | WNOU |Whittier Narrows Barrier project completed**
Aug. | 1999 | Area 3 |Alhambra Phase | treatment facility completed
May | 1999 |SEMOU |Led development of ROD and implementation of projects
Apr. | 1999 | SEMOU |WQA-sponsored investigation and design study completed
Jan. | 1999 ALL |Spear-headed legislative effort (H.R. 910) with San Gabriel Valley Water Association to acquire $75M in federal funding to accelerate cleanup
Jul. | 1999 | SEMOU |[Monterey Park Well No. 5 treatment facility completed
Jul. | 1999 | SEMOU |South EI Monte Barrier project completed**
Jun. | 1999 | SEMOU |Monterey Park Well No. 12 air stripping treatment facility completed
Nov. | 1998 | EMOU |Golden State Water Company Encinita Phase | & Il treatment facility completed
Oct. | 1998 | BPOU |WQA first to authorize $1.5M to expedite LPVCWD Perchlorate and NDMA treatment facility construction and.acquires 25% USBR funding
Mar. | 1998 | EMOU |Clayton Manufacturing treatment facility construction completed
Jul. | 1998 | EMOU |WQA sponsored investigation and design study completed
Jul. | 1998 | EMOU |WQA and PRPs form partnership to conduct voluntary design and implementation of early action cleanup
Sep. | 1997 | BPOU |WQA successfully acquires $1.7M from a state administered escrow funds and reimburses BPOU producer for cleanup costs
Nov. | 1996 | EMOU |Crown City Plating/Hermetic Seal treatment facility construction completed
Feb. | 1996 | BPOU |State and Federal Environmental Documentation Completed for BPOU cleanup
Feb. | 1996 | BPOU |Final design and construction administration transferred to Three Valleys MWD
Jun. | 1996 | BPOU |Discovery of perchlorate contamination
Nov. | 1995 |SEMOU |WQA and PRPs form partnership to conduct voluntary investigations and remedy design study
May | 1995 | BPOU |Big Dalton treatment facility completed
Apr. | 1995 | BPOU |WQA and PRPs form partnership for voluntary pre-design leading to $4.39M in contributions from PRPs
Feb. | 1995 |Monrovia|Monrovia treatment facility completed
Feb. | 1995 | EMOU |WQA and PRPs form partnership to conduct voluntary investigations‘and remedy design study
Aug. | 1994 | BPOU |WQA develops Consensus Approach plan integrating water supply and cleanup
Jun. | 1993 WQA Board adopted the San Gabriel Basin Groundwater Quality Management & Remediation Plan (406 Plan)
Jan. | 1992 | BPOU |Arrow Well treatment facility completed
Sep. | 1992 Governor signs SB 1679 which establishes WQA

Note: Groundwater remediation projects in BOLD were completed with funding participation from WQA. **Projects solely funded and operated by WQA.

Page 2 of 2

December 05, 2018



SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER
QUALITY AUTHORITY
SAN GABRIEL BASIN

GROUNDWATER QUALITY

MANAGEMENT AND REMEDIATION PLAN

Table 2- Estimated Costs of
WQA-Assisted Projects
Within Operable Unit Areas
Plans per Fiscal Year

REVIEWED 02/13/2020

FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 FISCAL Y

| OPERABLE UNIT CAPITAL oam CAPITAL oam CAPITAL osM CAPITAL oam CAPITAL oM CAPITAL
BALDWIN PARK
LPVCWD (2) 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
LPVCWD New Well & Single Pass Perchlorate Treatment (2) 438,000 438,000 438,000 438,000 438,000
SGVWC B6 (7) 15500,000 4,600,000 4,600,000 4,600,000 4,600,000 4,600,000
SGVWC B5 (2) 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,300,000 |
'VCWD Arrow/Lante (2) 5,200,000 5,200,000 5,200,000 5,200,000 5,200,000
VCWD Nixon Wells Treatment (14) 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 600,000 |
California Domestic Well 14-NDMA, VOC (2), (3) 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
California Domestic Well 14-Perchlorate (2), (3)
California Domestic Well 14 Rehabilitation (14)
California Domestic New Well and Treatment (14)
SWS Extraction Wells & Pipelines (2), (3) 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 350,000
CIC Baldwin Wells Pumping Plant (14)
|[EL MONTE
West Shallow Extraction (4) 1,500,000 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,400,000
East Shallow Extraction (5) 630,000 630,000 630,000 630,000 630,000
GSWC Encinita Plant (1) 184,450 184,450 184,450 184,450 184,450
ESPSD/City of EI Monte East Deep Extraction (5) 330,000 330,000 330,000 330,000 330,000
SOUTH EL MONTE
Monterey Park No.5 (1)
Monterey Park No.5 Perchlorate Blending (1) 17,000 17,000 17,000 17,000 17,000
Monterey Park Centralized UV (6) 510,000 510,000 510,000 510,000 510,000
Monterey Park No.12 & No.15 VOC (1) 522,000 522,000 522,000 522,000 522,000
Monterey Park No. 15 Well and Pipeline (1) 104,000 104,000, 104,000 104,000 104,000
Monterey Park No.12 & No.15 Secondary Barrier (1) 180,000 180,000 180,000 180,000 180,000
SGVWC Plant 8 (1) 175,000 175,000 175,000 175,000 175,000
SGVWC Plant 8 Secondary Barrier (1) 365,000 365,000 365,000 365,000 365,000
SGVWC Plant 8 Perchlorate, 1,4-Dioxane (14) 1,500,000 750,000 750,000 750,000 750,000 750,000
SGVWC Plant G4 (1)
GSWC SG1 & SG2 VOC (1) 179,000 179,000 179,000 179,000 179,000
GSWC Nitrate Blend (8) 10,850 10,850 10,850 10,850 10,850
WQA WSGREF Project 167,000 167,000 167,000 167,000 167,000
WHITTIER NARROWS
DTSC Intermediate Zone Remedy 3,000,000 620,000 8,000,000 620,000 2,000,000 620,000 620,000 620,000
[PUENTE VALLEY
UTC Shallow Zone Remedy (11) 5,000,000 10/000,000 1,280,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
Northrop Intermediate Extraction (12) 1,500,000 1,479,350 1,479,350 1,479,350 1,479,350 1,479,350
Northrop Benchmark Extraction (12) 15,000,000 3,000,000 1,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000
AREA 3
Alhambra Water Treatment Facilities Phase | (1) 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000
Alhambra Water Treatment Facilities Phase I (13) 1,080,338 1,080,338 1,080,338 1,080,338 1,080,338

TOTAL COSTS 29,000,000 25,391,988 21,000,000 27,671,988 2,000,000 29,391,988 - 29,391,988 29,391,988 -1

Notes:
(1) Existing Projects
(2) BPOU Project Agreement Estimate, May 2002.

(3) Project not included in Operable Unit Specfic Plan, but is
includeded in the comprehensive BPOU Project Agreement

4)
(5)
(6) City of Monterey Park Estimate, March 2015
)

7) San Gabriel Valley Water Company Estimate,July 2016

8
9) Discontinued 2004
1
1

(
(
(
(
(
(
(

) Golden State Water Company Estimate, September 2012

0) U.S Environmental Protection Agency Estimate, February 2004
1) UTC Estimate, January 2011
West Side Performing Settling Defendants Estimate, November 2017 (12) Northrop Estimate,July 2018
East Side Performing Settling Defendants Estimate, July 2014 13) City of Alhambra Estimate March 2008

14) FFPA Estimate July 2014

*Costs are present value and do not include monitoring wells and
long term monitoring, which may be required by EPA.



SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY

TABLE 3 - SCHEDULE OF FUNDING FROM POTENTIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARTIES AND OTHER SOURCES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2019

FUNDING FOR CAPITAL AND

TREATMENT & REMEDIATION COSTS" 2 SEMOU BPou* Emou’ pvou’ ATOU® Other’ Total
Responsible Parties $ 15,681,766 $ 552,679,601 $ 51,053,979 $ 106,207,492 $ = $ - $ 725,622,838
EPA Federal Grants & Settlements with Responsible Parties® 23,673,725 - - - - - 23,673,725
Federal Grants - Bureau of Reclamation 13,923,033 48,357,671 10,188,794 5,320,769 3,163,612 1,692,803 82,646,682
State Grants - SWRCB ' 5,000,000 4,629,416 - - - - 9,629,416
State Grants - SWRCB Clean Up & Abatement 2,375,646 - - - - - 2,375,646
State Grants - DTSC - 2,853,658 - - - 684,499 3,538,157
State Loan - DTSC (Responsible Parties) - 6,440,000 - - = = 6,440,000
State Funding - Proposition 84 8 5,250,000 7,897,473 1,500,000 - - - 14,647,473
Water Producers 30,481,081 19,028,018 1,283,000 2,500,000 11,244,903 3,909,546 68,446,548
Watermaster - 358,319 - - - - 358,319
WQA Sources (Assessments, interest, etc.) 5,315,543 4,328,578 1,608,653 - - 836,548 12,089,322

Total Funding for Capital and Treatment & Remediation $ 101,700,794 $ 646,572,734 $ 65,634,426 $ 114,028,261 $ 14,408,515 $ 7,123,396 $ 949,468,126

ESTIMATED COSTS FOR CAPITAL

AND TREATMENT & REMEDIATION 2 % °
FUNDING GAP

©*

193,027,324  $ 873,123,052 ~ $ 120,163,252 $ 196,916,435 $ 34,623,815 $ 31,851,363 $ 1,449,705,241

©»

(91,326,530) $ (226,550,318) $ (54,528,826) $ (82,888,174) $ (20,215300) $ (24,727,967) $  (500,237,115)

ANNOTATIONS

1

2

10

Funding for Capital Projects and Treatment & Remediation ("T & R") Costs reflects funding abligations per current agreements including funds received to date and future anticipated funds.

The dollar amounts for future anticipated funds and estimated costs do_not include an inflation factor. Although there are currently agreements in place for the funding of future Capital
Projects and T & R Costs, the agreements do not specify the timing of the funding contributions, nor is the funding itself guaranteed.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") and the U.S. Department of Justice have lodged Consent Decrees which require Responsible Parties to pay a certain amount. WQA has
entered into Cooperative Agreements with EPA for $15.27M of these funds. EPA also granted $2.65M of additional Superfund funding to the Cooperative Agreement. EPA is holding an
additional $5.75M from the Consent Decrees which will be added to the cooperative agreement at a future date.

The BPOU agreement covers Capital Projects as well as T & R Costs for operations through 2027. Treatment costs shown above are projected to be ongoing for an additional 5 to10 years.
Area Three Operable Unit (ATOU) does not currently have a source of funding for T & R Costs. Treatment is projected for 15 years.

Funding for Capital Projects and T & R has been provided for treatment facilities that are located within the San Gabriel Basin boundaries but are operating outside the bounds of known
operable units.

State Loan - DTSC, shown above as a source of funding, is being repaid to the State of California by the BPOU Responsible Parties.

Funding for Capital Projects includes $9.40M from the second round of Proposition 84, Section 75025, as well as $5.25M in a Proposition 84 IRWMP grant.

Responsible Parties are projected to fund T & R Costs for the EMOU and the PVOU for 8 years as required by the Consent Decrees. Treatment Costs shown above are projected to be
ongoing for 30 years, therefore the remaining years are considered unfunded.

State funding for SEMOU includes $5.0M of Proposition 1 funding which requires a match ranging from 10% to 50%.




SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY
SAN GABRIEL BASIN GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT AND REMEDIATION PLAN

Table 4 - Additional Existing and Potential Projects Basinwide
(With and Without WQA Funding)

PURVEYOR WELL NAME TREATMENT ESTIMATED COSTS (3) CAPACITY (GPM)

ALHAMBRA, CITY OF 09 LGAC $ 650,000 590
AMARILLO MUTUAL WATER (1) 01 & 02 LGAC $ 400,000 1,100
ARCADIA, CITY OF ST. JOSEPH LGAC/IONEXCHANGE $ 5,250,000 3,000
ARCADIA, CITY OF LIVE OAK LGAC $ 1,500,000 3,000
AZUSA, CITY OF GEN. 3 LGAC $ 1,060,000 3,780
AZUSA, CITY OF 10 LGAC $ 1,840,000 2,650
CALIFORNIA AMERICAN HOWLAND LGAC $ 1,040,000 1,060
CALIFORNIA AMERICAN IVAR 1 LGAC $ 1,500,000 780
CALIFORNIA AMERICAN ROSEMEAD LGAC $ 650,000 580
CALIFORNIA AMERICAN ROANOKE LGAC $ 1,040,000 1,210
COVINA, CITY OF 102 ION EXCHANGE, LGAC $ 6,700,000 600
EL MONTE, CITY OF 10 LGAC $ 1,440,000 2,000
EL MONTE, CITY OF 13 LGAC $ 500,000 1,500
GLENDORA, CITY OF (2) IRWINDALE ION EXCHANGE $ 9,000,000+5,000,000)(2) 4,250
LA VERNE, CITY OF ION EXCHANGE $ 3,500,000 2,000
MONROVIA, CITY OF MYRTLE WELLS LGAC/IONEXCHANGE $ 4,780,000 6,000
MONTEREY PARK, CITY OF 109 LGAC $ 1,440,000 1,980
SAN GABRIEL COUNTY WATER DISTRICT 10 ION EXCHANGE 2,200
GSWC SAN DIMAS ART-3 and BAS-3,4 10N EXCHANGE, LGAC $ 6,590,000 360]
GSWC SAN DIMAS COL-4, 6 ION EXCHANGE

GSWC SAN GABRIEL (1) JEF 1 LGAC $ 1,440,000 600]
GSWC SAN GABRIEL JEF 2 LGAC 350
GSWC SAN GABRIEL JEF 3 LGAC 960
GSWC SAN GABRIEL (1) GARVEY 3 LGAC $ 1,500,000 1,500]

Revised 02/13/2020



SAN GABRIEL BASIN WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY

SAN GABRIEL BASIN GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT AND REMEDIATION PLAN

Table 4 (cont.) - Additional Existing and Potential Projects Basinwide

(With and Without WQA Funding)

PURVEYOR WELL NAME TREATMENT ESTIMATED COSTS (3) CAPACITY (GPM)

SOUTH PASADENA, CITY OF (1) WIL 2 LGAC $ 2,348,000 3,000}
SOUTH PASADENA, CITY OF WIL 3 LGAC 1,590
SOUTH PASADENA, CITY OF WIL 4 LGAC 1,040
SOUTH PASADENA, CITY OF GRAV 2 LGAC $ 2,356,000 900|
SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS (1) 139W-2 ION EXCHANGE, UV OxIDATION | $ 5,000,000 2,570
SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS 139W-4 ION EXCHANGE, UV OXIDATION 2,580
SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS 139W-5 |ON EXCHANGE, UV OXIDATION 3,470
SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS 139W-6 |ON EXCHANGE, UV-OXIDATION 3,500
SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS (1), (5) 140W-3 ION EXCHANGE; UV oxIDATION . $ 7,360,000 850]
SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS 140W-5 |ON EXCHANGE, UV OXIDATION 3,720
VALENCIA HEIGHTS WATER 06 ION EXCHANGE, ARSTRIPPING | $ 4,570,000 2,180
VALLEY COUNTY WATER PADDY LN ION EXCHANGE, AR STRIPPING | $ 6,750,000 1,460
VALLEY COUNTY WATER (6) PALM LGAC $ 640,000 790
VALLEY COUNTY WATER MORADA ION EXCHANGE, LGAC $ 6,640,000 1,200
WHITTIER, CITY OF 18 AIR STRIPPING $ 3,030,000 5,210
NOTES

PROJECTS IN BOLD RECEIVED WQA FUNDING
1) COSTS FOR ENTIRE WELLFIELD
2) CITY OF GLENDORA'S 1999 COST ESTIMATE
3) STETSON ENGINEERS ESTIMATE, JANUARY 2001
4) INCLUDED IN SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS 139W-2 COST
5) UV TREATMENT NOT INCLUDED IN ESTIMATED COSTS
)

(
(
(
(
(
(6

EXISTING PROPERTY CANNOT ACCOMMODATE TREATMENT FACILITY

Revised 02/13/2020



Table 5 — Project Scoring

QUESTION

PTS.

RESPONSE

Is applicant(s) ready to proceed with the
groundwater remediation project?

0

Not fully ready to proceed

10 | Yes, ready to proceed
0 Does not complement plan and is not
consistent
Does the project complement U.S. USEPA'’s plans? 5 Complements and is consistent with USEPA
Is it consistent with USEPA’s plans and the NCP? plans
10 Complements and is consistent with USEPA
plans and NCP
0 Not effective relative to amount treated &
available for use
How effective is project relative to amount of water
treated and made available for use? Does the 5 Somewhat effective and consistent with BAT
project use technology consistent with BAT?
10 Effective relative to amount treated &
available for use, consistent with BAT
0 No
What are the impacts or potential impacts to the 5 S impact
plume within the Main San Gabriel Basin? ome impac
15 | Verysignificant impact
0 Not a joint cleanup and supply project
Is project a joint cleanup and water supply project? 5 Only a cleanup project
15 | Yes, project is a joint cleanup/supply project
0 N/A
Is project partially or solely funded by affected .
purveyor(s)? 5 Yes, partially funded by purveyor(s)
10 | Yes, solely funded by purveyor(s)
Does the project address immediate water supply 0 No
needs in the MSG Basin? 15 Yes
Does the project address a need for migration 0 No
control? 15 | Yes
0 No PRP agreement
Is project partially or solely funded by PRPs 5 | Yes partially funded by PRPs with an
through an executed agreement? agreement
10 Yes, solely funded by PRPs with an

agreement




Table 6 — Priority Ranking

CATEGORY S TITLE XV RESTOR/TION
Category 1 90-100 0 to 25% up ;?1 g/i"rﬁn_l_?sital
Category 2 80-89 0 to 25% up ;?] SE?T"SS“&"
Category 4 0-69 b:f;ggm?y” up ;(;] gg‘?Tczgital




-FIGURE 1-
San Gabriel Basin Contamination

O
@ X<V
Huntington Dr.

Area 3 Operable Unit

"PAIg peawayd

El Monte Operable Unit ‘/J Z Baldwin Park Operable Unit
A  °

N
ENTEIN: SES

5
{of
Q

. . O
South EI Monte O ble Unit uente Valle erable Uni
ou onte Operable Uni Puente Valley Operable Unit \Q'\Q

N O
C@ Whittier Narrows Operable Unit
sy
VOC Contamination 8y
Sy,

- Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

Updated 02/13/2020




VCWD Subarea 1 Treatment Facility
Completed Construction in 2004
7,800 gpm

Use: Potable

DEC/( "o

CDWC Basset Wells Treatment Facility
Completed Construction in 2002

5,000 gpm
Use: Potable

—‘—
-_—, 4"%'—
- N

é '

SGVWC Plant B5 Treatment Facility
Completed Construction in 2007

7,800 gpm
Use: Potable
4
4
4
J é\b
4 R
S
“%

.-:é___$_

AV ITVYANIMAI

AV LNIONIA

SGVWC Plant B6 Treatment Facility
Completed Construction in 2004
7,800 gpm

Use: Potable

LPVCWD Treatment Facility
Completed Construction in 2000
2,500 gpm

Use: Potable

N
P
o
%O
N
o
%

W BADILLO ST

-Figure 2-
Prescribed Remedy
Baldwin Park
Operable Unit

N

mmm== DPipeline
- Remedial Extraction Well

A Treatment Plant

e \Nashes

VOC Contamination

I Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

Source:

Ecology and Environment, Inc.
San Gabriel Basin Database GIS
Prepared for EPA 2011

B T ies

0 0.15 03 0.6 0.9 1.2

Updated 02/13/2020




¢l

SGVWC Plant G4

Existing Well and Treatment Faciltiy
1,200 gpm

Use: Potable

GSWC SG1 & SG2

Existing Wells and Treatment Faciltiy
2,200 gpm

Use: Potable

Monterey Park Delta Pumping Plant
Existing Wells and Treatment

4,500 gpm
Use: Potable

-Figure 3-
Prescribed Remedy
South El Monte
Operable Unit

WQA Whitmore Street Groundwater Remediation Faciltiy
Existing Wells and Treatment

100 gpm

Use: Discharge

GARVEY AV

]

Monterey Park Well No. 15
Existing Well and Pipeline
2,500 gpm
Use: Potable

Monterey Park Well No. 5

Existing Well and Treament Facility
2,100 gpm

Use: Potable

SAN GABRIEL BLVD

WALNUT GROVE AV

Monterey Park Well No. 12
Existing Well and Treatment Facility
4,500 gpm

Use: Potable

RUSH ST

¢l

N ROSEMEAD BLVD

SGVWC Plant 8

Existing Wells and Treatment Facility
5,000 gpm

Use: Potable

=== Pipeline
-Eb— Remedial Extraction Well

A Treatment Plant

—— Washes

VOC Contamination
Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

Source:

Ecology and Environment, Inc.
San Gabriel Basin Database GIS
Prepared for EPA 2011

1,300 650 0 1,300 Feet

Updated 02/13/2020




ENCINITAAV

WSPSD Westside Shallow Remedy
Existing Wells, Pipeline and Treament
200 gpm

Use: Discharge

RIO HONDO AV

LOW ER

AZUSARD

)
RSy, Wi,

-Figure 4-
Prescribed Remedy
Shallow Zone
El Monte
Operable Unit

ESPSD Eastside Shallow Remedy
Proposed Wells, Pipeline and Treatment
200 gpm

Use: Re-injection

N

Pipeline
Remedial Extraction Well
Treatment Plant

Injection Well

0@»4}'

Proposed Extraction Well

Washes

VOC Contamination
- Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

Source:

Ecology and Environment, Inc.
San Gabriel Basin Database GIS
Prepared for EPA 2011

1,000 500 0 1,000 Feet

Updated 02/13/2020




ROSEMEAD BLVD

CAWC

Existing Wells and Treatment
100 gpm

Use: Off-Line

ENCINITA AV

GSWC/WSPSD
Existing Wells and Treatment
2,250 gpm

Use: Potable

GUESS ST,

RIO HONDO AV T

RALPH ST

LOW

gRAZUSARD

STRANG AV

&
g

&
<

-Figure 5-
Prescribed Remedy
Intermediate Zone
El Monte
Operable Unit

ESPSD/City of El Monte

Proposed Wells, Pipeline and Treament
600 gpm
Use; Potable

N

—— Pipeline
4 Extraction Well
A Treatment Plant

Washes

VOC Contamination
Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

Source:

Ecology and Environment, Inc.
San Gabriel Basin Database GIS
Prepared for EPA 2011

1,100 550 0 1,100 Feet

Updated 02/13/2020




Whittier Narrows Dam

ourFEER

-Figure 6-
Prescribed Remedy
Whittier Narrows
Operable Unit

EPA Whittier Narrows Remedy
3,600 gpm
Use: Recharge/Potable

N

= Pipeline
ﬂ} Remedial Extraction Well

A Treatment Plant

—— Washes

VOC Contamination
Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

- Dams

Source:

Ecology and Environment, Inc.
San Gabriel Basin Database GIS
Prepared for EPA 2011

800 400 0 800 Feet

Updated 02/13/2020




Future Treatment Site
Shallow Zone Remedy
North of Puente Creek

R
@ "
.,
.
.
.
0
Y :’0
s . .
& R4 o,
%O <. e,
.
OQS. ® ‘.'0
<~ ‘e,
.
,\Yg ¢ LR
& "
)
S S .
% < *
. *
A 0’.
O. 6\
. i,
. Q %
"0‘ “‘C;) QA QO
8
* Q \sl
. R4 %\‘7'
0 o
. Ol OQ.
&, O X
". 6\( Ot Yy
0 \S‘O * @)
*o 4/4 ‘?% QS =
wJv O Tty
& e QX .
L s, K3 ‘e
% o A\ e
< RN <. N
)y K . S0
) g . 2 B, ®
b & - R
* .. R ‘0 . ’:
0
e ..o’ R K
O. o
K @ puentS o
S
&
= R .@
K Shallow Zone Remedy
K South of Puente Creek
o
®,
%
)
‘0
‘0
R
o
0“
3

Future Treatment Site
Shallow Zone Remedy
South of Puente Creek

-Figure 7-
Prescribed Remedy
Shallow Zone
Puente Valley
Operable Unit

N

= = = =1 Shallow Zone Remedy Pipeline
@ SZ Remedial Extraction Well

A Treatment Plant

Washes

VOC Contamination
- Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

Source:

Ecology and Environment, Inc.
San Gabriel Basin Database GIS
Prepared for EPA 2011

1,100 550 0 1,100 Feet

Updated 02/13/2020




R

-Figure 8-
Prescribed Remedy
Intermediate Zone
Puente Valley
Operable Unit

N

—  |Ntermediate Zone Remedy Pipeline
—E’} 1Z Remedial Extraction Well

A Treatment Plant

Washes

VOC Contamination
Exceedance

- Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

Source:
) Ecology and Environment, Inc.
Future Treatment Site . .
PVOU IZ Remedy San Gabriel Basin Database GIS
2,000 gpm Prepared for EPA 2011
Use: Potable
1,200 600 0 1,200 Feet

Updated 02/13/2020




NATLANTIC BLVD

*

-Figure 9-
Prescribed Remedy
Area 3
Operable Unit

City of South Pasadena Wilson Treatment
VOC Treatment Plant

3,000 gpm

Use: Potable

E LAS TUNAS DR

&,
ISS/
On
0

City of Alhambra Phase I
VOC Treatment Plant
7,000 gpm

Use: Potable

City of Alhambra Phase |
VOC Treatment Plant
1,650 gpm

Use: Potable

N

Y EPAInstalled Monitoring Well

A Treatment Plant

Greater than 100x MCL
Greater than 20x MCL
Greater than 10x MCL
Greater than 1x MCL

Source:

Ecology and Environment, Inc.
San Gabriel Basin Database GIS
Prepared for EPA 2011

2,100 1,050 0 2,100 Feet

Updated 02/13/2020




-FIGURE 10- _
Superfund vs. Nonsuperfund Projects

@6«* HUNTINGTON DR

AZUSA AV /
o
=
o

V‘

110

Vﬂr
[+
> >
>
» RoseEMEAR BLVD

S GARFIELDpp

Z
S S
Q%QF‘Q
e

>

- Greater than 100x MCL @Q,)
Greater than 20x MCL ‘S>/)
Greater than 10x MCL

Greater than 1x MCL

Covered Under Superfund
Updated 02/13/2020

Treatment Facilities Not
Covered Under Superfund

@ Treatment Facilities Potentially
A




- Figure 11 -
Disadvantaged Communities in the San Gabriel Basin

2017 Disadvantaged Communities Block Group| ) ) )
Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN,
San Gabriel Valley Basin GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan, METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c)
OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community




FIGURE 12 — The number of treatment plants operating in the Basin through June
30, 2019.

15

10 -

S S S S S
% % B B % % % % %




FIGURE 13 — The total amount of water treated and contaminants removed in the
Basin. WQA considers the overall impact of the combined cleanup projects. This chart
demonstrates how much contaminant mass has been removed from the Basin and how
much treated water the projects have made available for beneficial use through June
30, 2019.



DRAFT

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCESS
FOR THE
AMENDED
SAN GABRIEL BASIN
GROUNDWATER QUALITY MANAGEMENT AND REMEDIATION PLAN FOR 2020

2/19/20 WQA Board Meeting Approve Draft Plan for Public Comment Period
Open 25-day Public Comment Period

2/24/20 San Gabriel Valley Tribune Notice of Public Comment Period Posted

(est.) La Opinion Newspaper Notice of Public Comment Period Posted in Spanish
WWW.wga.com Notice Posted on WQA Website

3/10/20 WQA Admin/Finance Committee Receive Comments on Draft Plan

3/16/20 Close of 25-day Public Comment Period Comments must be received by 5:00 P.M.

3/18/20 Regular Board Meeting Presentation on Comments/Responses Received

Present Revised Plan for Adoption


http://www.wqa.com/

AGENDA SUBMITTAL

To: WQA Board Members

From: Kenneth R. Manning, Executive Director

Date: February 19, 2020

Subject: San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership (SGVEP) Annual Membership
Discussion

The WQA holds a Leader Level Membership with the annual renewal amount of $20,000 which is
discounted from the regular price of $25,000. WQA’s membership has been beneficial in putting
the WQA's issues out in front of the community by allowing the WQA to participate in local events
with local and state legislators. It also gives the WQA a seat on the Board of the Directors.

Recommendation / Proposed Action

Recommend approval of WQA’s annual membership to the SGVEP.

Attachment:
SGVEP Annual Membership Invoice



Executive Board Members
2019 -2020

Chair
Lupe Valdez
Union Pacific

Vice Chair
Peter Hidalgo
Charter Communications

Secretary
Donovan Green

AT&T

City Manager Rep.
Bryan Cook

City of Temple City

Immediate Past Chair
Reyna Del Haro
Kaiser Permanente

Past Chair
Tina Javid
SoCal Gas

Ex-Officio Member
Bart Doyle
Attorney at Law

President & CEO
Bill Manis
SGV Economic Partnership

ECEIVE
JAN 21 2020

BY:

January 15, 2020

Ken Manning

Executive Director

San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority
1720 W. Cameron Ave #100

West Covina, CA 91790

Dear Mr. Manning,

Thank you for your continued support of the San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership. This
year your membership allowed us to:

e Create the SGV Economic PowersSite that provides interactive demographic, economic
and industry data for each community in the San Gabriel Valley. The PowerSite
www.sgvpowersite.com enables our members to:

1.) Identify all available commercial properties in the SGV by jurisdiction

2.) ldentify location and details of all businesses by jurisdiction

3.} Obtain demographic, econemic and consumer spending data in the
geographic are of the SGV

e Launch the Power Lunch 2.0 series to provide business intelligence to members on a
monthly basis.

e Influence the outcome of legislation and government regulations that affect local
business and the economic vitality of the SGV

e Provide information and training on critical economic issues and opportunities facing
the region

e Market the SGV at tradeshows and expos, including promoting the SGV as “SoCal’s
Golden Opportunity” at ICSC retail convention.

e Assist local businesses with permitting, expansions, training and finding available
resources

e Connect businesses with SGV community colleges and universities to create workforce
development pathways

®* Promote and honor businesses, organizations, and individuals who make major
contributions to the SGV

We simply could not do this without you. We are honored by your ongoing commitment and
support.

Thank you for your contributions towards advancing the economic vitality of life of the San

Gabriel Valley.
Sincerely,

_l.g, T o w e e Hese
Bill R. Manis ]
President & CEO LG S W

SAN GABRIEL VALLEY ECONOMIC PARTNERSHIP

4900 Rivergrade Road, Suite B130, Irwindale, CA 91706 | Phone (626) 856-3400 Fax (626) 856-5115 | wwwi.sgvpartnership.org



o Advancing the economic
vitality and quality of life
of the San Gabriel Valley

BILL TO

San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority
Ken Manning

1720 West Cameron Avenue, #100
West Covina, CA 91790

DESCRIPTION

Annual Renewal of Leader Level Membership
Website Sponsorship

Leadership income

March 01, 2020 - February 28, 2021

VO C€

DATE INVOICE #

3/1/2020 7112

San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership

4900 Rivergrade Road, Suite B130
Irwindale, CA 91706

(626) 856-3400 Phone
(626) 856-5115 Fax
DUE DATE
3/1/2020
QUANTITY RATE AMOUNT
5,000.00  5,000.00
0.00 0.00

15,000.00  15,000.00

Balance Due $20,000.0(



San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority February 19, 2020

DRAFT

The following item on the Administration Fund Account at Bank of the West are submitted for payment as part of agenda
item Vii(a)1.

Check
No. Payable to Description Amount
7215 San Gabriel Valley Invoice No. 7112, Annual renewal of Leadership 20,000.00

Economic Partnership package and membership dues

TOTAL 20,000.00




AGENDA SUBMITTAL

To: WQA Board of Directors

From: Kenneth R. Manning, Executive Director

Date: February 19, 2020

Subject: Operation and Maintenance Task Order for Avocet Environmental, Inc.
Summary

Avocet Environmental, Inc. (Avocet) has been operating and maintaining WQA’s Whitmore
Street Groundwater Remediation Facility (WSGRF) for the past 12 years and the current
Task Order authorization concludes February 28, 2019. Staff is now recommending issuing
a Task Order to Avocet to extend operation of the system for an additional year.

Background
The WQA'’s WSGRF project is an orphan site located within the South El Monte Operable

Unit with no responsible party to cleanup it up. The site is contaminated with 1,4-Dioxane,
PCE and other volatile organic compounds. The cleanup project was constructed by Avocet
with a $1.42M grant from the SWRCB. A subsequent grant of $995,646 was awarded in
2012 to continue its operation through September 2018. Since that time WQA has been
funding the operation directly from its assessments.

Discussion

Avocet’s operation and maintenance duties include monthly well sampling, groundwater
level measurements, laboratory analyses, quarterly National Pollution Discharge
Elimination System permit reports and compliance monitoring, and general repair and
system maintenance. The work is billed on a time and materials basis per Avocet’s
standard rates. Over the last five years Avocet’s portion of the WSGRF costs, that include
laboratory expenses, has averaged $94,081 per year. The remainder of the operating
costs, including utilities, peroxide, NDPES permit fees, site access fees and UV lamp
replacement, averaged $37,968 per year and are paid directly by WQA and not included in
Avocet’s task order.

Staff is recommending that WQA continue to retain Avocet based on their excellent service
record and working knowledge of the system.

Recommendation
Approve a Task Order with Avocet Environmental, Inc. for an additional year of operation and
maintenance of the Whitmore Street Groundwater Remediation Facility.




AGENDA SUBMITTAL

To: WQA Board of Directors

From: Kenneth R. Manning, Executive Director

Date: February 19, 2020

Subject: Stetson Engineers Amended Task Order to Provide Support for Proposition 68
Application

Summary

On December 18, 2019, the board authorized a $40K task order to Stetson Engineers, Inc. (Stetson)
to provide support in the preparation of a Proposition 68 grant application. Subsequent to that
approval it was determined that an additional scope of work would be required to complete the
application process. Therefore, staff is requesting Board authorization for an additional $10K to
cover the additional scope of work.

Discussion

Stetson’s original scope of work for this effort included one application and one set of submittals
that included all 20+ eligible projects in our basin. Stetson compiled project information from the
numerous water purveyors and prepared several grant deliverables including the project
background, scope of work and budgets.

However, in the course of reviewing project data it was determined that the City of El Monte’s
service area qualified as a Disadvantaged Community (lower match requirement) and would
require the preparation of a second application with separate deliverables for their four projects.
Additionally, based on input from State Water Board Division of Financial Assistance staff,
Stetson’s scope of work was modified to include a cost benefit analysis for each project in both
applications.

Recommendation / Proposed Action

Authorize staff to amend Stetson Engineers’ existing task order to provide support for Proposition
68 applications in an amount not to exceed $50,000.



SGB Water Calendar @ Administrator

Calendars Feb 13 - May 12, 2020
SGVMWD
VMWD Wednesday Feb 19, 2020
CoCVIIND 8:00am - 10:30am TVMWD Board Meeting
WQA 12:00pm - 1:00pm WQA Board Meeting ©
1:30pm - 2:30pm WM Administrative Committee Mtg

Wednesday Feb 26, 2020

All day » ACWA DC Conference
9:00am - 10:00am Upper District Board Meeting
4:30pm - 5:30pm USGVMWD Water Policy Committee Meeting

Thursday Feb 27, 2020

» All day » ACWA DC Conference
11:30am - 12:30pm SCWUA Meeting

4:30pm - 5:30pm Admin and Finance Committee meeting

Friday Feb 28,2020

» All day ACWA DC Conference

Wednesday Mar 4, 2020

8:00am - 10:30am TVMWD Board Meeting

2:30pm - 3:30pm Watermaster Board Meeting

Monday Mar 9, 2020

8:00am - 9:30am SGVMWD Board Meeting

Tuesday Mar 10, 2020

10:00am - 11:00am WQA Admin/Finance Committee
11:00am - 12:00pm WQA Engineering Committee

5:30pm - 6:30pm USGVMWD Gov Affairs Committee Meeting

Wednesday Mar 11, 2020

9:00am - 10:00am Upper District Board Meeting



11:00am - 12:00pm WQA Leg/Pub Committee

1:30pm - 3:00pm WM Basin Watermaster Committee Mtg

Wednesday Mar 18, 2020

8:00am - 10:30am TVMWD Board Meeting
12:00pm - 1:00pm WQA Board Meeting

1:30pm - 2:30pm WM Administrative Committee Mtg

Wednesday Mar 25, 2020

9:00am - 10:00am Upper District Board Meeting

4:30pm - 5:30pm USGVMWD Water Policy Committee Meeting

Thursday Mar 26, 2020

11:30am - 12:30pm SCWUA Meeting

4:30pm - 5:30pm Admin and Finance Committee meeting

Wednesday Apr 1, 2020

8:00am - 10:30am TVMWD Board Meeting

2:30pm - 3:30pm Watermaster Board Meeting

Tuesday Apr 7, 2020

5:30pm - 6:30pm USGVMWD Gov Affairs Committee Meeting &

Wednesday Apr 8, 2020

9:00am - 10:00am Upper District Board Meeting
11:00am - 12:00pm WQA Leg/Pub Committee

1:30pm - 3:00pm WM Basin Watermaster Committee Mtg

Monday Apr 13,2020

8:00am - 9:30am SGVMWD Board Meeting

Tuesday Apr 14,2020

10:00am - 11:00am WQA Admin/Finance Committee

11:00am - 12:00pm WQA Engineering Committee

Wednesday Apr 15, 2020

8:00am - 10:30am TVMWD Board Meeting



o~

12:00pm - 1:00pm WQA Board Meeting
1:30pm - 2:30pm WM Administrative Committee Mtg

Thursday Apr 16, 2020

All day San Gabriel Valley Water Forum

Wednesday Apr 22,2020

9:00am - 10:00am Upper District Board Meeting

4:30pm - 5:30pm USGVMWD Water Policy Committee Meeting

Thursday Apr 23, 2020

11:30am - 12:30pm SCWUA Meeting

4:30pm - 5:30pm Admin and Finance Committee meeting &

Thursday Apr 30, 2020

All day SCWUA Golf Tournament

Monday May 4, 2020

All day » ACWA Fall Conference

Tuesday May 5, 2020

» All day » ACWA Fall Conference

5:30pm - 6:30pm USGVMWD Gov Affairs Committee Meeting

Wednesday May 6, 2020

» All day » ACWA Fall Conference
8:00am - 10:30am TVMWD Board Meeting
2:30pm - 3:30pm Watermaster Board Meeting

Thursday May 7, 2020

» All day » ACWA Fall Conference

Friday May 8, 2020

» All day ACWA Fall Conference

Monday May 11, 2020



8:00am - 9:30am SGVMWD Board Meeting ©

Tuesday May 12, 2020

10:00am - 11:00am WQA Admin/Finance Committee

11:00am - 12:00pm WQA Engineering Committee

Printed on: 02/13/2020 1:59pm Powered by ::: teamup






	WQABoardAgenda_021920
	011520
	Adminfin_020420
	LegPub_020420
	Demands_Admin Project_02 19 20
	Staff Report - 2020 Draft 406 Plan _Open Public Comment Period
	Draft 2020 406 Plan-For Feb Board Meeting3
	406PlanPublicCommentProcess2020
	Staff Report - SGVEP Annual Membership
	SGVEP_Renewal_2020
	Demands_SGVEP_02 19 20
	Staff Report - Avocet Task Order - Whitmore Operation
	Staff Report - Stetson Amended Task Order for Prop 68 Application
	Calendar
	Water Forum_SmallInvite_2020_eVite_2020



